
 

 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
October 6, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Minutes of Meetings – September 15, 2014 

 
5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will  be received 

 from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
 taken under public comments.) 

 
6. Administrator’s Report 
 

7. New Business 
 

A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Development 
Agreement and the Consent to Development Agreement related to a portion 
of the required public and private improvements specified in the original 

Agreement for the Arbor Ridge development and for additional public 
improvements to serve The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, the proposed Senior 

Lifestyle Community, generally located south of Prairie Ridge Boulevard and 
east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development.   

 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Correction 
Instrument related to an error in the legal description and drawing for 

Certified Survey Map 2064 for the property located at the southwest corner 
of Prairie Ridge Boulevard and 96th Avenue. 

 

C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Certified Survey 
Map for the proposed Senior Lifestyle Community that will provide 96 senior 

living units on the property generally located south of Prairie Ridge 
Boulevard and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development. 

 

D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinances #14-29 
and #14-30 for a Zoning Map and Zoning Text Amendments for The 

Addison of Pleasant Prairie, the proposed Senior Lifestyle Community that 



Village Board Meeting 
October 6, 2014 

 

will provide 96 senior living units on the property generally located south of 
Prairie Ridge Boulevard and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge 

development.   
 

E. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #14-31 
amending the Village of Pleasant Prairie 2035 Comprehensive Plan related 
to The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, a senior living facility with 96 units on 

the vacant 9 acre property generally located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. 
and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development. 

 
F. Consider Resolution #14-27 for the acceptance of a portion of First Phase 

Public Improvements for the Arbor Ridge development. 

 
G. Consider Resolution #14-31 requesting the support of the Office of the 

Wisconsin Rail Commissioner for the Installation of Warning Devices at the 
EMCO Rail spur and CTH H on the Soo Line Tracks and support the Kenosha 
County Bike Path Crossing. 

 
H. Consider Agreement for Financial Advisory Services with Sterne, Agee & 

Leach, Inc. 
  

I. Consider Resolution #14-28 – Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to 
exercise special assessment police powers in connection with the 
construction of 360 linear feet of water main on 63rd Avenue between 83rd 

and 84th Streets. 
 

 J. Consider Resolution #14-29 – Resolution rescinding Final Resolution 
  #07-72 authorizing special assessments for the extension of water on 63rd 
  Avenue from STH 165 (104th Street) to 100th Street. 

  
 K. Consider disallowance of a claim submitted by John Stiles for damage to 

  a vehicle cause by driving over a pothole on Cooper Road June 14, 2014. 
 
 L. Consider Resolution #14-30 in support of National Cyber Security  

  Awareness Month. 
  

 M. Consider reappointments to the Community Development Authority. 
 
 N. Consider Operator License Applications on file. 

  
8. Village Board Comments 

 
9. Adjournment. 
 

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 

September 15, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, September 15, 

2014.  Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris 

Keckler, Steve Kumorkiewicz and Mike Serpe.  Clyde Allen was excused. Also present were Michael 

Pollocoff, Village Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Kathy Goessl, 

Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue Chief; Mike Spence, 

Village Engineer; Dan Honore, IT Director; Carol Willke, HR and Recreation Director and Jane M. 

Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Four citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

If we could have the Pleasant Prairie honorees there lead us in the pledge. 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - SEPTEMBER 2, 2014 
 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Move to approve as written. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Kris.  Any discussion on the minutes?   

 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 2, 

2014 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; 

SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

2 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anybody wishing to speak on an item this evening now is your time unless you have an item on 

the agenda which you plan on speaking at. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Use the microphone and give us your name and address for the record. 

 

Brooklyn Jenkins: 

 

Hi.  I’m Brooklyn.  I’m four years old.  I’m Tiny Miss Pleasant Prairie 2013.  Thank you for 

letting me represent the Village. 

 

Rachel Kenyon: 

 

Hi, I’m Rachel Kenyon.  I am Little Miss Pleasant Prairie 2013.  I live in Pleasant Prairie.  My 

address is 9020 24th Avenue, and than you for letting me serve. 

 

Natalie LaForge: 

 

Hello, I’m Natalie LaForge.  I’m your 2014 Miss Pleasant Prairie.  I could not be more excited or 

blessed to serve for this awesome Village.  This year my platform will be agricultural awareness, 

and I plan to target children in schools and teach them about the connection between farmers and 

food.  I also want to teach them about 4H and FSA. 

 

Brook: 

 

Hi, I’m Brook and I’m Little Miss Pleasant Prairie and I’m 8. 

 

Nayla: 

 

Hi, I’m Nayla, Tiny Miss Pleasant Prairie 2013.  I’m five and a half. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you and congratulations. 

 

Robert Youngman: 

 

Good evening, I’m Bob Youngman.  I live at 7540 104th Avenue.  And I’m here representing the 

many property owners that signed a petition for enforcing the 25 mile an hour speed limit on 

104th Avenue.  I have the petition signatures of 75 percent of the property owners on 104th 

Avenue.  The first step is to have four-way stop signs at the Prairie Ridge -- 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

3 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

If you want to take the microphone with you that will help probably. 

 

Robert Youngman: 

 

The bottom line is that there is a traffic control proposal for four-way stop signs which have been 

successful at Highway C two locations, and this would be the only way to solve the problem of 

having the speed limit of 35 miles an hour going from the south and from the west.  And then we 

have a 25 mile an hour speed limit over here in blue.   And 104th is meant to be a 25 mile an hour 

speed limit.  So it would bring it to their attention of everyone if the proper signage was put in 

place.  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

This is citizens’ comments.  We can’t act on anything that isn’t notice. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Did you have the petition that you wanted to present to the Clerk?  Now would be the time to do 

it. 

 

Robert Youngman: 

 

Yes. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you.   

 

John Braig: 

 

John Braig, 4707 84th Street.  In the past I’ve expressed concern about the length of time that 

railroads block roadways in the Village.  Waiting as long as a half an hour on 95th Street is not 

unusual.  In fact, I’ve seen a pedestrian crawl under the railroad cars to cross while it was blocked 

for an extended period of time. 

 

On September 2nd at 4:06 p.m. I was heading eastbound on Bain Station Road.  And, of course, 

the crossing was blocked by a railroad.  I stubbornly waited it out.  At 5:20 the train was still 

blocking the crossing.  That’s an hour and 14 minutes.  And I left at that time only thinking that it 

must have been another one of those accidents and the train would be there for a couple more 

hours.  Now, Bain Station is not a flea bit little roadway anymore, to wit the County has decided 

to leave four way traffic signals at its intersection with Highway H and with Highway C.  I can’t 

believe that something can’t be done about this.  Thank you. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

4 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, John. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There are no additional signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none, I’m going to close 

citizens’ comments and we’re going to move onto Item 6, Administrator’s Report. 

 

[Inaudible] 

 

Amee Janis: 

 

My name is Amee Janis, and I’m actually not a resident of Pleasant Prairie, but I’m a resident of 

Kenosha County out in Salem.  And I’m actually the founder of [inaudible] and I started this 

program to make drivers away of the speeding issues in neighborhoods.  So I just wanted to say 

we’d like you to take into consideration the children [inaudible] sidewalk [inaudible].  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Alright, thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak?  If not I will close citizens’ comments. 

 

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, we received today our copy of the recommendation from the hearing examiner that 

was conducting the hearing for two things.  One was railroad signals and guides on the bike path 

on H.  And the second one for the spur crossing at the Emco facility.  Village staff and President 

Steinbrink had gone through the hearing, commented on it and made our views known as to why 

we thought that the Emco crossing was necessary.  And the hearing examiner is recommending 

that we put the streetlights in that were planned to be put in to light up the area, but that we look 

at having yield sign with some lines that would be outlined with white flashing lights to designate 

that they should be yielding to a railroad crossing. 

 

We have 15 days to reply, so I contacted the Commissioner’s office and see if we can get an 

extension until October 7th.  The Board will be in session again on October 6th.  That will give 

the staff the opportunity to prepare another analysis and report that we can use to convince the 

Railroad Commissioner that we’d like to see an outcome different than what the hearing examiner 

recommended.  We think street lights will help because all these deliveries are made at night, but 

they’re still black cars.  And on a foggy night if you think about putting your high beams on in 

the fog you really don’t see anything. 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

5 

 

So I think we’d really like to take another run at this.  If we can’t get them to extend it to that two 

week period then I’d be seeking authority to respond on behalf of the Village prior to the 15 days 

that they’ve given us for that item.  They did rule that the bike path will get flashing red lights 

and I believe gates on the bike lanes.  It wouldn’t be on the bike lanes, the gates would be 

extended from the road onto the bike lanes.  Because the bike lanes kind of come out at an angle.  

And there would be a point when you go out on that angle to cross that track at a 90 degree where 

you could have your back to the train.  I those are a valid need. 

 

But I still think that even though this is a private crossing, I mean Emco is a good company, but 

they really carry a broad range of things that they take shipments of from confectionary alcohol to 

[inaudible] by Jelly Belly to shine the beans up, from chocolate to all sorts of things.  So it’s not 

that a car would explode, but on the other hand if a valve was breached on a rail car you could be 

dumping 20,000 gallons of whatever into the environment.  Emco is in full agreement with this.  

We have two steps to go through.  One is to make the case to convince the Commissioner that this 

should be done, and everybody is going to have to put something into it to pay for it.  But if the 

railroad doesn’t want to do it, and the railroad has indicated that they don’t, that question has to 

be resolved first.  So that’s where we stand with that.  I think given the fact that we’ve had two 

accidents and we could have more I think it’s worth pursuing to see if we can get this final 

decision made. This would be our third crack at trying to get that crossing signaled. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Mike, I was at that hearing.  It just amazes me sometimes the thinking that goes on with people 

making decisions in our community that are not a part of our community.  Chief Smetana gave a 

perfect example of why we should have the flashing lights.  You need a visual contact from the 

drivers with a warning.  The railroad sign that criss-crosses is not enough and nobody even sees 

those.  And who knows better than the police department and the Chief as to what is needed at 

that crossing.  And for those people to turn their back on us is very disturbing. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

That’s it. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, it sounds like we have some business to do with the railroad. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Do we have to vote or make a motion to -- 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

No, it’s Administrator’s report. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

6 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider award of contracts for various construction specialties for Fire Station No. 

1. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, if you think back we had rejected previous bids for the fire station because we felt 

that there were two things going on, the bids were higher and we didn’t have a sufficient number 

of bidders for the project.  We reopened bids again on September 8th.  And the prices came out 

better because we had done some value engineering with the guidance of our consultant, Riley 

Construction.  And with the work that’s been done to re-engineer the project down a little bit and 

with the prices the increase now is $29,436.  That’s on a contract price of $4,546,294 which I 

think on a percentage basis is pretty good. 

 

Riley has analyzed the bids and have gone through them.  They’ve provided recommendations for 

award of contracts which is presented in your bid tab summary.  I’d recommend that those 

contracts be awarded that are recommended.  I don’t know if Riley has got anything that they 

want to add to the recommendations. 

 

Dave Riley: 

 

Dave Riley, 5301 99th Avenue, Kenosha.  When I was up in front of you guys in July this was 

our plan, we thought this was the best route to take.  I believe now that we have the bids it was 

the best route to take.  We are back to within pretty close to budget.  I remind everybody that 

we’re carrying a contingency, too, in this budget.  So we’ll try to bring this thing even under the 

numbers we’re showing today.   

 

Even up to the last night there was pressure on bidding.  The electrician that bid the first time, just 

an example of the pressure out there, the electrician that bid the first time, Pieper Electric, called 

us the night before the bid was due and said we’ve just been awarded the bottling company job 

which is also in the Village, $3 million.  Great pressures on their crews.  They said we cannot bid 

the Village.  So kind of a catch 22 for the Village, a nice project going on but they weren’t able to 

bid on this project.  But our electrical numbers came way down.  If you remember in July there 

was like an $800,000 bid, and now they’re at like $460,000.  So as we anticipated everybody was 

just so busy last summer.  So I think it’s a good thing.  If you have any specific questions I have 

Chris Siefert here today, too from Riley and he can answer any specific questions you have. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any questions?  No. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

With that, I’ll read through the contractors who we’re recommended awards.  For the general 

conditions and staffing Riley Construction.  For the excavation VK Contractors.  I’m sorry, those 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

7 

have already been awarded.  For masonry Riley Construction.  Roofing and sheet metal and metal 

panels Nations Roof North.  Over at doors A&R Door Service.   Light gauge framing, trusses, 

insulation and gypsum board Common Links Construction.  Tile flooring Tesche’s Tile 

Incorporated.  Acoustical ceilings Quality Ceilings, Incorporated.  Resinous epoxy flooring 

Protective Coating Specialists.  Carpeting and resilient flooring Lippert Tile.  Painting and 

coatings Wall-Tech, Incorporated.  Electric and low voltage Wil-Surge, Incorporated. 

 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE AWARD OF CONTRACTS FOR VARIOUS 

CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES FOR FIRE STATION NO. 1 AS PRESENTED; SECONDED 

BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Dave, are we going to get this thing buttoned up a little bit before winter? 

 

Dave Riley: 

 

The short answer is, yes, we are going to try.  Assuming winter follows the time frame that it’s 

supposed to follow and not follow last winter when it turned to ten degrees in November.  If we 

have a typical winter which means we start getting those below freezing temperatures 

consistently in January we should be in good shape.  That’s one of the reasons we wanted to get 

these contracts approved right away so that we can stay on schedule.  We have steel coming in 

mid-October which is right on the original schedule.  So I think we’ll be in good shape assuming 

winter is normal. 

 

 B. Consider a Professional Construction Engineering Services Agreement for the 

Village Green Heights Subdivision Stage 3 Surface Course Paving project. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, Land and Lakes Development Company, who is the 

developer for Village Green Heights, has requested to final pave a portion of the Village Green 

Heights Subdivision.  The map on the wall there and in your packet shows the streets that they are 

looking to final pave.  These streets all have binder, and typically stage three paving occurs when 

they’re at 75 percent of construction.  And they’re within 3 houses of that.  And so they would 

like to get that paved yet this year.  The improvements will include a portion of 98th Street, 49th 

Avenue, 50th Avenue, Cooper Road, 55th Court and Main Street.   

 

The scope of work to do this for the consultant will include stake out and layout of the paving, 

construction observation services and construction administration services.  We received a 

proposal from Nielsen Madsen and Barber to do this work for $20,838.80.  This work it should be 

noted, too, that we get reimbursed by the developer.  So we do pay the consultant for the 

construction services but we, in turn, then bill the developer for the work.  And we also have a 

letter of credit if we don’t get paid.  So with that Nielsen Madsen and Barber has done other 

construction administration and paving observation out there.  So I recommend that this contract 

be executed.  I’d be glad to answer any questions. 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

8 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any questions for Mike?  Mike, what is the anticipated date the plants will be closing for 

blacktop? 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

The plants usually -- I think there’s about 7 weeks left.  Usually it’s sometime in early November.  

As Dave Riley mentioned it kind of depends on the weather, too, if we get a cold snap.  There’s a 

lot of projects that contractors are trying to finish.  But I remember a few years ago the plants 

were open until the end of November.  So it sort of depends on the weather.  But I would say at 

least until the end of November. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any other questions for Mike?  If not? 

 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL CONSTRUCTION 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NIELSEN MADSEN & BARBER IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $20,838.80 FOR THE VILLAGE GREEN HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION STAGE 3 

SURFACE COURSE PAVING PROJECT; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-

0. 

 

 C. Consider purchasing permit and planning application management system software 

for the Community Development, Inspection and Engineering Departments. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, the community development department and the building inspection department 

currently have a skeleton that really just keeps track of permits and calculates fees.  On the fiscal 

year budget for this year we funded a portion of a project to identify a software package to do a 

number of things from managing work orders to assist in processing the data required with 

permits.  And we looked at two firms, one is Tyler who does our financial packages, and the other 

one was CRW.  The staff and the IT director evaluated the CRW system and found it to be the 

preferred option.  If I could I’d have our IT director Dan Honore come up and describe the 

software in some more detail and then the process for how we’re going to implement this over a 

two year period. 

 

Dan Honore: 

 

Thank you.  The CRW system we went through a process whereby seven vendors were solicited 

for bids.  We received two.  The project actually started a couple years before I arrived.  This was 

the second go around.  We reviewed both applications, Tyler Technologies as well as CRW.  The  



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

9 

team including myself felt that the CRW solution provided a much more robust environment that 

we would implement today and then also provide more opportunities for the Village as we grow.  

They have more modules, more features than what the Tyler solution had. 

 

Another part of the decision was that there’s a lot of assistance that’s needed right now to help 

with the processes that we have to go through, that the departments have to go through.  And 

Tyler Technologies was not able to begin implementation until well into the end of 2015.  CRW 

is ready to go right now. So we actually had a very good option in front of us which was CRW, 

and that’s what we proposed to Mike and propose to you for approval to you today. 

 

The process has been laid out, and we will begin with the vendor very shortly in the coming 

weeks to begin determining the full implementation schedule.  But as it’s laid out in the 

documents that you have there’s a general guideline that we will go through, configuration, gated 

conversion, testing and so on.  It’s approximately a year and a half process from start to finish.  

And by the time it’s all finished we will have all of the modules that we purchased in place. 

 

The costing that you see in front of you here basically what we’ve done is negotiated a starting 

payment of $93,000 which is for the actual software and the licensing.  And then starting next 

year we will pay for the implementation and configuration costs for the project.  And that’s on a 

timed basis, every month or so we’ll make a payment until the last payment which is going to be 

30 days after go live.  And basically we as the team have to approve the application that it is what 

we expect it to be.  And once we do that approval then we have 30 days to make the final 

payment.  So we will not have to pay that in the end if it’s not what we want.  But I’m fairly 

confident.  The vendor has been very receptive.  They want to partner with us, and I think it will 

do exactly what we’re looking for it to do. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Dan, 2014 and 2015 there’s no maintenance involved because we’re -- 

 

Dan Honore: 

 

Well, generally what I’ve tried to do with any software is to have the first year’s maintenance 

waived.  CRW was amenable to that so they waived our first year maintenance.  Maintenance will 

not begin until 2016.  And I was also able to get them to honor the 2015 price in 2016. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And being my age I don’t really understand all this computer stuff.  For $20,000 in 2019 what 

maintenance, what is CRW going to do for us? 

 

Dan Honore: 

 

Sure, good question.  Maintenance is something that most every vendor charges.  And basically 

what you get is any updates, upgrades, the ability to contact the company via multiple means to 

get assistance, whether it be 24/7 or 8 to 5, there are various terms and agreements on when you 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

10 

can get support and what’s involved in that.  But the prices you see here for maintenance 

generally you will see them at an 18 to 20 percent of the purchase price which is pretty much in 

line here.  CRW is pretty much in line with the standard that I’ve experienced with my career.  So 

what we’ve laid out here in 2017 and ‘18 you’ll see that there’s no increase.  That’s one of the 

features that they actually put forth to us.  The expectation is in 2019/2020, again, there would be 

no increase. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And maintenance is one thing, does any of this include any upgrades between now and 2019? 

 

Dan Honore: 

 

It does.  Every single year we will receive any and all updates, hot fixes, upgrades that would 

come out of CRW. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ve got a question.  In the year 2019 I see that we’ve got $20,570 for maintenance.  At that time 

we need to replace the system or the system can be updated? 

 

Dan Honore: 

 

That’s a good question, Steve.  Generally we’re going to hope that the software is doing exactly 

what we want.  They’re adding modules, adding features, and we will continue to work with the 

company well into the future.  This is a five year contract if you will so in 2019 at that time we 

would be negotiating the next round of maintenance for the next one, two to five years depending 

on the outlook for that company. 

 

I can tell you, and actually Jean and the others would be able to tell you better than me on the 

improvements that CRW has made just in the two years since they originally looked at the 

software.  So the expectation is by 2019 there will be even more improvements, and we will 

continue to utilize the software beyond 2019. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

I might add one of the reasons it’s critical that we get going on this is that there was a mandate 

from the State on reporting out our expenses, what we spend in doing this work and providing it 

on more of a unit basis.  Before it was a more generalized approach to how the accounting was 

done.  Now it’s more specific.  Right now we don’t have the specifics.  The old system we have 

which is probably 10 or 12 years old we don’t have that ability to do that. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

And I think that the other reason this is getting more critical as time goes on it’s the good side of 

the new construction that’s taking place is that the permit numbers are significantly up.  And 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

11 

details which we have to deal with on those are significantly greater than they were before.  So 

this is primarily going to be financed by permanent revenues.  The people that are using those 

services, the permits that come in, we’re going to be able to use that to help diffuse the cost of 

this.  Right now shy of just generating a permit number and a calculation everything in the permit 

department and building inspection and in community development is all paper.  So we’re 

moving paper constantly, and that’s expensive in and of itself.  We need to do something.  I don’t 

think this is just we’re settling for something that’s second best.  This is really the better product.  

We’re fortunate in the sense that it has less dollar cost than the other option. 

 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE PURCHASING PERMIT AND PLANNING 

APPLICATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SOFTWARE FROM CRW SYSTEMS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $93,000 FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, INSPECTION AND 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENTS; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 

4-0. 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Dan. 

 

 D. Consider the 2014-2015 Agreement between the Village and the Pleasant Prairie 

Professional Firefighter’s Association Local 3785. 
 

Carol Willke: 

 

Mr. President and Trustees, what you have before you is the tentative agreement between the 

Village and the Firefighter’s Association.  The way I’m presenting this is just in chronological 

order by article.  So we’re going to jump right into wages which is always the most important.  So 

Article VII is wage, the agreement to increase all rates by 1.5 percent effective January 1st, 

followed by an increase of 1 percent effective July 1, 2014 and then an increase of 2 percent 

effective January 1, 2015. 

 

Then the second article that we’re going to be discussing would be Article VIII which is the 

retirement fund, WRS.  And effective upon ratification the employees will contribute 6.5 percent 

of the employer share.  And then effective January 1 of 2015 each employee shall contribute 

whatever the amount is required by WRS.  That could fluctuate depending on what their 

determination is. 

 

Article XVI is the insurance.  It includes health insurance and dental.  So for health insurance the 

employees will start contributing 3 percent which is a decrease from 5 percent that they are 

currently paying towards their monthly premium contribution.  And then as the rest of the 

employees of the Village are participating in vitality wellness program through Humana the 

firefighters will also be participating and hopefully getting to the silver level which will then keep 

their premiums at 3 percent.  Otherwise if they choose not to participate or do not achieve that 

level their premiums will go to 20 percent of the total cost.  And that will be throughout 2015.  

The dental insurance they will be contributing a contribution of 10 percent of the monthly 

premium. 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

12 

 

Article XXV is the acting lieutenant compensation.  And this obviously goes into play if one of 

the lieutenants -- if none of the lieutenants are available and one of the firefighters is asked to step 

into that role.  January 1 of 2014 the pay will increase by 50 cents per hour.  As of 1/1/15 it will 

increase to 55 cents per hour.  And then going into the third year it will increase 60 cents per hour 

which would be effective 12/31/2015. 

 

Article XXVIII miscellaneous provisions is basically the residency requirement.  And employees 

shall reside within any part of Kenosha County or Racine County.  Newly hired employees must 

establish such residency within one year of the date of hire.  The chief will have the opportunity 

to extend that by six months if there are some extenuating circumstances. 

 

Article XXVI is the duration which reflects the two year contract for 2014 through 2015.  And 

then we address two issues through side letters or memorandums of agreement.  The first is 

saying that the fire chief can designate a qualified lieutenant to act as duty chief in absence of 

either chief or the deputy chief.  And in that instance a lieutenant shall receive an addition $2.20 

an hour for the duration of that assignment.  And then the second addresses overtime distribution 

and mandatory callback.  This was a working document that both management and staff worked 

on.  And it’s a long document, and you have a copy of it in your package. 

 

I’d be happy to answer any questions that you have.  Otherwise we are recommending that you 

accept this agreement and let us move forward with adopting it. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

In the past it was relatively easy to negotiate with the municipalities.  But now lately in the last 

couple years, last few years, the State has taken so much money from the municipalities and used 

it for whatever reason they wanted to use it for on the State level there’s just so much less money 

to deal with with our represented employees and our non-represented employees.  It’s kind of a 

shame.  Because in the past we used to give us raised for contributions towards the retirement 

fund.  That’s all gone now, it’s gone, and it’s no fault of anybody in this building.  It’s the fault of 

what we have to deal with with the State government, and it’s too bad.    I assume the firefighters 

have ratified this? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes. 

 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE 2014-2015 AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

VILLAGE AND THE PLEASANT PRAIRIE PROFESSIONAL FIREFIGHTER’S 

ASSOCIATION LOCAL 3785; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 

 E. Consider approval of WE Energies Distribution Easement for Underground 

utilities. 
 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

13 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the reconstruction of 39th Avenue will start next spring.  

As part of the overall project in this area the Village has asked We Energies to move their 

overhead power lines to underground.  The pictures you see there just show the overhead lines in 

the vicinity of Village Hall.  Again, just showing the lines on the east side.  The utility work, what 

they’re going to be doing, they’re going to be burying the electric lines on the east side of 39th 

Avenue from 100th Street north to Springbrook, and then also along Springbrook to the end of 

the Village owned property for the new Fire Station No. 1. 

 

As part of this work We Energies requires a 12 foot easement for the relocated underground lines.  

And this easement is to allow for the installation, operation, maintenance, etc. for their utility.  

This shows the general alignment of the utility.  Again, that follows the right of way of 39th 

Avenue and Springbrook Road, again on the east side.  So with that we’ve reviewed the easement 

language, and we find it to be acceptable.  And we recommend that the Village agree to this 

easement so that once we agree to that then they’ll actually start the work this fall yet.  So I’d be 

glad to answer any questions. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

One question, Mike.  How deep are the lines buried? 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

Typically these lines are buried not real deep, about three feet from the grade.  What will happen 

is when they bury the utilities we have to get the grade to within four inches of where it’s going to 

be so if there’s any grade changes.  But the bottom line is when they’re done it will be in the 

vicinity of three feet deep. 

 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE APPROVAL OF WE ENERGIES 

DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT FOR UNDERGROUND UTILITIES FOR THE 39
TH

 AVENUE 

RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 

 F. Consent Agenda 

  1) Approve Operator License Applications on file. 

  2) Approve Letter of Credit Reduction for the Ashbury Creek Development. 
 

 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 AND 2; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

14 

 

8. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Just to reiterate, John Braig talked about Bain Station and the blockage there.  95th Street this is 

all too often occurrence, a great inconvenience to a lot of people using that road especially in the 

morning when they’re trying to get to school or to work.  The Village has had discussions with 

the railroad, the Railroad Commissioner, We Energies.  We received promises they’re going to do 

better, and to this date really nothing has occurred.  And I think it’s actually gotten worse at times 

than better.  There’s a lot they could do to make improvements here. 

 

Just as a side note I was on 60th Street, same thing happen when the coal train crossed 60th Street 

going south.  Four cars crossed the intersection with the engine and it stopped.  Engineer got out, 

walked up and down, people sat there for a long time.  And after 30 or 40 minutes we just gave 

up and turned around and went to Highway 50.  I mean there’s no rhyme, there’s no reason.  The 

railroad is a very hard [inaudible] to deal with.   

 

I know the Chief is looking at 104th Street and what we can do there.  And the Village has it.  It’s 

a shame they left before citizens’ comments, but we cannot talk about these things during 

citizens’ comments.  That’s the way the law is interpreted from Madison and the higher aboves 

there.  But I get people have to realize that we have construction on Highway 50 and the 

interstate.  A lot of traffic is re-routed that way now.  People use it especially on the north side of 

Highway 50.  With the C and H roundabout which, by the way, is very nice and turned out very 

well and flows very nice, and good comments from everybody that uses it that directed traffic 

down there, too.  So hopefully a lot of this will let up.  But I think the one thing to remember is 

this is an arterial, and that has to be taken into consideration whatever our actions are.  Any other 

Board comments? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

If I recall correct the railroad used to be fined $50 a minute. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Doesn’t apply, right? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No, a law was passed -- I’m sorry, a court decision that municipalities are no longer able to fine 

railroads for obstructing the road. 

 

[Inaudible] 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

15 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We’re lucky we kept the road open.  They wanted to close Bain Station.  Anything else under 

Village Board comments? 

 

9. CONSIDER ENTERING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTION 

19.85(1)(C) TO CONSIDER EMPLOYMENT, PROMOTION, COMPENSATION OR 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION DATA OF ANY PUBLIC EMPLOYEE OVER WHICH 

THE GOVERNMENTAL BODY HAS JURISDICTION OR EXERCISES 

RESPONSIBILITY. 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

The Board will return to open session for the purposes of adjournment only.  And I want to 

commend the young ladies for your attention this evening.  You sat through a fairly lengthy, and 

we thank you for your representation of the Village.  You guys do a great job.  Very poised and 

very articulate. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

So moved and roll call. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Roll call vote is requested. 

 

 

SERPE MOVED TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTION 

19.85(1)(C) TO CONSIDER EMPLOYMENT, PROMOTION, COMPENSATION OR 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION DATA OF ANY PUBLIC EMPLOYEE OVER WHICH THE 

GOVERNMENTAL BODY HAS JURISDICTION OR EXERCISES RESPONSIBILITY; 

SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; ROLL CALL VOTE – STEINBRINK – AYE;  KECKLER – 

AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; SERPE – AYE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion carries, four ayes and one absent. 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

September 15, 2014 

 

 

16 

 

10. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

 

After discussion held in closed session, KECKLER MOVED TO RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY SERPE; ROLL CALL VOTE – 

STEINBRINK – AYE; KECKLER – AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; SERPE – AYE; MOTION 

CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:50 P.M. 



1 
 

THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE SAME TIME HOWEVER SEPARATE 

ACTION IS REQUIRED. 

 

Consider approval of a Development Agreement and the Consent to Development Agreement 

related to a portion of the required public and private improvements specified in the Development 

Agreement for Arbor Ridge and for additional public improvements to serve The Addison of Pleasant Prairie 

between the Village of Pleasant and Senior Lifestyle Development Company, LLC. 

Recommendation:  Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve the Assignment of 

Development Agreement and the Consent to Development Agreement subject to the 

comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report of October 6, 2014. 

Consider approval of a Correction Instrument related to an error in the legal description and drawing 

for CSM 2064 for the property located at the southwest corner of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and 96th Avenue. 

Recommendation Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Correction 

Instrument subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report of October 6, 

2014. 

Consider approval of a Certified Survey Map for the request of Mark Eberle of Nielsen Madsen and 

Barber, agent for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, the proposed Senior Lifestyle Community that will 

provide 96 senior living units on the property generally located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and east of 

97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development. 

Recommendation:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Certified 

Survey Map subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report of October 6, 

2014. 

Consider Ord. #14-29 and #14-30 for a Zoning Map and Zoning Text Amendments for the request 

of Mark Eberle of Nielsen Madsen and Barber, agent for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, the proposed 

Senior Lifestyle Community that will provide 96 senior living units on the property generally located south 

of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development.  Specifically, the 

request is to rezone the property from R-11 (UHO), Multifamily Residential District with an Urban 

Landholding Overlay District to the R-11 (PUD), Multifamily Residential District with a Planned Unit 

Development Overlay District and approve of a Zoning Text Amendment including Final Development 

Plans for the specific regulations for the development of the Addison of Pleasant Prairie.  

Recommendation:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Zoning 

Map and Zoning Text Amendment subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff 

Report of October 6, 2014. 

Consider Ord. #14-31 for the request of Mark Eberle of Nielsen Madsen and Barber, agent for the 

following amendments to the Village of Pleasant Prairie 2035 Comprehensive Plan related to The 

Addison of Pleasant Prairie, a senior living facility with 96 units on the vacant 9 acre property generally 

located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development:  1) to 

amend the Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 to remove the urban reserve land use designation from 

the property to ensure that both the Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Plan are consistent; 

and 2) to update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 Comprehensive Plan to 

reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 

Recommendation:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment as presented at the October 6, 2014 meeting. 

Consider Resolution #14-27 for the acceptance of a portion of First Phase Public Improvements for the 

Arbor Ridge development. 

Recommendation:  Village Staff recommends that the Village Board approve the Resolution 

#14-27 as presented at the October 6, 2014 meeting. 



2 
 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF OCTOBER 6, 2014 

 

On December 9, 2013 the Village approved a Conceptual Plan for the proposed two-phase 162 senior 

housing unit development on property on the vacant 9-acre property located generally south of Prairie 

Ridge Boulevard, between 97th Court and 96th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge development.  The proposed 

Senior Lifestyle Community will provide 96 senior assisted living units in Phase 1 (Lot 1 of the proposed 

CSM) and 66 senior living units in Phase 2 (Lot 2 of the proposed CSM).  Phase 1 is anticipated to begin in 

the fall, 2014. No exact time frame has been set for Phase 2. 

At this time the petitioner is requesting several approvals for Phase 1 of the development to be known as 

The Addison of Pleasant Prairie which includes: 

 Development Agreement and Consent to Development Agreement additional off-site 

improvements.  

 Partial acceptance of Public/Private improvements already installed in the Arbor Ridge 

development. 

 Correction instrument to correct errors in the legal description and drawing of CSM 2064 as 

recorded in 1998 and approval of a new CSM for the development site. 

 Zoning Map Amendment to rezone the property from R-11 (UHO), Multifamily Residential District 

with an Urban Landholding Overlay District to the R-11 (PUD), Multifamily Residential District with 

a Planned Unit Development Overlay District. 

 Zoning Text Amendment including Final Development Plans for the specific zoning regulations for 

the development of the Addison of Pleasant Prairie.  

 Comprehensive Plan Amendment to ensure that the Zoning Map and the Land Use Plan are 

consistent. 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (Historical Information):  On May 17, 2004 the Village Board approved 

Conceptual Plans for the proposed Arbor Ridge Condominium Development including 15-2 unit buildings, 

5-4 unit buildings; and 8-6 unit buildings for a total of 98 units and Prairie Ridge Senior Campus including 

a total of 521 senior apartments to be constructed in Phases as specified below: 

 Phase 1:  120 senior living unit building on 6.818 acres (constructed prior to May 2004) 

 Phase 2:  71 senior living unit building on 4.254 acres (constructed in 2006) 

 Phase 3:  70 senior living unit building on 3.349 acres  (proposed for Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-

084-0413 south of phase 2 is still vacant land) 

 Phases 4 through 7:  A 260 total units within two buildings were identified to be constructed on 

9.207 acres (Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-082-0412)--which is the parcel proposed to be 

developed by Senior Lifestyle) 

The first phase of the Arbor Ridge Condominium Development (15-2 unit buildings) was proposed and 

approved in 2005 as a part of this development west of 97th Court.  At that time, VK Arbor and the Village 

entered into a Development Agreement to install the public and private improvements related to the areas 

described above.  The first two phases of the Senior Campus have been constructed, but the Arbor Ridge 

Condominium (15-2 unit buildings) has not been constructed.  At this time, the Conceptual Plan for the 

remaining expansions of Arbor Ridge Condominiums (5-4 unit buildings and 8- 6 unit buildings), along 

with Phases 3-7 of the Prairie Ridge Senior Housing development have expired.  

The Development Agreement relating to the Public and Private Improvements pertaining to Phases 1-7 

and the Arbor Ridge Condominiums is still in effect.  Senior Lifestyle’s engineer (Nielson Madsen Barber) 

has prepared an Off-Site Improvements Cost Estimate for all outstanding Private Improvements for the 

Arbor Ridge Condominium to determine if the current letter of credit from The National Bank is sufficient.  

Any additional LOC amount needed will be provided in a supplemental letter of credit by The National 

Bank. The remaining improvements in the Arbor Ridge Condominium area as shown on the attached Cost 

Estimate (See Exhibit 1a) that are not included in the Assignment of Development Agreement will be the 

responsibility of The National Bank, the current owner of the remainder of the land identified in the Arbor 



3 
 

Ridge Development Agreement.  Resolution #14-27 is being considered to accept a portion of 

public/private improvements that have already been installed and accepted by the Village.  (See Exhibit 

1b)  

Senior Lifestyle’s engineer has prepared an Off-Site Improvements Cost Estimate for all outstanding Public 

and Private Improvements for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie. The Development Agreement (See 

Exhibit 1) is between the Village and the developer of The Addison of Pleasant Prairie (Senior Lifestyle 

Holding Company, LLC) and Agreement specifies the required Public and Private Improvements and their 

other responsibilities to develop this property.  The Consent to Development Agreement (Exhibit 1c) 

relates to the Bank (current owner) consenting to the Development Agreement (Exhibit 1) and to release 

an amount of funds secured in the original development Agreement for improvements in the Development 

Agreement (Exhibit 1). 

Generally, the Public and Private Improvements for The Addison development include the 

following Road Improvements/Sanitary/Street Trees/Street Lights/Street Signs/Sidewalks: 

1. 97th Court shall be fully improved from 94th Avenue to Prairie Ridge Boulevard, including sidewalks 

on both sides and parkway street trees.  97th Court shall be constructed to the Village’s new 

standard composite pavement section (7-inches concrete overlaid with 1.75-inch HMA).  

2. 96th Avenue from 97th Court to 81st Street shall be final paved improved to support the 

development.  Also, the existing portion of 96th Avenue from 81st Street to Prairie Ridge Boulevard 

shall be fully improved. 

3. Parkway street trees shall be installed along the 97th Court (east and west side), 96th Avenue (west 

side), 96th Avenue (missing trees along the east side), 81st Street (the missing trees along the 

north side), and a street tree is missing along Prairie Ridge Boulevard.  A detailed landscaping plan 

showing the tree types (minimum of a 2” caliper) and locations shall be prepared.  Street tree 

type(s) shall be listed in the current Village of Pleasant Prairie approved street tree list. The 

planting details including the mulch bed, staking and tie downs shall be provided. No substitutions 

shall be made without prior approval from the Village. 

4. Street lights (residential type-concrete base and pole with Sheridan fixture) shall be installed along 

97th Court and 96th Avenue through a contract with We Energies.   

5. Street signs shall be installed pursuant to Village requirements. 

6. Concrete sidewalks, 5 feet in width, shall be installed in the right-of-way on both sides of the 

development 97th Court and 96th Avenue abutting the development. 

7. The proposed sanitary sewer service for the phase 1 building requires a sanitary sewer extension 

from 98th Circle.  The sanitary extension from existing manhole of 98th Circle to the manhole on 

97th Court shall be a public sanitary sewer main extension  

Correction Instrument (See Exhibit 2):  This Correction Instrument corrects the errors in the legal 

description and drawing of CSM 2064 that was recorded in 1998 for the property to the east at 7900 94th 

Avenue.  The Correction Instrument correctly places the 33 foot gap between The Addison parcel and the 

7900 94th Avenue property.  This 33 foot gap shall be attached to the 7900 94th Avenue property.  The 

Correction Instrument shall be executed and recorded at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office 

prior to recording the new CSM. 

Certified Survey Map (See Exhibit 3):  A new CSM is proposed to subdivide The Addison property (Tax 

Parcel Number 91-4-122-082-0412) into two parcels.   

 Lot 1 is 4.986 acres with frontage on Prairie Ridge Blvd. and 97th Court (public streets) and 96th 

Avenue (private road).  Lot 1 is proposed to be developed with The Addison of Pleasant Prairie-

phase 1 (96 senior assisted living units). 

 Lot 2 is 4.21 acres with frontage on 97th Court (a public road) and 96th Avenue (a private road).    

Lot 2 is proposed to be developed with 66 senior living units as shown as conditionally approved 

Conceptual Plan. There is no exact time frame for Phase 2. 



4 
 

The CSM shows all current easements on the property and a new 30’ Wide Ingress-Egress Cross Access 

and Maintenance Easement between Lots 1 and 2 and a 20’ wide Dedicated Water Main, Access and 

Maintenance Easement on Lot 1 to provide future water service to Lot 2. 

Zoning Map and Text Amendments (Ord. #14-29 and #14-30):  The current zoning of the property 

is R-11 (UHO), Multi-Family Residential District with an Urban Landholding Overlay District.  The property 

is proposed to be rezoned to R-11 (PUD), Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Unit 

Development Overly.  Developing the property as a PUD will allow for more flexibility with some 

dimensional requirements of the Village Zoning Ordinance provided there is a defined benefit to the 

community. See Exhibit 4 for a copy of the Zoning Map and Text Amendments. 

The Zoning Text Amendment refers to the Development Plans.  The Development Plans include the Civil 

and Architectural Plans for the development.  Generally the plans depict the 87,000 square foot building is 

proposed to have 96 living units located on three levels.   On the first level each of the two living area 

wings includes 16 units with a common living and dining area with kitchen facilities and a screen porch.  

In addition, there is access to an outdoor garden/patio area.  The two (2) wings are connected to a one 

story area that will include larger dining and living rooms with a multi-purpose room, craft room with an 

attached greenhouse, fitness room, salon and therapy room.  This common area will also have two 

elevators to access the upper levels.  The second and third floor will provide for a total of 32 living units 

and no commons living spaces.  A majority of the units are 1 bedroom units. There are a limited number 

of efficiencies and 1 bedroom units with a small living area.   As part of their monthly fee, residents will 

have access to meals and other services such as housekeeping, linen service, transportation, and social 

and recreational activities.  Supportive care and assisted living services from trained employees will also 

be available to residents who require assistance with activities of daily living (ADLs) including 

management of medications, bathing, dressing, toileting, ambulating and eating, and residents who have 

Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of dementia. 

The memory support units types range in size from 300 square feet to 530 square feet (8 unit types are 

provided.)  The assisted living units types range in size from 477 to 816 square feet (a majority of the 1 

bedroom units are about 600 square feet). 

Pursuant to the application, visitors must sign in with the receptionist of night staff.  The exterior doors 

are locked after 9:00 p.m. and resident access is gained by a card kept.  Visitors may call the night staff 

from the intercom at the front door and access with be controlled by the night staff. 

Pursuant to the application, it is anticipated that there will be a total of 74 full time equivalent employees 

covering three (3) shifts—28, 24 and 5 employees per shift, respectively.  It is anticipated that the 

maximum employees on site at one time would be 50 employees on-site.  The site provides for 61 parking 

spaces plus four (4) handicapped accessible parking spaces, which meets the minimum requirements of 

the Village Zoning Ordinance. 

In addition, on September 22, 2014 the Village Plan Commission conditionally approved a Conditional Use 

Permit including a Digital Security Imaging System (DSIS) and DSIS Access Easement for the required 

security cameras outside of the building covering each entrance and exit, all public areas of the site in 

accordance with the requirements of Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code. 

The following "Dimensional variations" are also included in the PUD are: 

1. Section 420-116 F (1) requires the maximum height to be 35 feet.  The PUD will allow the building 

on Lot 1 of the proposed CSM to be a maximum height of 45 feet.   

Due to the occupancy of the proposed project as a Community Based Residential Facility, additional 

ceiling space is needed on the first floor to accommodate the required mechanical system. This 

taken in conjunction with the desire to create an attractive building complimenting the adjacent 

neighborhood necessitated a design that required a 44 foot height. By granting this height variation 

the petitioner contends that the community will benefit from a harmonious and integrated 

neighborhood design instead of a presently vacant site. 

2. Section 420-48 L related to Parking Lot and Circulation requires a 20 foot setback to all lot lines 

abutting a street and a 10 foot setback to common interior lot lines.  Due to the proposed shared 

access and circulation between Lot 1 (phase 1) and Lot 2 (Phase 2) a zero foot setback is proposed 

from the common interior lot line and a 14 foot setback from the property line adjacent to 97th 



5 
 

Court is proposed to allow for the connectivity between the rear service drive off of 97th Court and 

the shared access between Lots 1 and 2.   In addition, the service access to 97th Court is proposed 

to be 37.04 feet wide rather than 35 feet as allowed by Section 420-47 D. 

 These variations will allow for an internal shared access drive between the current Phase 1 project 

and the proposed Phase 2 development to the south.  Locating the access drive tight to the shared 

lot line between phases will allow for ingress, egress and internal traffic circulation for residents, 

visitors, delivery trucks, police, fire and rescue vehicle to both developments.  In addition, by 

installing the drive in this location, access for fire protection around the structure is greatly 

enhanced. 

In addition the following is also included in the PUD:  To allow for 96 units in the building with a 

combination of memory care units and assisted living units and to allow the rooms within the facility to 

range in size from 300 square feet to 816 square feet as shown on the Development Plans on Lot 1 and to 

allow a future 66 unit senior living facility with a minimum of 50 underground parking spaces on Lot 2 as 

conceptually approved as phase 2.  [Note:  At the time that Phase 2 is proposed a detailed development 

plans are presented the PUD will be required to be modified.]   

The Zoning Map and the Village Comprehensive Plan are required to be consistent; therefore, the 

Comprehensive 2035 Land Use Map will need to be amended to remove the Urban Reserve land use 

designation prior to the Village Board rezoning the property.  The required public hearing for the Land Use 

Map has been set for the next Plan Commission meeting on September 22, 2014 to provide for the 

required 30 day public notice period.  Subsequent to the Plan Commission meeting the Village Board will 

consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment at their October 6, 2014 meeting. 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #14-31):  As discussed above the On September 15, 2014 

zoning map is proposed to be amended to rezone the property from the R-11 (UHO), Multi-Family 

Residential District with an Urban Landholding Overlay District to the R-11 (PUD), Multi-Family Residential 

District with a Planned Unit Development Overly for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie senior lifestyle 

development.  The Zoning Map and the Village Comprehensive Plan are required to be consistent; 

therefore, the Comprehensive 2035 Land Use Map is proposed to be amended to remove the Urban 

Reserve land use designation from the property (See Exhibit 5).  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Development Agreement and 

Consent of Development Agreement subject to the above comments and the following conditions: 

1. Street lights (residential type-concrete base and pole with Sheridan fixture) shall be installed along 

97th Court and 96th Avenue through a contract with We Energies.  Provide a copy of the contract 

amount to include in the LOC. Submit lighting plans to Village for review.  Any necessary work 

within the roadway for street lighting shall be identified and coordinated with the road project. 

3. The following shall be submitted so that the Development Agreement and Consent of 

Development Agreement can be finalized and executed:  

a. The original CSM executed by the property owners. 

b. The Plans submitted on September 29, 2014 have been approved by the Village Engineering 

Department.  Five (5) full size copies of the Final Off-Site Engineering Plans and 

Specifications for the private and public improvements.   

c. A pdf copy of all plans and the specifications. 

d. Copy of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and performance and payment bonds 

shall be provided to the Village.  The contracts shall have the Developer’s name as shown 

on the title of the property.  The certificates of insurance shall also list the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie as an insured party.  All contractors shall be pre-qualified by the 

Village.  

e. We Energies plan, cost estimate and contract for the required street lights. 

f. The Itemized Cost Breakdown Exhibit (to be drafted by the Village and reviewed by the 

Developer). IMPORTANT:  A draft Letter of Credit equal to the cost breakdown 



6 
 

analysis (need to verify proper format and dollar amount of Letter of Credit prior 

submitting the Original Letter of Credit on bank letterhead). 

g. A Policy of Title Commitment equal to the cost of public improvements shall be provided to 

the Village.  The title policy shall indicate that the public improvements/easements are 

being dedicated free and clear of any encumbrance liens or judgments. The Title Report 

Commitment shall be updated the day before closing and again within 7 days after closing 

and recording of the documents. 

h. The Work in the Right-of-Way Permit. 

i. The Erosion Control Permit application, related plans and permit fee. 

j. A $2,000 street sweeping cash deposit. 

k. A three-year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) to the Village, in the amount of 

125% of the total cost of public related improvements, including municipal sewer/storm and 

water main, street lights street trees, field staking, inspection and construction related 

services for public improvements.  A “draft” LOC shall be provided to the Village for 

staff review.  The “Final” LOC shall be provided prior to the Village at the closing. 

l. Verification of taxes and outstanding special assessments being paid.  Any outstanding 

taxes, special assessments or invoices shall be paid prior to the execution/signing of the 

CSM and Development Agreement and Memorandum of Development Agreement and other 

related documents. 

4. Upon Village Board’s approval of the Development Agreement and Consent to Development 

Agreement and related documents and within 30 days of approval, the Village will hold a closing to 

have the Final documents signed.  The Developer/Owner shall be responsible for recording all 

required documents at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office and provide the proof of 

recording to the Village within 72 hours of closing with the Village.   

5. Following the closing (on the same day), the permit shall be obtained and the Developer’s engineer 

shall conduct a pre-construction meeting with all of the contractors, utilities, Village on-site 

inspectors and Developer representatives (This meeting is required prior to public improvement 

field work commencing).   

a. The Developer’s engineer shall coordinate the set-up of this meeting and shall run the pre-

construction meeting.   

b. The Developer’s engineer shall come prepared with extra copies of the plans and 

specifications, copies of the agenda for the meeting, copies of the construction schedule and 

copies of the listing of emergency contact personnel and phone numbers.  (The Village can 

provide a sample agenda). 

 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Correction Instrument subject to the 

above comments and following conditions: 

1. The Correction Instrument shall be executed by all parties and recorded at the Kenosha County 

Register of Deeds Office prior to recording the new CSM.   

2. A recorded copy of the Correction Instrument shall be provided to the Village within seven (7) days 

of Village Board approval. 

 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Certified Survey Map subject to the 

above comments and the following conditions: 

1. The original CSM shall be executed by all parties and submitted to the Village for Village 

signatures. 

2. Prior to recording the CSM all outstanding taxes and/or special assessments shall be paid in full. 

3. Prior to recording the CSM the Correction Instrument related to CSM 2064 shall be recorded at the 



7 
 

Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office. 

4. A recorded copy of the CSM shall be provided to the Village within 30 days of Village Board 

approval. 

 

Plan Commission recommends that the  Village Board to approve the Zoning Map and Zoning Text 

Amendment (Ord. #14-29 and Ord. #04-30) subject to the above comments and the following 

conditions: 

1. The Zoning Map Amendment and Text Amendment cannot be executed and become effective until 

the CSM is recorded and the recording information is provided to the Village and the Ordinances 

are posted by the Village Clerk. 

2. The Final Development Plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted 

engineering practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design 

engineer is responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for 

their compliance with all state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures. Modifications to the 

plans, etc. may be required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and 

detailed engineering plans are prepared and reviewed.  Revised plans were submitted for review on 

September 29, 2014 and the following changes below shall be made to the plans prior to submittal 

of the Final Development Plans: 

a. Compliance with the attached memorandum from the Fire & Rescue Department dated 

August 23, 2014 and revised September 9, 2014.  Revise the plans and provide comments 

on non-plan changes to address the concerns of the Fire & Rescue Department (Note:  

The plans submitted on September 29, 2014 have not been reviewed by the Fire & 

Rescue Department yet.): 

i. AED. Because of the occupancy type of the building the owner shall install one or 

more public access Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee use in 

the event of a sudden cardiac arrest. The Fire and Rescue Department can provide 

the training necessary to perform CPR and to operate the AED. 

ii. Fire Alarm Control Panel: The FAAP is shown in the first floor main reception area, 

this annunciator must be a full function panel. The main FACP is located in the 

mechanical room, along with the fire sprinkler riser.  

iii. Main lobby access shall be controlled by a keypad similar to the existing facilities in 

the area. The keypad code shall be the same as the other facilities.  

iv. If medical emergency room alarms are installed, the alarms shall be addressable and 

able to transmit the room number to the dispatch center.  

v. Fire safety system plans, such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be 

submitted to the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 

and also to this fire department for review. No installation of any fire protection 

system is allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  

vi. Elevators: The proposed elevators need to comply with the Village of Pleasant Prairie 

Ordinance 180-20 Elevators. In particular section D (1) Acceptable minimum size.  

vii. Fence and gates are located on site. The fire department will need to have access 

control for the gates. Drawing G001 dated 3/11/4 shows key card access. Keys cards 

are not acceptable to the Fire and Rescue Department as we do not carry key cards.  

viii. The entrance canopies will need to be 13' 6" in height at the lowest point. Current 

drawings do not reflect this.  

ix. Landscaping shall not interfere with the pumper pad access or locating the pumper 

pad. Landscaping also shall not interfere with any firefighting equipment, now or in 

the future with growth of the plants.  



8 
 

x. FP 101 dated 3/1/14 shows a Siamese connection on the building, the fire 

department connection must be remote from the building and meet the requirements 

of the Village Ordinance. 

xi. The building owner shall supply a written letter stating that they will maintain access 

to the municipal street hydrants in lieu of providing hydrants on the north and east 

side of their property.  Maintaining access includes snow removal, weed control, etc.    

xii. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that 

can be used as a "severe weather shelter" or "safe haven" during severe weather 

such as a tornado. That area will be identified with signage. 

b. On sheet C-1.06 of the on-site plans it should be noted that P-1 and S-9 shall be backfilled 

with slurry within and up to 5-feet past the roadway. 

c. Further clarification is required related to the plans.  Some plan sheets show a free-standing 

monument sign at both the northeast and northwest corners of the property along Prairie 

Ridge Boulevard (e.g. Sheets C-1.02, C-1.03, C-1.05 and C-1.07) and some plan sheets 

depict only one (1) free-standing monument sign at the northeast corner (e.g. Sheets L-2, 

G001, SE100, SE101 and SE102).  Only one sign is allowed for Lot 1.  Revise the plans and 

provide a sign detail.  Pursuant to the Village Zoning Ordinance a Multifamily Residential 

Development Identification Sign shall meet the following requirements: 

 Minimum setback: five (5) feet from the right-of-way line or property lines, provided the 

signs are not located within any easements.  

 Maximum height: six (6) feet pursuant to the Prairie Ridge Commercial Covenant.  

 Maximum area: 36 square feet per face.  

 Landscaping shall extend a minimum of three feet in every direction from the base or 

other support structure of the sign, except if the sign is located in a boulevard island, 

then the landscaping shall not extend closer than two feet from the back of the curb of 

the boulevard island.  

 May be illuminated.  

 May be placed on two supports or may be placed on a solid-appearing decorative base 

which supports a minimum of 75% of the display of the sign.  

 The sign supports or base shall be constructed of materials that complement the 

materials used in the development.  

3. Material sample boards, including paint samples for all exterior building materials shall be 

submitted for review and approval. 

 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

(Ord. #14-31) as presented. 

 

Village Staff recommends that the Village Board approve the Resolution #14-27 as presented. 



 

8044 88th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015    Phone 262.694.8027    Fax 262.697.1901    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the  

Chief of Fire & Rescue  

Doug McElmury 

 
 

VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 
FROM:  Doug McElmury, Chief Fire & Rescue Department 
CC:  Deputy Chief, Craig Roepke 

Lt. Thomas Clark, Fire and Rescue Department 
  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 
SUBJECT: Review of the Final Development Plans for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, 

Prairie Ridge Boulevard and 97th Court  
DATE:  23 August 2014, Updated September 9, 2014. 
 
 
The Fire and Rescue Department will be responsible for providing fire prevention inspections of 
this facility, twice annually. The concerns of the Fire and Rescue Department are as follows: 
 

1.  Distribution of Comments: the person who obtains the building permit to all 
Contractors and Subcontractors affected by this document shall distribute Copies of 
these comments. This document outlines critical times and deadlines. All recipients of 
this document need to become familiar with the contents. 

 
2. Compliance: A letter shall be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department prior to 

receiving a building permit, stating that the project will comply with all requirements 
addressed within this document. 

 
3. In the event a conflict in code(s) is identified, or a conflict with the insurance carrier 

criteria occurs, the more stringent shall apply.  In the event this conflicts with any codes 
adopted by the State of Wisconsin, the owner must petition the State directly for a 
variance.  The Owner must demonstrate that they will provide materials or design 
equivalent to the code or that they will exceed the code when petitioning the State and 
or Village when applicable. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

Upon review of the plans submitted, we have the following concerns: 

 AED. Because of the occupancy type of the building the owner shall install one or more 
public access Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee use in the 
event of a sudden cardiac arrest. The Fire and Rescue Department can provide the 
training necessary to perform CPR and to operate the AED. 
 

 Fire Alarm Control Panel: The FAAP is shown in the first floor main reception area, this 
annunciator must be a full function panel. The main FACP is located in the mechanical 
room, along with the fire sprinkler riser.  
 

 Main lobby access shall be controlled by a keypad similar to the existing facilities in the 
area. The keypad code shall be the same as the other facilities.  
 

 If medical emergency room alarms are installed, the alarms shall be addressable and 
able to transmit the room number to the dispatch center.  
 

 Fire safety system plans, such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be 
submitted to the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services and 
also to this fire department for review. No installation of any fire protection system is 
allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  

 

 Elevators: The proposed elevators need to comply with the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Ordinance 180-20 Elevators. In particular section D (1) Acceptable minimum size.  
 

 Fence and gates are located on site. The fire department will need to have access control for 
the gates. Drawing G001 dated 3/11/4 shows key card access. Keys cards are not acceptable 
to the Fire and Rescue Department as we do not carry key cards.  
 

 The entrance canopies will need to be 13’ 6” in height at the lowest point. Current drawings 
do not reflect this.  
 

 Landscaping shall not interfere with the pumper pad access or locating the pumper pad. 
Landscaping also shall not interfere with any firefighting equipment, now or in the future 
with growth of the plants.  
 

 FP 101 dated 3/1/14 shows a Siamese connection on the building, the fire department 
connection must be remote from the building and meet the requirements of the Village 
Ordinance. 
 

 The building owner shall supply a written letter stating that they will maintain access to the 
municipal street hydrants in lieu of providing hydrants on the north and east side of their 
property.  Maintaining access includes snow removal, weed control, etc.    
 
 
 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

 Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that can be 
used as a “severe weather shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 
That area will be identified with signage. 
 

4. Fire and Rescue Department Review and Comments: 

A.  Site and Operational Permits 

1. Site accessibility   
2. Pumper Pad   Included on drawings  
3. Fire hydrant spacing       
  

B.  Conditional Use and Operational  

1. Standpipe outlet locations  Not shown at this time. 
2. Fire alarm pull stations   Not shown at this time. 
3. Emergency and Exit Lighting  Not shown at this time.   

    4.    Fire extinguishers    
 
5. Plan Review, Permits and Fees:  The plans for the fire protection underground, 

aboveground and fire alarm system shall be submitted for review a minimum of four (4) 
weeks before installation is scheduled to begin.  The Village will use an independent fire 
safety consultant for review of all fire protection plans submitted.  A satisfactory review 
must be completed before any permits will be issued and before construction can begin. 
 

6. Insurance Carrier: The Owner of this project shall submit to the insurance carrier for 
review the plans for both underground water distribution and fire protection prior to 
construction. The Fire & Rescue Department shall receive a copy of the comments when 
plans are submitted for review. 
 

7. The following information must be submitted with the sprinkler plans for review: 
Building height:     
Number of stories/floors:    
Elevators:      
Hazard class: 
Square footage of the building, each floor:   
Fire protection: 
 
 
 

8. The following Fees and Permits are generated directly from the Fire & Rescue 
Department. 
 
NOTE: Permits are required from the Fire & Rescue Department for the installation of 
water main in addition to any permits required by other Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Departments. 
 Bulk Water 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

o Water Usage  
o Fire Protection Plans for Underground and Aboveground 
o Fire Alarm System Plans 
o Kitchen Hood Systems Plans 

o Occupancy Permit & Re-Inspection fees 
 

Permit fees shall be paid prior to review. Work cannot begin until all permits have been 
issued. A typical review turnaround is four weeks.      

 
 

9. Required Licenses:  A Wisconsin licensed fire protection contractor and Wisconsin licensed 
sprinkler fitters must install underground fire mains and aboveground fire protection.  
Periodic inspections of the job site will be made by fire inspectors to assure compliance. 

 
10. Pre-Construction Meeting:  A pre-construction meeting shall take place with the general 

contractor, the fire protection contractor, the Fire and Rescue Department and any other 
sub-contractor prior to the installation of any underground fire protection.  The purpose 
of this meeting is to assure that the requirements of the State of Wisconsin that only a 
Wisconsin licensed sprinkler fitter shall perform the installation of all devices, etc.  All 
parties will be asked to initial this document and or permit.  Any violation of the 
installing requirements will be reported in writing to the State of Wisconsin Department 
of Safety and Professional Services. 

 
11. Site Access:  Access shall be provided around the perimeter of the site for all Fire 

Department apparatus, and must comply with the State of Wisconsin and the 
International Building Code, 2009 edition. A minimum wall-to-wall turning radius of 
45’-0” shall be allowed for apparatus movement.   

a. All exterior exit pathways shall have a hard surface, leading to a hard surface.  
  

12. Sprinkler System:  The building shall be equipped with an “automatic fire sprinkler 
system”.  The systems shall be designed and constructed to the current edition of NFPA 
13, Automatic Fire Sprinklers and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-16, 
Automatic Fire Sprinklers. 

 
13. Water Service:  If it is determined that the building will be serviced by a combination 

municipal water and fire protection main, that main must be sized by the fire protection 
(sprinkler) contractor. No main is allowed to travel underground, under the building.  

 
14. Plan Review (Underground): A review of the underground drawings is required along 

with the fire protection drawings before a permit will be issued by the Fire and Rescue 
Department. Underground plans shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) weeks before 
installation begins. 

 
15. Standpipes:  In lieu of 1.5 inch hose stations, the building shall be equipped with 

standpipes that shall consist of 2-½ inch NST valve, capable of delivering 250 GPM, at 75 
PSI measured at the standpipe valve, when supplied by the fire department pumper.  



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

The standpipes shall be wet and placed in the landing of each stairwell.  
 
 

16. Fire Hydrants:  Fire hydrants shall be spaced no more than 350 feet apart around the 
perimeter of the building, per Village Ordinance 180-16. The insurance carrier must 
agree in writing to the hydrant spacing. As many hydrants as possible shall be supplied 
directly by municipal water.  The distance from the finished grade line to the lowest 
discharge shall be no less than 18 inches and no more than 23 inches.  The Fire 
Department connections shall be located, and of sufficient height where typical snow fall 
or snow removal operations will not obstruct access.  
 

17. Fire Hydrant Acceptance: This project will include the installation of water mains for 
domestic and fire protection use. Prior to the fire sprinkler system connection to any 
new water mains (including water mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building 
and risers) must be hydrostatically tested flushed according to National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA–National Fire Code) Standard 24 and witnessed by the Fire Chief 
and or the Chief’s representative, the installing contractor and the fire sprinkler 
contractor at a minimum.  

 
18. Fire hydrant and water main flushing can be disruptive to the job site and requires 

significant coordination of all sub-contractors by the General Contractor. Nonetheless 
flushing is an essential part of assuring public safety. 
 

19. The General Contractor is highly encouraged to coordinate the flushing of all new water 
mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building and risers with both the sub-
contractors responsible, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Engineering Department, Fire and 
Rescue Department and the Water Utility Department, prior to seeking a ‘clean water 
sample’ on this site.  
 
NOTE: The Fire Protection Designer must meet with the Fire and Rescue Department 
before the underground drawings are submitted for review to finalize the placement of 
the hydrants. 

 
20. Pumper Pad:  There shall be dedicated space for a fire engine to have unobstructed 

access to the Pumper Pad.  Both the Fire Department Sprinkler connection and the fire 
hydrant shall be installed remote from the building and located a minimum distance 
from the building equal to the highest wall.  The fire hydrant shall be located no more 
than five (5) feet from the roadway and the Fire Department sprinkler connection shall 
be placed no more than five (5) feet from the fire hydrant.  The Fire Department 
connection shall be constructed along with an underground drain with access for 
inspection.  A guideline detail is attached and is meant to illustrate the requirements 
needed to meet the requirements stated in Village Ordinance 180-16. 

 
NOTE: The Fire Department Connection riser shall include a single five (5) inch Storz fitting. 
 
 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

21. Bollards:  Shall be placed near fire hydrants, remote post indicator valves (PIV) and Fire 
Department connection(s) to prevent damage.  Bollards shall be 6 inches in diameter. 
Bollards shall not obstruct charged fire hoses.  It is recommended that the Fire 
Department approve the location of the bollard(s) before final placement is made.  

 
22. Strobe Light:  A strobe light shall be provided for each riser and installed vertically 

above each sprinkler water flow bell. The strobe light shall operate for a sprinkler water 
flow.  The lens color shall be RED.  The strobe light shall meet Village specifications as 
found in section 180-16 K of the Sprinkler Ordinance. 

 
23. Fire Alarm System:  The system shall be fully addressable so that detailed 

information will be received about the device in alarm.  Utilizing a fire pull station, 
sprinkler water flow, or any other fire detection device that maybe installed in this 
building shall activate the internal fire alarm system.  
 

a. Manual Fire Alarm Pull Stations:  Shall be located at a minimum, immediately 
adjacent to each exterior door. Any additional exterior doors will be required to meet 
this requirement. The pull station shall not be placed in the area of the door, but 
immediately adjacent to the door jamb. 

b. Pull Stations and Audiovisual Alarms:  Shall be installed per ADA requirements. 

c. Smoke and Heat Detection:  Shall be installed as required. 

d. Tamper Switches:  Tamper switches shall be placed on all sprinkler valves and be 
identified on the annunciator panel. 

e. Fire Alarm Control Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be 
approved by the Fire & Rescue Department. The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall be 
located within the Fire Pump Room. The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler water 
flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull stations and any other fire 
detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

f. Annunciator Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be 
approved by the Fire and Rescue Department. The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler 
water flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull stations and any 
other fire detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

 

g. Central Station:  The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall transmit all fire alarm, tamper, 
trouble and supervisory signals to a central station that is certified by Underwriters 
Laboratories (UL) and/or Factory Mutual (FM) and approved by the Fire & Rescue 
Department. The owner shall provide such documentation for approval. It is 
recommended that the owner consult with the Fire & Rescue Department prior to 
signing any contracts with the Central station. 
1) The central station shall be provided with this information regarding the 

geographical location of this alarm: 
   
 Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin 
 

  Fire:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
  Medical:  Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

 
  Phone numbers: 
  Emergency:   (262) 694-1402 
  Non-emergency: (262) 694-7105 
  Business:  (262) 694-8027 

 
 

24. Knox Box:  Knox Boxes shall be provided for the building, one each provided on the 
West, East (vestibule) and South side of the building. The Knox Boxes shall be Model 
4400, and of the recessed type. Two sets of all keys (Master, fire alarm pull station, 
annunciator, elevator, etc.) shall be placed within the box, as well as a copy of the pre-
fire plan.   

 
25. MSDS Knox Box: A minimum of One (1) Knox Box(s) designed for Material Safety Data 

Sheet storage shall be provided to contain the data sheets on all products that are 
considered hazardous within the facility. The MSDS Box(s) shall be installed at a 
location acceptable to both the owner and the fire department.  

 
26. Fire Extinguishers:  Shall meet NFPA 10 (Portable Fire Extinguishers) for the specific 

use of the building and be in sufficient number. The company providing the fire 
extinguishers shall submit a letter to the Fire and Rescue Department stating the 
locations and size of the extinguishers are in compliance with NFPA 10. 

 
27. Emergency and Exit Lighting:  Exit and Emergency Lighting shall be provided and shall 

have battery backup. Combination units are acceptable and recommended.  An 
Emergency Generator eliminates the need for battery backup.  Exit and Emergency 
Lighting shall not be placed on electrical circuits that cannot be disturbed or interrupted, 
this is for test purposes.  These circuits shall be clearly labeled.  

 
28. Final Inspection:  The General Contractor shall provide the following documentation at 

the time the Final Inspection takes place and before a building occupancy certificate will 
be issued. 

a. The fire protection contractor shall provide the owner with a letter (upon completion 
of the sprinkler work) stating the sprinkler system, or portion thereof, is “100% 
operational and built according to the design”, Village Ordinance, 180-16 N. 

b. Copy of contract with fire alarm central monitoring station. 
c. Copy of UL and/or FM certificate(s) for the fire alarm central monitoring station. 
d. Copies of the fire protection underground flushing documents. 
e. Copies of the underground and fire sprinkler hydrostatic test certificates. 
f. Copies of the fire sprinkler operational test certificates. 
g. Copies of the fire alarm test documents. 
h. Copies of other test documents such as, hood/duct, smoke, etc… 
i. The Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Department shall have all information needed for 

our pre-fire plan prior to occupancy. 
j. Provide two- (2) CD’s, one for the property owner and one for the Fire and Rescue 

Department.  The disks shall include all Floor plans and fire protection plans for the 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

building in an as-built condition.   
k. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall provide for both the Owner and the Fire & 

Rescue Department the area within the building that can be used as a “severe weather 
shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 

l. Maps of the fire alarm and fire sprinkler system shall be placed in the fire pump room, near 
the fire alarm control panel; the maps shall be hung on the wall, with a waterproof 
covering and accessible to firefighters wearing bulky clothes and equipment. 

m. AED, in place at such time there is occupancy. 
n. A copy of the Emergency Plan must be submitted to the Fire and Rescue Department 

before occupancy. 
o. Occupancy inspection fee and re-inspection fee will be assessed at the final inspection in 

accordance with ordinance 180-17. 
 

29.  Occupancy:  All fire and life safety requirements must be in place prior to any building 
being occupied. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

Office of the Building Inspection Superintendent  
Sandro Perez 

  

Village Staff Memorandum 

 

 

 

 

To:               Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 

 

From:          Sandro Perez, Building Inspection Superintendent 

 

Subject:       Site &Op’s review for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie   

 

Date:            August 26, 2014  

               

 

1. Building Inspection Department information: 

Hours:  Mon-Fri, 8am-5pm. 

 Phone# 262-694-9304 

 Email: buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com 

 

2. Permit applications can be found online at pleasantprairieonline.com  

 

3. Inspections are performed Mon- Fri 9am-4pm except electrical inspections; those are only Tue 

& Thu mornings. 48hr notice is required to schedule an inspection. Please note you must call 

and speak with a Building Inspection Department representative a voicemail or email will not 

constitute an inspection please plan accordingly. Final occupancy inspections require 

coordination with multiple departments and staff members there for a minimum of 72 hour 

notice is required. Any re-inspection fees due must be paid prior to scheduling a re-inspection. 

 

4. All contractors requiring permits shall not commence work until permit issuance. We have 10 

business days to review and issue permits please plan accordingly. 

 

5. We inspect to the 2009 IBC, IEBC, IMC, IECC, IFGC, 2003 ANSI A117.1, 2011 NEC and WI. 

Plumbing code SPS 381-386. 

 

6. All state approved drawing must be available at job site for inspector review. 

 

7. Please submit emergency egress path / lighting plan and energy compliance worksheets form 

SBD 10512 to Building Inspection Department prior to issuance of building permit.  

 

8. Fire alarm systems require two permits and two inspections, one from the Fire Department and 

one from the Building Inspection Department. 

 

9. Any exterior building fire protection loop will require inspection by both the Fire Department 

and Building Inspection Department. 

 

10. VOPP recommends all exterior lot and building lighting to be LED and Dark Sky compliant. 

 

11. Any tradesmen requiring state license will be “carded” on the jobsite for compliance. 

mailto:buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com


 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

12. All equipment must be “LISTED” by a nationally recognized testing laboratory. 

 

13. Documentation of available fault current at equipment must be provided to verify short circuit 

current rating compliance per 2011 NEC 110.10. 

 

14. All equipment, materials, etc. must be rated for the environment in which they will be used. 

 

15.  Provide proper working clearance for all line voltage VAV’s per 2011 NEC. 

 

16. Provide selective coordination study for all emergency systems per 2011 NEC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

    

 
                                                                                                                                                                               

 

 
 

 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

 

THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

AND 

 

SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 

 

REGARDING 

 

THE 

 

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

 

10/__/2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

- i - 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

AND 

 

SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 

 

REGARDING 

 

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 
 

Preamble and Recitals……………………………………………………………………………1 

 

1. Required Public Improvements to be Provided, Installed and Constructed by the 

Developer………………………………………………………………………………....2 

 

 1.1 General Provisions Relating to Required Public Improvements ..................... 2 

 

 1.2 Required Public and Private Street Improvements .......................................... 4 

 

 1.3 Required Public and Private Curb and Gutter ................................................. 5 

 

 1.4 Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements .................................. 5 

 

 1.5 Required Public Water System Improvements ................................................. 6 

 

 1.6 Required Public and Private Storm Sewer and Drainage Systems 

Improvements ....................................................................................................... 6 

 

 1.7 Required Public Landscaping Improvements ................................................... 7 

 

 1.8 Required Private Utilities .................................................................................... 9 

 

 1.9 Required Public Street Lights ........................................................................... 10 

 

 1.10 Required Public Street Signs ............................................................................. 10 

 

 1.11 Survey Monuments ............................................................................................ 10 

 

 

2. Intentionally Omitted ...................................................................................................... 11 

 

3. Developer’s Obligations not Contingent ....................................................................... 11 

 

4. Contractors and Contracts ............................................................................................. 11 

 

 4.1   Qualified Contractors ............................................................................................. 11 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- ii - 

 4.2   Village Review of Contracts ................................................................................... 11 

 4.3   Village Approval of Presubmitted Contracts ........................................................ 11 

 

5. Warranty; Hold Harmless and Indemnification .......................................................... 12 

 

6. Irrevocable Letter of Credit ........................................................................................... 13 

 

7. Supplemental Letter of Credit ....................................................................................... 17 

 

8. Dedications of Land or Interests in Land...................................................................... 17 

 

9. Dedications of Public Improvements ............................................................................. 18 

 

10. Title Insurance and Lien Waivers.................................................................................. 20 

 

  10.1   Dedications of Land or Interests in Land ............................................................ 20 

  10.2   Dedications of Required Public Improvements .................................................. 20 

 

11. Developer’s Ownership Representations and Warranties ........................................... 21 

 

 11.1   Land………………………………………………………………………………20 

 11.2   Improvements ........................................................................................................ 21 

 

12. Developer’s Hazardous Materials Representation and Warranty ............................. 21 

 

13. Restrictions, Covenants and Easements Running With the Land .............................. 22 

 

14. Miscellaneous Fees .......................................................................................................... 22 

 

15. Engineering Review Fees ................................................................................................ 22 

 

16. Connection Fees ............................................................................................................... 23 

 

17. Payment of Taxes and Special Assessments .................................................................. 23 

 

18. Left Blank Intentionally .. ………………………………………………………………23 

 

19. Commencement of Construction.................................................................................... 23 

 

20. Erosion Control ............................................................................................................... 24 

 

21. Cleanup/Restricted Access .............................................................................................. 24 

 

22. Wetlands Protection ........................................................................................................ 25 

 

23. Construction Access…………………………………………………………………….25 

 

24. Entrance Sign………………………………………………………………...…………25 

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- iii - 

25. Construction Staking and Field Inspection ................................................................... 25 

 

26. Village Maintenance ........................................................................................................ 25 

 

27. Village Snowplowing Maintenance ................................................................................ 25 

 

28. Right of Entry ………………………………………………………………………...  26 

 

29. Permits …………………………. .................................................................................... 26 

 

30. Stop-Work Orders ........................................................................................................... 26 

 

31. Organizational Documents ............................................................................................. 26 

 

32. Delivery of Mail ............................................................................................................... 26 

 

33. Private Utilities Cost ....................................................................................................... 27 

 

34. Hours of Construction Activities .................................................................................... 27 

 

35. Intentionally Omitted ...................................................................................................... 27 

 

36. Remedies of the Village ................................................................................................... 27 

 

37. Remedies of the Developer .............................................................................................. 27 

 

38. Notice of Breach and Curative Activity ......................................................................... 28 

 

39. Notices…………………………………………………………...………………………29 

 

40. No Third-Party Beneficiaries ......................................................................................... 29 

 

41. Applicability of Land Division and Development Control 

 Ordinance ......................................................................................................................... 30 

 

42. Amendment of Agreement .............................................................................................. 30 

 

43. Amendment of Ordinance .............................................................................................. 30 

 

44. Severability…………………………………………………...…………………………30 

 

45. Binding Agreement; Assignment ................................................................................... 30 

 

46. No Threat to Public Health or Safety ............................................................................ 31 

 

47. Good Faith and Fair Dealing .......................................................................................... 31 

 

48. Memorandum of Development Agreement ................................................................... 31 

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- iv - 

49. Entire Agreement ............................................................................................................ 31 

 

50. No Rule of Construction Against Drafter ..................................................................... 32 

 

51. Governing Law ................................................................................................................ 32 

 

52. Effective Date……………………………………………...……………………………32 

 

53. Unavoidable Delay ........................................................................................................... 32 

 

54. Incorporation of Recitals ................................................................................................ 32 

 

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 
Development Agreement 
10/__/14 

 

- v - 

 

 

 

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

LISTING OF EXHIBITS 

 

 

EXHIBIT A Ownership Documentation  

EXHIBIT B  The Addison Certified Survey Map/Legal Description 

EXHIBIT C None  

EXHIBIT D The Public and Private Improvements Cost Estimate 

EXHIBIT E  Construction Plans for the Addison, Pleasant Prairie Off-Site   

   Pavement, Drainage and Utility Improvements Plans and Specifications  

   and Easement 

 

EXHIBIT F  Form of Letter of Credit for Senior Lifestyle Development Company,  

   LLC 

 

EXHIBIT G None  

EXHIBIT H The Contracts, Performance and Payments Bonds and Certificates of 

Insurance 

 

EXHIBIT I Title Insurance Commitment 

 

EXHIBIT J Erosion Control Plan 

 

EXHIBIT K Memorandum of Development Agreement  

 

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 
Development Agreement 
10/__/14 

 

- 1 - 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

AND 

SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 

REGARDING 

THE 

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
 

 This Development Agreement (hereinafter referred to as this “Agreement”) is 

entered into by and between SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, 

LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the “Developer”), with a business address 

of 303 E. Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60601 and the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a 

Wisconsin municipal corporation with offices located at 9915 39
th

 Avenue, Pleasant 

Prairie, Wisconsin 53158 (the “Village”) regarding the development of The Addison of 

Pleasant Prairie (the “Development”), as of the ___ day of October, 2014. 
 

Witnesseth: 
 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is acquiring Lots 1 & 2 of the Certified Survey Map 

attached hereto as Exhibit B of Incorporated herein by reference (the “Addison Certified 

Survey Map”) (which will be referred to herein as the “Property”); and 

  

WHEREAS, VK Arbor LLC (a/k/a the original Prairie Ridge Senior Campus 

Developer) and the Village executed a Development Agreement dated January  17, 2005 

(the “Original Development Agreement”) for the Required Public and Private 

Improvements servicing property which includes, without limitation, the Property; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Board has adopted a resolution dated October ___, 

2014, which sets forth a portion of the Phase 1 & 2 Required Public Improvements as 

referenced in the Original Development Agreement that have been completed, inspected, 

tested and accepted by the Village and which are no longer the obligation of the 

Developer, except as set forth below; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer, as a part of the purchase of the Property, is agreeing 

to take over responsibilities and obligations for the completion of certain Required Public 

and Private Improvements described in the Original Development Agreement as it 

pertains to the Property, as more fully described on Exhibit D and E attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Village enter into this 

Development Agreement to specify and outline the Developer responsibilities and 

obligations regarding the proposed development of Senior Housing on the Property (the 

“Development”); and        

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 2 - 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board approved the Addison Certified Survey Map on 

October __, 2014, subject to certain conditions, one of which is that the Developer shall 

enter into this Agreement with the Village; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsection 236.13(2)(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes provides that, as 

a condition of approving the Addison Certified Survey Map, the Village will require the 

Developer to make and install or to have made and installed any required private 

improvements and contemplated public improvements that are reasonably necessary for 

the proposed Development; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village's budget and public works schedule do not include the 

installation of improvements that are reasonably necessary and required for the proposed 

development of the Property, and there would be a substantial delay in the construction 

and installation of such improvements but for this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsection 236.13(2)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes provides that, as 

a condition for accepting the dedication of public streets and other public ways, the 

Village will require that designated public improvements and facilities, constructed 

according to Village specifications and under Village inspection, shall have been 

previously provided, without cost to the Village; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsection 236.45(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes empowers the 

Village to adopt ordinances governing the development of land that are more restrictive 

than the provisions of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and the Village has done 

so; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Development would impose substantial burdens upon 

the Village, but for this Agreement, which can appropriately be mitigated by this 

Agreement; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual provisions of this 

Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the Developer and the Village hereby agree as follows: 

 

1.  Required Public and Private Improvements to be Provided, Installed and Constructed 

by the Developer. 

 

1.1  General Provisions relating to Required Public and Private Improvements.  

Except as is otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, the public 

improvements described below (hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

"Required Public Improvements") shall be designed, provided, installed, 

constructed and completed by the Developer, at the Developer's cost and to the 

Village's satisfaction, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  The 

Developer and the Village hereby acknowledge and agree that certain roadways to 

be constructed by Developer and identified as 96
th

 Avenue, and 81
st
 Street 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 3 - 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Private Streets”) shall remain private 

and not be dedicated to the Village; however the sanitary sewer system, storm 

sewer system, and water system improvements located underneath such Private 

Streets and which are part of the Required Public Improvements will remain 

public and be dedicated to the Village along with certain easements for access to 

such Required Public Improvements as identified on the Addison Certified Survey 

Map.  The Village hereby acknowledges and agrees that the street to be 

constructed by Developer and identified as 97
th

 Court, including without 

limitation the related sanitary sewer system, storm sewer system and water system 

improvements, shall remain public and be dedicated to the Village as provided 

herein.  The Developer and its Contractors may enter the 97
th

 Court public right of 

way to construct the Required Public and Private Improvements described herein. 

All parties acknowledge some of the Required Public and Private Improvements 

are being constructed on property owned by third Parties.  

 

The following Required Public Improvements must be completed prior to any 

verbal or written occupancy permit being issued by the Village for any buildings 

or developments on the Property. The Required Public Improvements and any 

related Required Private Improvements relating to the Development are those 

described in (Exhibits D and E) attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference. Generally, the items included in the Required Public and Private 

Improvements to be completed by the Developer, as shown on (Exhibits D and 

E), include, without limitation, the following: 

 

 1.1.1 Roadway improvements for 97
th

 Court shall be fully improved 

 from  94
th

 Avenue to Prairie Ridge Boulevard, including installing 5 foot 

 concrete sidewalks on both sides and Parkway street trees. 97
th

 Court shall 

 be constructed to the Village’s new standard composite pavement section 

 (7 inches of concrete overlaid with 1.75 inch HMA).  

 

 1.1.2 Roadway improvements for 96
th

 Avenue from 97
th

 Court to 81
st
 

 Street and on 81
st
 Street shall be final asphalt paved to support the 

 development. Also, the existing portion of 96
th

 Avenue from 81
st
  Street 

 to Prairie Ridge Boulevard shall be fully improved. Five (5) foot 

 concrete sidewalks shall also be installed along both sides of 96
th

 

 Avenue.  

 

 1.1.3  Public street trees shall be installed along 97
th

 Court (East and West 

 side), 96
th

 Avenue (West side), 96
th

 Avenue (missing trees along the East 

 side), 81
st
 Street (missing trees along the North side), and a street tree 

 missing along Prairie Ridge Boulevard. Street tree types (minimum of a 2 

 inch caliper) and location shall be planted per the Village approved street 

 tree list.  

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 4 - 

 1.1.4  Public street lights (residential type-concrete base and pole with 

 Sheridan fixture) shall be installed along 97
th

 Court and 96
th

 Avenue per a 

 Village approved plan. The street lights shall be paid for by the Developer 

 and owned and maintained by WE-Energies.  

 

 1.1.5  Public street signs shall be installed pursuant to Village 

 requirements.  

 

 1.1.6  Sanitary sewer service for the Phase 1 building shall be a public 

sanitary extension from 98
th

 Circle to the manhole on 97
th

 Court.  

 

 1.1.7  Off-site storm water drainage basin work shall be completed.  

 

 1.1.8  To the extent that the Civil Engineering Plans and Specifications 

(Exhibit E) differ from the general description in items 1.1.1 through 1.1.7, the 

Civil Engineering Plants and Specifications shall control.  

 

1.2  Required Public and Private Street Improvements. The Developer shall 

complete the construction and installation of all Required Public Improvements 

and any related Required Private Improvements in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement and the applicable provisions of the Village’s Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance.  

 

  The Required Public and Private Street Improvements shall be completed 

 in accordance with the following:  
 

(a)  Under the Village’s typical public improvement schedule, as 

outlined in the Village’s Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public 

Improvements), the Required Public Street Improvements shall, be 

installed, completed, and constructed by the Developer, inspected 

and conditionally approved by the Village pursuant to a Letter of 

Substantial Completion, and dedicated by the Developer and 

formally accepted by the Village Board within one (1) year after 

the Effective Date (hereinafter defined). 
 

(b)  All required Public and Private Improvements must be 

completed prior to any verbal or written occupancy permit being 

issued by the Village for any buildings or developments on the 

Property. The Village is not responsible for any snowplowing or 

maintenance of 97
th

 Court until after the Village has accepted 

dedication of 97
th

 Court by the adoption by the Village Board of a 

Resolution formerly accepting its dedication. Prior to acceptance 

of dedication by the Village Board, the Developer shall be solely 

responsible to barricade or otherwise prevent public access to the 

roads to be constructed as described herein and to place signs on 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 5 - 

each end of 97
th

 Court indicating “Road Closed”, “no public 

access” or “construction vehicles only”.  

1.3  Required Public and Private Curb and Gutter. 

 

 The Developer shall design, locate, provide, construct and install all required 

concrete curb and gutter improvements in the streets in the Property which are 

depicted and described on (Exhibits D and E) and are hereinafter collectively 

referred to as the "Required Public and Private Curb and Gutter"), to be 

completed in a workmanlike manner and in accordance with such Exhibits and the 

Addison Certified Survey Map, and the applicable provisions of the Village 

Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public Improvements) and the Construction Site 

Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance.  The Developer and the Village 

acknowledge and agree that the Curb and Gutter to be installed along 96
th

 Avenue 

shall remain private and not be dedicated to the Village; however the Curb and 

Gutter to be installed along 97
th

 Court shall remain public and be dedicated to the 

Village as provided herein. 

1.4  Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements. 

 

 1.4.1  The Developer shall design, locate, provide, construct and install all 

required public sanitary sewer system improvements in the Development 

depicted and described in (Exhibit E) (hereinafter collectively referred to 

as the "Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements") in a 

workmanlike manner and in accordance with (Exhibits D and E), the 

Addison Certified Survey Map (Exhibit B), and the applicable provisions 

of the Village Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public Improvements).  The 

Village acknowledges and agrees that although portions of the Required 

Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements may be installed underneath 

the Private Streets, the Required Public Sanitary System Improvements 

shall remain public and be dedicated to the Village along with certain 

easements for access to such improvements as identified on the Addison 

Certified Survey Map.     
 

 1.4.2  The Developer shall complete construction of the Required Public 

Sanitary Sewer System Improvements before commencement of  

 construction and installation of the aggregate base course. 
 

1.4.3  The Village shall televise the Required Public Sanitary Sewer 

System Improvements and shall conduct such cleaning of the sanitary 

sewer mains which are part of the Required Public Sanitary Sewer System 

Improvements as may be necessary to facilitate such televising, at the 

Developer's cost, after the aggregate base course has been completed, 

proof-rolled and tested and at the time of the Village’s final inspection at 

the time that the Developer’s one-year warranty of such improvements is 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 6 - 

set to expire.  The estimated cost of such cleaning and televising shall be 

included in the Letter of Credit. The Developer shall conduct such 

cleaning of the Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements 

(other than the catch basins) as may be necessary to facilitate such 

televising, at the Developer’s cost, after the aggregate base course has 

been completed, proof-rolled and tested and at the time of the Village’s 

final inspection at the time that the Developer’s one-year warranty of such 

improvements is set to expire.  Promptly after the Village’s initial 

inspection, cleaning, televising, and acceptance of the Required Public 

Sanitary Sewer System Improvements, the Developer shall take such 

action as is necessary to connect and otherwise render such improvements 

usable.   
 

 1.5  Required Public Water System Improvements. 

 

 1.5.1  The Developer shall design, locate, provide, construct and install all 

required public water supply and distribution system improvements if any, 

described in (Exhibits D and E)  (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

the "Required Public Water System Improvements"), in a workmanlike 

manner and in accordance with (Exhibits D and E), the Addison Certified 

Survey Map (Exhibit B), and the applicable provisions of the Village 

Land Division and Development Control Ordinance.  The Village 

acknowledges and agrees that although portions of the Required Public 

Water System Improvements may be installed underneath the Private 

Streets, the Required Water System Improvements shall remain public and 

be dedicated to the Village along with certain easements for access to such 

improvements as identified on the Addison Certified Survey Map. 

 

 1.5.2  The Developer shall complete the installation of the Required Public 

Water System Improvements before the installation of the aggregate base 

course. 

 

 1.5.3  Upon the Village’s inspection, water sampling, testing and 

conditional approval of the dedicated Required Public Water System 

Improvements pursuant to a Letter of Substantial Completion and the 

Village’s acceptance thereof, the Developer shall promptly take such 

actions as are necessary to connect and otherwise render such 

improvements usable.     

1.6 Required Public and Private Storm Sewer and Drainage System               

Improvements. 

  

 1.6.1  The Developer shall design, locate, provide, construct, install, repair 

and perform all required grading and the required storm sewer and 

drainage system improvements in the Development, on the private 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 7 - 

property and in the public right-of-ways, and in the storm water retention 

facilities, all of which public and private grading and improvements are 

depicted and described (Exhibits D and E).  (Such public and private 

 storm water facility and retention basin grading and improvements being 

hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Required Public and Private 

Storm Sewer and Drainage System Improvements"), in a workmanlike 

manner and in accordance with (Exhibits D and E), the Addison Certified 

Survey Map (Exhibit B), and the applicable provisions of the Village’s 

Land Division and Development Control Ordinance.  The Village 

acknowledges and agrees that although portions of the Required Public 

Storm Sewer System Improvements may be installed underneath the 

Private Streets, the Required Public Storm System Improvements shall 

remain public and be dedicated to the Village along with certain 

easements for access to such improvements as identified on the Addison 

Certified Survey Map. A pond which is off-site will be serving the 

Property. The Developer shall deliver to the Village an Easement 

acceptable to the Village allowing the Village and Developer to have 

access to the off-site retention pond serving the Property, which will be in 

the form attached hereto as part of Exhibit E and incorporated herein by 

reference.    

 

1.6.2  The Developer shall complete the installation of all sub-grade 

Required Public and Private Storm Sewer and Drainage System 

Improvements before the installation of the aggregate base course.  
 

 1.6.3  The Village shall televise, and conduct such catch basin cleaning of 

the Required Public Storm Sewer and Drainage System Improvements as 

may be necessary to facilitate such televising, at the Developer's cost, and 

at the time of the Village’s final inspection at the time that the Developer’s 

one-year warranty of such improvements is set to expire.  The estimated 

cost of such cleaning and televising shall be included in the Letter of 

Credit. Promptly after the Village’s initial inspection, catch basin cleaning, 

televising, and acceptance of the Required Public Storm Sewer and 

Drainage System Improvements, the Developer shall take such action as is 

necessary to connect and otherwise render such improvements usable.   

1.7  Required Public Landscaping Improvements. 

All of the grading, site stabilization, and landscaping described in this Paragraph 

will hereinafter be collectively referred to as the "Required Public Landscaping 

Improvements". 

 

  1.7.1  The Developer shall provide and install street trees, plantings and 

other landscaping materials within the public rights-of-way and/or private 

easements in accordance with (Exhibits D and E) (the “Required Public 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 8 - 

Landscaping Improvements”), the Addison Certified Survey Map (Exhibit 

B) and the applicable provisions of the Village’s Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance. 
 

  1.7.2  The Developer shall not commence the installation of the Required 

Public Landscaping Improvements until the Required Public and Private 

Curb and Gutter Improvements have been installed by the Developer and 

inspected and approved by the Village. 

 

 1.7.3  The Developer shall provide written verification that the Required 

Landscaping Improvements planted within the public right-of-ways and/or 

private easements were installed in accordance with the approved 

Landscaping Plan.  Subject to the Developer’s one-year warranty to 

replace all Required Public Landscaping Improvements pursuant to 

Paragraph 5.4 hereof, after the Village’s inspection and approval of the 

Required Landscaping Improvements, ownership of those Required Public 

Landscaping Improvements in 97
th

 Court shall be transferred to the 

Village. The Developer shall remain responsible for the maintenance of all 

Required Public and Private Landscaping Improvements.   
 

 1.7.4  The street trees which comprise a portion of the Required 

Landscaping Improvements shall be a minimum of six (6) feet in height 

and two (2) inches in diameter, placed in mulched beds at the time of 

planting.  The staked trees shall be consistently planted every fifty (50) 

feet, and in the middle of the parkway approximately midway between the 

back of the curb and the sidewalk, at a location to be approved by the 

Village unless such placement would result in a tree being within ten (10) 

feet of a fire hydrant or driveway, in which case, such tree shall be planted 

immediately outside such ten-foot radius.  The Developer shall have the 

contractor mark or stake the proposed locations based on field conditions 

for the Village review and concurrent prior to any installation of any street 

trees.  

 

 1.7.5  All disturbed areas in the right-of- way and storm water drainage 

easement areas inside and outside the Development, some of which are 

shown on the Addison Certified Survey Map, shall be suitably prepared 

and seeded with appropriate grass seed by the Developer, to the Village's 

satisfaction and in accordance with (Exhibits D and E), and the 

applicable provisions of the Village’s Land Division and Development 

Control Ordinance as soon as is physically practical after the disturbance 

of the ground surface, but in any event no later than twelve (12) months 

after the Effective Date.  The Village inspectors may require that areas of 

disturbed ground surface within the rights of way and drainage easement 

areas inside and outside the Development to be hydro-seeded or may 

require other more intensive methods of soil  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 9 - 

 stabilization if necessary to control erosion prior to the winter season.  In 

the event that the initial seeding fails to produce a good cover of grass, the 

Developer shall promptly take such steps as are necessary, such as hydro-

seeding, to produce a good cover of grass. 

 
1.8  Required Private Utilities. 

 

 1.8.1  The Developer, at the Developer's expense, shall cause to be 

designed, located, constructed, installed and provided in the Property all 

utility improvements and facilities which are proposed to serve the 

Development, including electrical power, gas, telephone and cable TV 

lines (collectively referred to herein as the “Required Private Utilities”), in 

a workmanlike manner and in accordance with the Addison Certified 

Survey Map (Exhibit B), and the applicable provisions of the Village 

Land Division Ordinance.  All Required Private Utilities shall be installed 

underground. 
 

 1.8.2  The Developer shall contract with the appropriate private utility 

companies (i.e. We Energies, Time Warner Cable, etc.) (the “Private 

Utility Companies”) for the coordination, construction and installation of 

all Required Private Utilities in accordance with the utility easement 

provisions set forth on the Addison Certified Survey Map (Exhibit B), 

which installation shall be completed within twelve (12) months after the 

Effective Date and prior to the Village’s issuance of occupancy permits.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the installation of the Required Private 

Utilities may be completed in separate phases in portions of the Property 

where the Required Grading Improvements have been completed. The 

Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Village shall issue occupancy 

permits for only those buildings for which the Required Private Utilities 

have been installed and are available.  The Developer shall be responsible 

for ensuring that Required Private Utilities are available for all residential 

units under construction in the Property.  The Developer shall be 

responsible for the restoration of all easement areas disturbed by the 

Private Utility Companies, unless a separate agreement is entered into 

with the Private Utility Companies to transfer the responsibility to the 

Private Utility Companies. 

 

1.8.3  All areas within the Property shall be within four (4) inches of final 

grade prior to issuing a notice to proceed to the Private Utility Companies 

and prior to the installation of the Required Private Utilities.  

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 10 - 

 

1.9  Required Public Street Lights. 

 

 The Developer shall install the required public street lights in the Property (the 

“Required Public Street Lights”) in accordance with the approved street lighting 

requirements described in (Exhibits D and E).  The Developer shall install  

Required Public Street Lights generally in conjunction with the installation of the  

 electrical distribution system.  The Developer shall be responsible for the timely 

restoration of all areas disturbed by the Private Utility Company or its 

subcontractor during street light installation.  Public street lights (residential type- 

concrete base and pole with Sheridan fixture) shall be installed along 97
th

 Court 

and 96
th

 Avenue per a Village approved plan. The street lights shall be paid for by 

the Developer and owned and maintained by WE-Energies. The Property is part 

of a street lighting district and owners of the Property will pay street lighting costs 

as part of said district.  

1.10  Required Public Street Signs. 

 

The Village shall cause to be manufactured and installed street signs and “type-3” 

traffic barricades at the end of partially constructed streets (the “Required Public 

Street Signs”), the cost of which shall be borne by the Developer and included 

within the Letter of Credit (hereinafter defined), in accordance with the applicable 

provisions of the Village’s Land Division and Development Control Ordinance.  

If the actual cost of manufacture and installation by the Village of the Required 

Public Street Signs exceeds the amount itemized for such item in the Letter of 

Credit, the Developer shall pay such excess within thirty (30) days after receipt of 

an invoice therefore from the Village.  The Village shall use such funds 

exclusively for the purpose of purchasing and installing the Required Public 

Street Signs in the Property.  The Required Public Street Signs shall be located 

and installed in accordance with the approved street sign plan (hereinafter referred 

to as the "Street Sign Plan") included as a part of (Exhibits D and E).  The 

Village shall install or contract to have such temporary signs installed on behalf of 

the Developer no later than the dedication by the Developer and the formal 

acceptance by the Village of the public portion of the Street Improvements by 

resolution of the Village Board.  The Village shall install or contract to have such 

permanent signs installed on behalf of the Developer no later than the dedication 

by the Developer and the formal acceptance by the Village of the public portion 

of the Street Improvements by resolution of the Village Board. 

1.11  Survey Monuments. 

 

The Developer shall place and install in the Property all survey monuments 

required by the applicable provisions of the Village Land Division and 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 11 - 

Development Control Ordinance and the Wisconsin Statutes.   The installation of 

such monuments shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Village prior to 

obtaining building permits for structures on the Property.  The Developer shall 

promptly notify the Village in writing upon completion of such installation or 

verification that such monuments were previously installed. 

 

2.  Intentionally Omitted. 

 

3.  Developer's Obligations not Contingent. 

 
The Developer's obligations to design, construct, install, provide and complete, and under 

certain circumstances to repair or replace the Required Public and Private Improvements 

provided for in this Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, are 

not contingent upon the Developer commencing the construction of any buildings on the 

Property.    

 

4.  Contractors and Contracts. 

4.1  Qualified Contractors.  For any work on the Required Public Improvements, 

Required Public Street Lighting and Required Landscaping Improvements, the 

Developer shall engage or permit any contractor to engage only contractors and 

subcontractors who are qualified to perform the work and who have been pre-

qualified for such work in accordance with Village ordinance requirements. 

 4.2  Village Review of Contracts.  All contracts, and all amendments thereto and 

change orders relating to the Required Public and Private Improvements shall, 

prior to any labor, materials or services being supplied there under, be subject to 

review and approval by the Village, which review and approval shall be solely to 

verify: (i) the amount to be paid for items to ensure sufficient coverage under the 

Letter of Credit; (ii) the identity of the contractors, subcontractors and suppliers; 

and (iii) that such contracts contain appropriate measures to protect any trees, to 

prevent erosion, to keep the construction site free of litter and debris, and to keep 

roadways free of mud and debris pursuant to Paragraph 21 hereof.  With respect 

to any contract for work which is scheduled to commence within twelve (12) 

months after the Effective Date, the Developer shall provide to the Village for its 

review and approval of such contractors’ adequate and appropriate contractor 

payment and performance bonds for such work and certificates of insurance to 

protect the Village. The Village’s review and approval of any contract which 

includes work which is not scheduled to commence until after twelve (12) months 

after the Effective Date and the Village’s approval of any contractor for such 

work shall be conditioned upon the delivery by the Developer to the Village prior 

to the commencement of work by such contractor, of an adequate and appropriate 

contractor payment and performance bond and certificate of insurance for such 

contractor to protect the Village in form satisfactory to the Village. 

 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 12 - 

4.3  Village Approval of Presubmitted Contracts.  The Village has reviewed and 

approved the Contractors and the Contracts copies of which, together with copies 

of the contractors’ payment and performance bonds and insurance certificates, are 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit G. 

 

5.  Warranty; Hold Harmless and Indemnification. 

 

 5.1  The Developer warrants and guarantees that all of the Required Public and 

Private Improvements designed, constructed and installed or provided by or 

through the Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall be free from any defects 

due to faulty design, materials or workmanship, or to any failure to comply with 

the requirements of this Agreement or the Village’s Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance and Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion 

Control Ordinance and the Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public Improvements) 

(“Defects”), of which the Village notifies the Developer in writing within one (1) 

year after the date of the Village's issuance of a Letter of Substantial Completion 

(or within one (1) year after the completion of the work, if the work or materials 

are not incorporated in an improvement which is to be dedicated to the Village).  

The Developer shall, at its cost, promptly make any repairs or replacements 

necessary to correct any such defects occurring within such one (1) year period, in 

a workmanlike manner, in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement to 

the satisfaction of the Village.  The foregoing warranties exclude remedies for 

damage or defect caused by abuse or modifications by the Developer or its 

contractors, agents or employees, improper or insufficient maintenance by any 

person or entity other than Developer or its contractors, agents or employees, 

improper operation or normal wear and tear under normal usage.  Except as set 

forth in this paragraph 5 or elsewhere in this Agreement, Developer does not 

make, and the Village acknowledges that Developer has not made, any 

representation, warranty or guarantee, express or implied, to the Village with 

respect to the Required Public Improvements or the present or future 

merchantability, condition, quality, durability, fitness or suitability of use. 
 

 5.2  In addition to, and not by limitation upon, Developer’s warranty and guaranty 

in Paragraph 5.1 hereof, the Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

Village, its employees agents and engineering consultants responsible for field 

staking, construction inspection and administration, for: (i) any claims brought 

against any of them arising out of any Defect in work performed by the Developer 

or its employees, agents or contractors or any subcontractors; and any damage to 

Village property resulting from any Defect in work performed by the Developer 

or its employees, agents or contractors or subcontractors, which indemnification 

and hold harmless shall include the costs and expenses of  any litigation 

connected with the foregoing (and including the reasonable attorneys’ fees and 

any expert witness fees of the Village, its employees, agents and engineering 

consultants).  The foregoing indemnity and hold harmless shall not include claims 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 13 - 

arising out of the negligent or intentionally wrongful conduct of any engineering 

consultant hired by the Village. 

 

 5.3  The Developer hereby waives any claims it may have against the Village for 

any negligence, mistake or error on the part of the Village’s employees, agents 

and engineering consultants responsible for field staking, construction inspection 

and administration and for the cost of any repairs or replacements resulting from 

any of the foregoing services by any of the foregoing persons.  The foregoing 

waiver shall not include claims which the Developer may have against the 

engineering consultants for any negligence, mistake or error on the part of the 

engineering consultants responsible for field staking, construction inspection and 

administration. 

  

 5.4  In addition to the general warranty given by the Developer to the Village in 

Paragraph 5.1 hereof, the Developer hereby agrees to replace, at its cost, any tree 

or other element of the Required Public Landscaping Improvements which is 

damaged or dies, regardless of the reason therefore, wherever located, for which 

the Village notifies the Developer in writing within one (1) year after the date of 

the Village's inspection and approval of such landscaping element, which 

warranty shall extend for an additional one-year period with respect to any 

element of the Required Public Landscaping Improvements which Developer has 

replaced pursuant to this Paragraph 5.4.  

 

5.5  The Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village, its employees, 

agents and engineering consultants responsible for field staking, construction 

inspection and administration, for any and all claims brought against any of them 

arising out of the presence of Hazardous Materials at the Property, which 

indemnification shall include the costs and expenses of any litigation connected 

with the foregoing (and including the reasonable attorneys’ fees and any expert 

witness fees of the Village, its employees, agents and engineering consultants).  

For purposes of this Agreement, “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any substance 

or combination of substances which are defined or regulated as hazardous under 

any applicable Federal, State or local law, including, but not limited to, Section 

292.01(5) of the Wisconsin Statutes.  The indemnity contained in this Paragraph 

5.5 shall survive this Agreement for a period of one (1) year.   
  

6.   Irrevocable Letter of Credit. 

 

6.1  The Developer shall deliver to the Village, as a condition of the Village 

Board's approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map and as a condition 

precedent to certification of such approval on the Addison Certified Survey Map, 

a three (3) year minimum, Irrevocable Letter of Credit on original bank letterhead 

in the amount of One Million Two Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Four Hundred 

Ninety-Eight and 36/100 ($1,232,498.36) in substantially the form which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit E (the “Letter of 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 14 - 

Credit”), which amount includes the estimated cost of the following Required 

Public Improvements and any Required Private Improvements together with a 

fifteen percent (15%) contingency allowance added to each of them: 

 

i. Required Public and Private Street Improvements 

ii. Required Public and Private Curb and Gutter 

iii. Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements and 

Sanitary Sewer Improvements in Easement Area (including, but 

not limited to, cleaning and televising) 

iv. Required Public Water System Improvements and Water 

Improvements in Easement Area 

v. Required Public Storm Sewer and Drainage System Improvements 

(including but not limited to catch basin cleaning and televising) 

vi. Required Public and Private Landscaping Improvements 

vii. Required Public Street Light 

viii. Required Public Street Signs. 
 

The cost estimates on which the amount of the initial Letter of Credit is based are 

summarized on (Exhibit D). 

 

6.2  The Letter of Credit shall be payable at sight to the Village, upon presentment 

of the Village's draft and the affidavit of the Village President or Village 

Administrator, attested by the Village Clerk, stating that: (i) an Event of Default 

(see Paragraph 38 of this Agreement) by the Developer has occurred under this 

Agreement, and (ii) the Village Board at a meeting duly held on a specified date, 

duly approved a draft upon the Letter of Credit in the specified amount.  The 

Letter of Credit, and any Supplemental Letter of Credit, shall expire, by its terms, 

no less than three (3) years after the effective date of such Letter of Credit (which 

shall be no later than ten (10) days after the Village Board's approval of the 

Addison Certified Survey Map), and any balance of the Letter of Credit remaining 

after the expiration date shall no longer be available for draft.  The Letter of 

Credit shall also provide that partial drawings upon the Letter of Credit are 

allowed, based upon the completion of each classification of improvements (i.e. 

water improvements) as shown on (Exhibit D).  Developer may submit more than 

one Letter of Credit, provided that each Letter of Credit conforms to the formal 

requirements set forth above, and such Letters of Credit are in the aggregate 

amount set forth in Paragraph 6.1 hereof.  Wherever used herein, the term of 

“Letter of Credit” shall be deemed to refer collectively to all outstanding Letters 

of Credit delivered by Developer to the Village pursuant to this Article 6.    
 

6.3  The purpose of the Letter of Credit, and of any Supplemental Letter of Credit, 

provided pursuant to Paragraph 7 of this Agreement is to secure the Developer's 

agreement to design, construct, install, provide and complete, and to repair or 

replace under certain circumstances, all of the Required Public Improvements in 

accordance with the requirements of this Agreement, as well as the Developer's  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 15 - 

and Required Private Improvements indemnification and hold harmless 

obligations in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement. 

 

6.4  Reductions in the Letter of Credit, or any Supplemental Letter of Credit 

provided pursuant to Paragraph 7 hereof, other than as a result of a draw by the 

Village, shall be permitted only in accordance with the following procedures: 

 

(a)  The Developer may submit written requests to the Village for a 

reduction in the Letter of Credit not more often than once per calendar 

month.  Any such request shall be accompanied by originals of lien 

waivers from contractors, subcontractors and suppliers.  The Village 

Board shall review the lien waivers and other documentation received 

from the Developer and reports from the Village’s engineering consultants 

regarding the status of the work-in-progress for which such reduction in 

the Letter of Credit is claimed and the recommendations of such 

consultants regarding the amount of the Letter of Credit to be released 

based on the percentage of work completed.  The Village Board shall 

promptly authorize a reduction of the Letter of Credit in an amount 

proportionate to the percentage of the work completed to the extent the 

Village Board is satisfied that appropriate payment has been made for 

such work. 

 

 (b)  After the completion of a classification of the Required Public 

Improvements or Private Improvements corresponding to one of the items 

listed on (Exhibit D), and the Village’s inspection and testing of such 

classification and conditional approval thereof pursuant to a Letter of 

Substantial Completion, the delivery to the Village of satisfactory 

evidence that there is no unpaid work with respect to the classification in 

question for which a mechanics or supplier’s lien may be imposed 

pursuant to Paragraph 6.4(a) hereof, the dedication by the Developer of 

such improvements to the Village and the formal acceptance thereof by 

the Village pursuant to a resolution by the Village Board, the Village 

Board shall promptly authorize a reduction in the Letter(s) of Credit.  The 

amount of any such reduction shall be the remaining amount (including 

the 15% contingency calculated on such amount) that was attributed to the 

identified itemized listing of improvements in determining the amount of 

the Letter(s) of Credit as is set forth on the attached Exhibit D and in any 

determination of the Village Board to require a Supplemental Letter of 

Credit. 
 

 (c)  Notwithstanding Paragraph 6.4(b), above, the Village Board shall not 

be required to permit the release of the last five percent (5%) of the 

original amount of the required Letter of Credit, plus five percent (5%) of 

the amount of any Supplemental Letter of Credit provided pursuant to  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 16 - 

 Paragraph 7 of this Agreement, for a period of one (1) year after the 

completion, dedication and the final and formal acceptance of the last-to-

be completed, dedicated and finally and formally accepted classification of 

Required Public Improvements for the purpose of securing the Developer's 

warranty, guaranty, hold harmless and indemnification agreement under 

Paragraph 5 hereof. 

 

 (d)  For purposes of any reductions or withholdings under Paragraphs 

6.4(a) and (b), above, the Village Board may, in its discretion, treat the 

remaining balances of any Letters of Credit provided pursuant to 

Paragraphs 6 or 7 of this Agreement as being fungible. 

 

6.5  The amount of any draw by the Village upon the Letter of Credit provided 

pursuant to this Paragraph 6 or any Supplemental Letter of Credit provided 

pursuant to Paragraph 7 hereof, shall be the amount listed on (Exhibit D) for the 

item or items which the Developer has failed to complete and which have resulted 

in an Event of Default under this Agreement.  In the event that the cost of the 

specific item or items is not broken out on (Exhibit D), then the amount shall be 

based upon the amount estimated by the Village’s engineering consultant as the 

cost of the goods or services to be performed, purchased or supplied.   

 

 6.6  The Village shall be entitled to make any draw upon the Letter of Credit 

provided pursuant to this Paragraph 6 or upon any Supplemental Letter of Credit 

provided pursuant to Paragraph 7 of this Agreement after: (i) an Event of Default 

by the Developer has occurred and is continuing pursuant to Paragraph 38 of this 

Agreement; and (ii) the Village Board, at a meeting duly held, shall have 

approved the draw; provided, however, that the Village Board shall not approve 

the draw if before that time the Developer has cured the Event of Default to the 

reasonable satisfaction of the Village Board. 
 

 6.7  The Developer shall have the right at any time and from time to time, with 

the prior written consent of the Village, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

conditioned or delayed, to replace the Letter of Credit with a substitute letter of 

credit, provided that such substitute letter of credit: (i) is issued by a financial 

institution having a credit rating equal to that of the issuer of the existing Letter of 

Credit or such lesser rating as may be reasonably satisfactory to the Village; (ii) is 

in an amount equal to the then outstanding balance of the existing Letter of 

Credit; (iii) has a term equal to the remaining term of the existing Letter of Credit; 

and (iv) is otherwise on the same terms as the existing Letter of Credit.  At such  

 time as the Developer deposits with the Village a substitute Letter of Credit 

approved by the Village and otherwise complying with this Agreement, the 

Village shall promptly release the original Letter of Credit to the Developer.  For 

 purposes of this Agreement, all references to the “Letter of Credit” shall be 

deemed to mean any substitute letter of credit conforming to this Paragraph 6.7. 

  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 17 - 

7.  Supplemental Letter of Credit.  

 

Any increase in the amount to be paid by the Developer to any contractor or vendor, or 

claimed or demanded by any contractor or vendor with respect to any of the Required 

Public Improvements, whether arising from a change order or other agreement between 

the Developer and a contractor, shall be reported by the Developer in writing to the 

Village.  The Village may require the Developer to provide, and the Developer shall 

provide upon the request of the Village, a Supplemental Letter of Credit if the Village 

determines that the amount of such increase is substantial enough not to have been 

anticipated by the 15% construction contingency factor utilized in determining the 

amount of the Letter of Credit provided pursuant to Paragraph 6 of this Agreement.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the Developer shall not be required to provide a 

Supplemental Letter of Credit unless and until any increase in a contract price, together 

with any previous increases in such contract price or any other contract price, exceeds 

one hundred ten percent (110%) of the estimated sum of the costs (without contingencies) 

used in determining the original amount of the Letter of Credit (and the amount of any 

previously posted Supplemental Letter(s) of Credit).  Any such Supplemental Letter of 

Credit shall have substantially the same terms, except amount, and be treated in 

essentially the same way as the Letter of Credit provided pursuant to Paragraph 6 of this 

Agreement. 
 

8.   Dedications of Land or Interests in Land. 

 

8.1  The Developer, as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of the Village 

Board's final approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map and to the 

effectiveness of the certification of such approval on the Addison Certified 

Survey Map, shall offer to give, grant, dedicate or otherwise offer to convey to the 

Village and to certain other named persons the dedications of easements and/or 

interests in land that are shown and described on the Addison Certified Survey 

Map, free of charge and free and clear of all liens and encumbrances that are not 

accepted by the Village in writing.   

 

 8.2  All of the required dedications of easements or of interests in land, under the 

"Dedications and Easements Provisions" set out on the Addison Certified Survey 

Map shall be deemed to have been  formally, finally and unconditionally made by 

the Developer and accepted by the Village, the Private Utility Companies and any 

other specified grantees without further action by any of them at such time as the 

Addison Certified Survey Map is certified as approved by the Village President, 

the Village Clerk, Village Treasurer, and the Kenosha County Treasurer, and 

released for recording. 
 

 8.3  All of the dedications of easements or interests in land provided for in this 

Agreement shall be made free of charge to the Village or the Private Utility 

Companies or other specified grantees, and shall be free and clear of any liens or 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 18 - 

encumbrances except for the Permitted Exceptions as are provided for in this 

Agreement, the Declaration or on the Addison Certified Survey Map. 

  

9.   Dedications of Public Improvements. 
 

9.1  After the Developer’s completion of an item or classification constituting an 

element of the Required Public Improvements and the Village’s satisfactory 

inspection or testing thereof, the Village shall issue a letter of substantial 

completion (“Letter of Substantial Completion”) acknowledging the Village’s 

conditional approval of such improvement or improvements, which approval shall 

remain conditional pending the expiration of the Developer’s one-year warranty 

pursuant to Paragraph 5 hereof. 

 

9.2  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village: (i) the public portion of the Required Public 

and Private Street Improvements upon completion by the Developer, and 

inspection and conditional approval by the Village of the Street Improvements as 

evidenced by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of Substantial Completion; 

(ii) the Street Improvements upon completion by the Developer, and inspection 

and conditional approval by the Village of the Street Improvements as evidenced 

by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of Substantial Completion; and (iii) the 

Street Improvements upon completion by the Developer, and inspection and 

conditional approval by the Village thereof as evidenced by the issuance by the 

Village of Letter of Substantial Completion.  

 

 9.3  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village all public portions of the Required Public 

and Private Curb and Gutter Improvements, upon completion by the Developer, 

and inspection and conditional approval by the Village as evidenced by the 

issuance by the Village of  Letter of Substantial Completion. 

   

 9.4  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village all Required Public Water System 

Improvements, upon completion by the Developer, and inspection and conditional 

approval by the Village as evidenced by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of 

Substantial Completion. 

 

 9.5  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village all Required Public Sanitary Sewer System 

Improvements, upon completion by the Developer, and inspection and conditional 

 approval by the Village as evidenced by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of 

Substantial Completion.  

 

 9.6  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village all public portions of the Required Public 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 19 - 

and Private Storm Sewer and Drainage System Improvements, upon completion 

by the Developer, and inspection and conditional approval by the Village as 

evidenced by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of Substantial Completion.    

 

 9.7  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village all Required Public Landscaping 

Improvements in the right-of-ways and/or private easements dedicated to the 

Village, upon completion by the Developer, and inspection and conditional 

approval by the Village as evidenced by the issuance by the Village of a Letter of 

Substantial Completion.  

 

 9.8  The Developer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally offers to dedicate, 

give, grant and convey to the Village the Required Public Street Lights, upon 

completion by the Developer, warranty period expiration and the inspection and 

conditional approval by the Village as evidenced by the issuance by the Village of 

a Letter of Substantial Completion.  

 

 9.9  (Intentionally Deleted). 
 

 9.10  Each dedication described above shall, when made, be made free of charge 

to the Village, and all improvements so dedicated shall be free and clear of any 

liens or encumbrances, except for the Permitted Exceptions as provided for in this 

Agreement.   

 

 9.11  All dedications to the Village of Required Public Improvements provided 

for in this Agreement shall include all structures, mains, conduits, pipes, lines, 

machinery, generators or other equipment and other appurtenances which may in 

any way be a part of or pertain to such improvements, together with any and all 

necessary easements for access thereto.  
 

9.12  Promptly after the Developer has completed an item constituting a Required 

Public Improvement to the Village, and the Village has evidenced its conditional 

approval thereof as evidenced by its issuance of a Letter of Substantial 

Completion, the Village shall, without the need for further application or action 

by the Developer, formally accept the Developer’s offer of such dedication (as 

made hereinabove) by resolution of the Village Board.  The Village shall accept 

each such dedication only in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 

Village Land Division and Development Ordinance regarding acceptance of 

dedications of public improvements.  After the adoption by the Village Board of a 

resolution formally accepting the dedication of an item or classification 

constituting an element of the Required Public Improvements, the Village shall 

have the duty and right to maintain the accepted improvements and shall have the 

right to connect to or to integrate with such improvements other facilities or 

improvements with no payment or award to the Developer and without the 

Developer's consent. 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 20 - 

 

10.  Title Insurance and Lien Waivers. 

10.1  Dedications of Land or Interests in Land.  The Developer has heretofore 

 provided to the Village, and the Village has reviewed and found acceptable, the 

 Pro Forma Title Commitment No. _________ attached hereto and incorporated 

 herein by reference as Exhibit H (the “Title Commitment”) issued by the Title 

 Insurer, showing, on a pro forma basis, the Village as an insured grantee under 

 easements, in the amount of the total estimated cost of the Required Public 

 Improvements as set forth on  (Exhibit D) hereof (but not including the 15% 

 contingency), and showing that any easements or interests in land being dedicated 

 or conveyed to the Village are free and clear of all liens and encumbrances 

 except those provided for by this Agreement or on the Addison Certified  Survey 

 Map, or as have been approved in writing by the Village (collectively, the 

 “Permitted Exceptions”).  The costs of the  Title Commitment and the 

 ensuing policy issued to the Village shall be paid by the Developer. A 

 condition precedent to the Village Board's final approval of the Addison 

 Certified Survey Map becoming effective and to the certification of such 

 approval on the Addison Certified Survey Map becoming effective, shall be the 

 Title  Insurer’s assurance to the Village, that the Title Insurer is prepared to 

 issue to the  Village a title policy, effective the date of the recording of the 

 Addison Certified  Survey Map, insuring the Village as grantee under all 

 easements being dedicated or conveyed to it, in the amount of the  total estimated 

 cost of the Required Public Improvements as set  forth on (Exhibit D) as 

 aforesaid issued by the Title Insurer showing that  easements conveyed or 

 dedicated to the Village are free and  clear of all liens and encumbrances except 

 the Permitted Exceptions (the “Title Policy”) (or in lieu thereof, a  marked-up  

 title commitment, effective as of the date of the recording of the Addison 

 Certified Survey Map, committing the Title Insurer to issue the Title 

 Policy).  The Title Policy shall be issued by the Title Insurer to the  Village upon 

 the recording of the Addison Certified Survey Map. 

 

10.2  Dedications of Required Public Improvements.  The Developer shall 

provide to the Village, in connection with the dedication of each set of the 

Required Public Improvements, duly signed originals of final lien waivers from 

all contractors, subcontractors, and other persons who have provided any labor or 

materials with respect to such improvements, specifically detailing the work done, 

the materials supplied, and the dollar amounts of such waivers. 

 

11.  Developer’s Ownership Representations and Warranties. 

 

11.1  Land.  The Developer represents and warrants to the Village that: (a) as of 

the Effective Date the Developer is the sole fee simple absolute owner of the 

Property identified on the Addison Certified Survey Map (Exhibit B) and that it 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 21 - 

is lawfully seized and possessed of the Property, subject only to the Permitted 

Exceptions; and (b) as of the date on which the Addison Certified Survey Map is 

recorded, the Developer is the sole fee simple absolute owner of the Property 

identified on the Addison Certified Survey Map and that it is lawfully seized and 

possessed of the Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions.  The 

Developer further represents and warrants to the Village that at the time of the 

recording of the Addison Certified Survey Map there are no liens or 

encumbrances other than the Permitted Exceptions on or affecting any of the land 

or interests in land required to be dedicated to the Village by this Agreement.  The 

representations and warranties contained in this Paragraph 11.1 shall survive this 

Agreement, the dedication by the Developer of any land or interest in land 

provided for by this Agreement and the acceptance of such dedications by the 

Village. 

 
11.2  Improvements.  The Developer represents and warrants to the Village that 

all of the Required Public Improvements then being dedicated to the Village will, 

at the time of the dedication thereof to the Village, the Village’s conditional 

approval thereof pursuant to a Letter of Substantial Completion and at the time of 

the Village’s formal and final acceptance thereof as evidenced by a resolution of 

the Village Board,  and the recording of the instruments, if any, reflecting such 

dedications: (i) as to the Required Public Improvements located on land 

theretofore dedicated to the Village be free and clear of any liens or 

encumbrances, except Permitted Exceptions.  The representations and warranties 

contained in this Paragraph 11.2 shall survive this Agreement, the dedication to 

the Village of any Required Public Improvements and the acceptance by the 

Village of such dedications. 

 

12.  Developer’s Hazardous Materials Representation and Warranty. 

 

The Developer represents and warrants to the Village, its employees, agents and 

consultants acting on behalf of the Village, that, to the best of their knowledge, as of the 

Effective Date and at the time that the Developer makes any dedications of land or 

interests of land required by this Agreement and such dedication is recorded: (i) there are 

no Hazardous Materials present on, in or beneath the Property in any quantity or 

condition that would constitute a violation of any environmental law; and (ii) there is no 

pending or threatened litigation, charge, complaint, action, suit, proceeding, hearing, 

investigation, claim, demand or notice before any court or administrative agency 

containing any allegation that Hazardous Materials are or have been present, released, 

generated, transported, stored, treated, or disposed of on the Property.  The representation 

and warranty contained in this Paragraph 12 shall survive this Agreement, the dedication 

by the Developer of any land or interest in land provided for by this Agreement and the 

acceptance by the Village of any such dedication for a period of one (1) year.  The 

Developer, upon written demand from the Village within said one-year warranty period, 

shall promptly indemnify and hold harmless the Village, its employees, agents and 

consultants for and against any and all claims, liability, damages and the costs of any 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 22 - 

litigation resulting from or arising out of the untruth or inaccuracy of the representation 

and warranty contained in this Paragraph 12, including, without limitation, any actual 

attorneys' fees and expert witness fees. 

 

In the event that the Developer discovers the presence of any underground storage tank or 

any Hazardous Material at the Property, Developer shall immediately notify the Village 

Administrator and the Village Engineer orally and by facsimile and shall promptly give 

such other notices and take such action as may be required by applicable law. 

 

13.  Restrictions, Covenants and Easements Running With the Land. 

 

The Property shall continue to be subject to all terms and provisions of the Declaration of 

Development Standards and Protective Covenants for Prairie Ridge Commercial 

Development which was recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office on 

March 12, 1998 as Document number 1088729, and the First Amendment to Declaration 

of Development Standards and Protective Covenants for Prairie Ridge Commercial 

Development which was recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office on 

October 9, 1998 as Document Number 1115848, and the Second Amendment to 

Declaration of Development Standards and Protective Covenants for Prairie Ridge 

Commercial Development recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office 

on January 13, 2000 as Document Number 1170858, and the Third Amendment to 

Declaration of Development Standards and Protective Covenants for Prairie Ridge 

Commercial Development recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office 

on March 7, 2000 as Document Number 1175267, and the Fourth Amendment to 

Declaration of Development Standards and Protective Covenants for Prairie Ridge 

Commercial Development recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office 

on April 5, 2010 as Document Number 1614310.  

 

14.  Miscellaneous Fees. 

 

The Developer shall pay to the Village Treasurer in cash or by certified or cashier's 

check, as a condition to the Village Board's final approval of the Addison Certified 

Survey Map and as a condition precedent to certification of such approval on the Addison 

Certified Survey Map, all fees prescribed by the Village Land Division and Development 

Control Ordinance which are due at such time, including without limitation, those 

described in (Exhibit D):  
 

15.  Engineering Review Fees. 

 

No later than thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from the Village, the Developer 

shall reimburse the Village for all fees incurred by it for engineering, engineering review, 

inspection and other expert or administrative services in connection with its review and 

approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map and inspections and approvals of the 

Required Public Improvements, grading and other items associated with the Development 

requiring the Village’s review, inspection or approval.  The Village’s invoice shall 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 23 - 

provide an itemization specifying the work done, by who it was done and the charge for 

such work. 

 

16.  Connection Fees. 

 

The Developer acknowledges that the builder of any buildings on the Property may be 

required to pay municipal sanitary sewer connection fees as a condition of and prior to 

the issuance of any building permits for every connection made to the municipal sanitary 

sewer supply systems.  These fees are subject to change by Village ordinance and all 

owners shall be responsible for the then current fees. 

 

17.  Payment of Taxes and Special Assessments. 

 

The Developer, in accordance with the Title Commitment and Village tax records, shall 

pay any outstanding real estate taxes and special assessments then due and owing on any 

portion of the Property prior to the recording of the Addison Certified Survey Map. 

 

18.  Left Blank Intentionally. 

 
19. Commencement of Construction. 

 

 19.1  Except for the Required Public Grading Improvements which have been 

constructed pursuant to the Interim Mass Grading Agreement, the Developer shall 

not commence construction or installation of any of the Required Public 

Improvements until after the Addison Certified Survey Map has been recorded 

pursuant to this Agreement, and the Developer has received written authorization 

from the Village to commence construction of such improvements, which shall 

not be unreasonable withheld. 

 

 19.2  After the conditions set forth in Paragraph 19.1 hereof, the Developer shall 

promptly commence construction of the Required Public Improvements and shall  

 thereafter diligently proceed with the construction and installation of such 

improvements in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

 19.3  It is understood and agreed, pursuant to Section 18.0902 of the Village Land 

Division and Development Control Ordinance, that no occupancy permit will be 

issued by the Village with respect to any proposed building or structure in the 

Property, prior to completion and Village acceptance of the Public and Private 

Improvements in accordance with Paragraph 29.1 hereof.    
 

20.  Erosion Control. 

 

 20.1  The Developer shall take such actions and shall utilize such techniques and 

mechanisms necessary to implement the approved Erosion Control Plan a copy of 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit I, and to 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 24 - 

comply with the applicable provisions of the Village's Construction Site 

Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance, in order to prevent sediment from 

being deposited on adjacent properties or on any public street or into adjacent 

wetlands and to prevent sediment from being washed into downstream drainage 

facilities, during any grading or construction relating to the Required Public or 

Private Improvements. 

  

 20.2  The Property and all other areas of the Property on which construction or 

grading activities are being or have been carried out shall be in compliance with 

Wisconsin Administrative Code NR 216 at all times during construction.  Also a 

Notice of Intent (NOI) must be on file with the Wisconsin Department of Natural 

Resources. 

 

 20.3  A $2,000.00 cash payment has been made by the Developer to the Village 

pursuant to this Agreement as a street sweeping security to guarantee to the 

Village that the roadways are kept clean throughout the construction.  Following 

the Developer’s dedication and the Village’s acceptance of the public portion of 

the Public and Private Improvements, the full amount of the deposit, less a six 

percent (6% ) administrative processing fee shall be returned to the Developer if it 

is not used for erosion control enforcement purposes, e.g., clean-up of mud 

tracking.  (See Section 28.009 of the Construction Site Management and Erosion 

Control Ordinance.)  The Village shall not undertake street sweeping to remedy a 

failure by the Developer to do so until twenty-four (24) hours after the Village has 

given written notice to the Developer of such failure and the Developer has not 

cured.   

 

21.  Cleanup/ Restricted Access. 

 

 21.1  The Developer shall keep the Property free from litter and debris during all 

phases of grading and construction with respect to the Required Public 

Improvements.  The Developer shall promptly remove and lawfully dispose of all 

tree trunks and limbs, brush and all other rubbish and debris from the 

Development.  Tree trunks or other organic matter shall not be backfilled on the 

Property. 

 

 21.2  Off-site sediment deposition occurring as a result of a storm event shall be 

cleaned up by the end of the next work day following the occurrence.  All other 

off-site sediment deposition occurring as a result of construction activities shall be 

cleaned up at the end of the work day.  Mud tracking caused by construction 

activities related to the Required Public Improvements shall be cleaned daily by 

the Developer's contractor, at the Developer’s or contractor's expense. 

 

22.  Wetlands Protection. 

 
Intentionally Omitted.  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 25 - 

 

23.  Construction Access. 

 

Construction access for Public and Private Improvements and construction of any 

buildings shall be restricted to and made from as noted in the Village’s work in the right-

of-way permit.  

 

24.  Entrance Sign. 

 

No new entrance, development, or real estate marketing signs shall be installed or erected 

in or near the Property until after the Village has approved such signs and their location.  

Sign permits shall be required by the Village prior to such signs being installed or 

erected. 

 

25.  Construction Staking and Field Inspection. 

 

The Village engineering consultants shall perform all construction staking and all 

engineering field inspection relating to the Required Public and Private Improvements, as 

required, and the Developer shall promptly pay to the Village Treasurer, within thirty 

(30) days 

after a receipt of an invoice for such work, the costs of all such services.  

 

26.  Village Maintenance. 

 

The Village shall have no obligation to connect, maintain or repair any Required Public 

Improvements referred to in this Agreement until after such time as the Village Board has 

adopted a resolution specifically accepting the dedication of the public portion of such 

Improvements. 
 

27.  Village Snowplowing Maintenance. 

 

Following the Developer’s completion and Village’s acceptance of Street Improvements 

and the Developer’s preparation of the roadways for winter public plowing pursuant to 

this Agreement, the Village shall snowplow the public streets in the Property.  

 

28.  Right of Entry. 

 

Village officials and their designees shall have the right to enter upon the Property at all 

reasonable times, without notice, to inspect the status, progress and quality of the work 

on the Required Public Improvements and any related materials, goods or equipment. 

 

29.  Permits. 

 

 29.1  No occupancy permits shall be issued for the occupancy of any building, 

unit or structure as a result of the Addison Certified Survey Map approval until 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 26 - 

such time as the Public and Private Improvements are completed, inspected and 

accepted by the Village. 

 

 29.2 All Required Private Utilities shall be completed and installed for a given 

building prior to the issuance by the Village of an occupancy permit for such 

building in the Development.  

  

30.  Stop-Work Orders. 

 

The Developer shall promptly comply with any stop-work orders issued pursuant to 

applicable provisions of the Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance 

and Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public Improvements) because the design, location, 

materials, workmanship or manner of performance pursuant to the public improvements 

or erosion control measures are not in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, 

the Land Division and Development Control Ordinance, or the Erosion Control and 

Construction Site Maintenance Ordinance. 

 

31.  Organizational Documents. 

 

The following organizational documents for the Developer, have been provided and are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A: 

 

Articles of Organization of SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY, LLC; 

 Operating Agreement of SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, 

LLC;  

 

32.  Delivery of Mail. 
 

It shall be the Developer's responsibility to notify the Pleasant Prairie Postmaster and to 

establish postal service delivery to the housing units within the Property.  The Developer 

shall also coordinate the type and location of the mail boxes with the U.S. Postal Service. 

 

33.  Private Utilities Cost. 

 

It shall be the responsibility of the Developer to contract to have installed and pay for all 

costs associated with the Required Private Utilities.  These utility costs are not included 

in the Irrevocable Letter of Credit provided to the Village and shall be paid for by the 

Developer from other funds. 

 

34.  Hours of Construction Activities. 

  

The hours of construction and use of heavy equipment for the Public and Private 

Improvements and building construction (including, without limitation, start-up, loading, 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 27 - 

unloading and positioning of such equipment) are limited to Monday through Friday 7:00 

a.m. to 10:00 p.m., Saturday 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., and Sunday 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

 

35.  Intentionally Omitted. 

 

36.  Remedies of the Village. 

 

 36.1  If the Developer is responsible for an Event of Default under this 

Agreement, the Village may pursue any and all remedies that may be available to 

it at law or in equity. 

 

 36.2  In addition, if the Developer is responsible for an Event of Default which is 

continuing, the Village may, without waiving any rights or remedies that may be 

available to it, perform or have performed all necessary work, and supply or have 

supplied all necessary equipment, goods, materials or services, to complete all or 

any part of the Required Public Improvements in satisfactory form, and may draw 

down the Letter of Credit and/or the Supplemental Letter of Credit provided by 

the Developer pursuant to Paragraph 6 or 7 of this Agreement. 

 

 36.3  Neither the amount of the Letter(s) of Credit provided by the Developer 

pursuant to Paragraphs 6 or 7 of this Agreement, nor the amount of any draw by 

the Village upon any such Letter(s) of Credit, shall be deemed to be a limit on any 

liability of the Developer for breach of this Agreement. 

 

 36.4  In the event that the Village does undertake to perform or have performed 

any work on any of the Required Public Improvements provided for in this 

Agreement, it shall diligently pursue such work to completion. 
 

37.  Remedies of the Developer. 

 

If the Village is responsible for an Event of Default under this Agreement, the Developer, 

may pursue any and all remedies that may be available to it at law or in equity. 

 

38.  Notice of Breach and Curative Activity. 

 

 38.1  In the event that one of the parties  to this Agreement (the “Performing 

Party”) believes that the other party has failed to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement (the “Nonperforming Party”), the Performing Party shall promptly 

notify the Nonperforming Party in writing (the “Default Notice”) of the specific 

nature of the alleged failure.  If the Village, as the Performing Party, believes that 

an alleged failure of performance by the Developer, as the Nonperforming Party, 

poses an imminent threat to the public health or safety, the Village’s Default 

Notice shall so state. 

 

38.2  The delivery by the Village of a Default Notice to the Developer shall not be 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 28 - 

a condition precedent to the issuance by the Village of a Stop-Work Order 

pursuant to applicable provisions of the Village’s Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance or Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public 

Improvements), or to any legal action not taken pursuant to this Agreement to 

enforce such ordinance or any other applicable ordinance. 
 

 38.3  The Nonperforming Party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of a 

Default Notice to cure the alleged failure to perform; provided, however, that if 

the failure is incapable of cure as soon as reasonably practicable within said 30-

day period and the Nonperforming Party has commenced such cure within said 

30-day period and is diligently pursuing such cure, the time for such cure shall be 

extended for a reasonable period of time under the circumstances to allow the 

Nonperforming Party to complete its curative activity. 

 

 38.4  Whenever an alleged failure of performance under this Agreement is 

believed by either party to pose an imminent threat to public health or safety, the 

parties shall immediately confer in good faith as to how such threat can be most 

effectively and expeditiously eliminated. 

 

 38.5  If the Nonperforming Party fails to cure the default alleged in the Default 

Notice within the time permitted pursuant to Subparagraph 38.3 or 38.6 hereof, an 

 event of default (“Event of Default”) shall have occurred with respect to the 

Nonperforming Party. 

 

 38.6  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if the Village 

believes in good faith that commencement of a legal action, or the making of a  

 draw upon the Developer's Letter(s) of Credit, or the performance of its own work 

with respect to curing a perceived breach prior to the commencement or 

completion of the Developer's curative action is urgently required to protect the 

public health or safety, the Village may proceed to do so, giving such prior notice 

to Developer and offering Developer such opportunity to cure as is practicable 

under the circumstances. 
 

 38.7  Neither a party's willingness to undertake curative activity nor the fact that a 

party has undertaken curative activity shall be construed as or used as evidence of 

an Event of Default under this Agreement. 

 

39.  Notices. 

 

39.1  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, all notices 

given in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing, shall specifically 

refer to this Agreement by title and date, shall be addressed to the receiving party, 

and shall be delivered by personal delivery, by overnight courier with evidence of 

receipt, by certified or registered mail, with postage prepaid and return receipt 

requested, or by facsimile transmission (provided that an original of said notice or 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 29 - 

communication is sent simultaneously by first class U.S. mail with postage 

prepaid or by any of the other designated methods).  Any notice addressed to the 

Village shall be addressed to the attention of The Village Administrator, 9915 39
th

 

Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158 (Facsimile: (262) 694-4734). Any 

notice addressed to the Developer shall be addressed to Senior Lifestyle 

Development Company, LLC, 303 E. Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601 

(Facsimile: (312) 673-4301).  
 

39.2  Either party may give notice to the other, in accordance with this Paragraph, 

of a change-of-address to which notices under this Agreement may be sent during 

normal business hours.  After any such change-of-address notice is given and 

received, all notices given in connection with this Agreement shall thereafter be 

mailed, delivered or transmitted to the new address.  Any such change-of-address 

notice shall state on its face, in capital letters, "THIS LETTER AMENDS THE 

NOTICE PROVISION OF PARAGRAPH 39.1 OF THE DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND 

SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC.  THIS LETTER 

SHOULD BE FILED WITH SUCH AGREEMENT." 

 

39.3  Any notice given in accordance with this Paragraph 39 shall be effective 

upon delivery, if personally delivered, delivered by overnight courier or delivered 

by facsimile during regular business hours, or three (3) days after depositing same  

in the United States mail.  Any facsimile received after 5:00 p.m. (based on the 

recipient’s time zone) or on a day other than a normal business day shall be 

deemed delivered on the next normal business day. 

 
40.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. 

 

This Agreement is not intended to benefit or to be enforceable by any person other than 

the Village, the Developer, and their respective successors and assigns, which shall not 

include, for purposes of this Paragraph, any person who has not assumed all of the 

benefits and obligations of this Agreement. 
 

41.  Applicability of Land Division and Development Control Ordinance. 

 

The provisions of the Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance are 

applicable to the subject matter of this Agreement, whether or not such provisions are 

referred to expressly herein.  In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of 

said ordinance and the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions that are most 

stringent against the Developer or most favorable to the Village shall control. 

 

42.  Amendment of Agreement. 

 

The Village and the Developer may, by mutual agreement in writing, and after approval 

of the Village Board, amend this Agreement at any time.  The Village Board shall not, 



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 30 - 

however, approve an amendment without having first considered the recommendations of 

the Village staff on the proposed amendment. 

 

43. Amendment of Ordinance. 

 

In the event that the Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance or 

Municipal Code Chapter 405 (Public Improvements) are amended or recreated after this 

Agreement is entered into, and before the Required Public Improvements have been 

completed, then any such amendments shall apply to this Agreement; provided, however, 

that if such amendments impose greater burdens or impose more stringent restrictions 

upon the Developer, such amendments shall not apply. 

 

44.  Severability. 

 

In the event that any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, such part shall be severed from the Agreement, and the balance of 

this Agreement shall survive. 

 

45.  Binding Agreement; Assignment. 

 

45.1  This Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their successors and  

assigns.  Any assignment of this Agreement by the Developer or by any successor 

or assign of the Developer, shall be subject to prior approval of the Village Board, 

but such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

45.2  The Developer may, subject to the Village’s prior written approval thereof 

(which shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned or withheld), assign this 

Agreement to another person or entity in connection with the conveyance to such 

person or entity of the fee simple interest in all of the Property not previously 

conveyed (or under contract to be conveyed) to non-Developer owners.   At such 

time, if any, as the Developer assigns this Agreement to another person or entity 

with the prior written approval of the Village (an “Approved Assignee”): (a) such 

Approved Assignee shall become the new Developer; (b) all of the obligations 

and responsibility of the “Developer” as herein set forth shall devolve upon and 

be assumed by such Approved Assignee; (c) the assignor-Developer as herein 

defined shall be released from all such obligations upon such assignment, and 

shall be exculpated from any personal liability or continuing obligation to perform 

the commitments and obligations set forth herein with respect to future 

obligations of the Developer; and (d) the Village will look solely to such 

Approved Assignee for the future performance of obligations arising under this 

Agreement.  After such assignment, the term “Developer” shall mean such 

Approved Assignee.   

  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 31 - 

46.  No Threat to Public Health or Safety. 

 

Notwithstanding any language or this Agreement to the contrary, the Developer shall 

neither do nor permit any other person to do anything in connection with the performance 

of the Developer's obligations under this Agreement which poses a threat to the public 

health or safety. 

 

47.  Good Faith and Fair Dealing. 

 

The parties shall deal with one another fairly and in good faith.  If this Agreement 

provides that an approving party may grant or withhold its approval or consent in its sole 

and absolute judgment or discretion, such approval or consent may be unreasonably 

withheld or conditioned and the approving party shall not be obligated to state the reasons 

for withholding its approval.  If this Agreement does not expressly provide that an 

approving or consenting party may grant or withhold its approval in its sole and absolute 

judgment or discretion, the approving party shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or 

delay its approval.   

 

48.  Memorandum of Development Agreement. 

 

Promptly after the signing of this Agreement, as a condition subsequent to the Village 

Board's resolution approving the Addison Certified Survey Map, the Developer shall sign 

the Memorandum of this Agreement for recording in the Office of the Kenosha County 

Register of Deeds.  The Memorandum of Development Agreement is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit K. 
 

49.  Entire Agreement. 

 

This Agreement (including the Exhibits) constitute the entire agreement of the parties 

with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior agreements, 

commitments, promises, offers, representations and statements made by or on behalf of 

the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.   

 

50.  No Rule of Construction Against Drafter. 

 

The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the 

parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against 

either party as the drafter of this Agreement. 
 

51.  Governing Law. 

 

The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern all issues relating to this Agreement. 

  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 32 - 

52.  Effective Date. 

 

This Agreement shall be effective from and after the time it is executed and delivered by 

the Developer and the Village (the “Effective Date”); provided, however, the Village 

shall have the right to revoke this Agreement at any time prior to the recording of  the 

Addison Certified Survey Map pursuant to Paragraph 8 hereof.  It is understood and 

agreed that the Village Board's final approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map and 

the Village President's and Village Clerk's certification of the Village Board's final 

approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map shall not be effective until and unless all 

conditions to such approval are satisfied within seven business days after the Village 

Board's approval.  It is further understood and agreed that if all such conditions are not 

timely satisfied within such period of seven business days after the Village Board's 

approval of the Addison Certified Survey Map, such approval and certification shall be 

automatically suspended pending further action by the Village Board notwithstanding any 

other provision of this Agreement (including Paragraph 53, below). 
 

53.  Unavoidable Delay. 

 

If either party is in any way delayed or prevented from performing any of its obligations 

under this  Agreement, other than the payment of money, due to fire, act of God, 

governmental act or failure to act, civil disorder, riots, insurrections, war, fuel shortages, 

failure of power, accidents, casualties, adverse weather conditions, strike, labor dispute, 

inability to procure materials, acts of the other party or the other party’s agent or any 

cause beyond such party’s reasonable control (whether similar or dissimilar to the 

foregoing events), then the party so delayed or prevented from performing its obligations 

under this Agreement shall not be deemed in default under this Agreement and the time 

for performance of such obligation shall be excused for the period of such delay or 

prevention and extended for a period equal to the period of such delay, interruption or 

prevention.  Lack of available funds, regardless of the reason, shall never be deemed to 

constitute a cause beyond a party’s reasonable control. 
 

54.  Incorporation of Recitals. 

 

The recital paragraphs set forth at the beginning of this Agreement are incorporated as a 

part of this Agreement as though fully set forth herein.  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 33 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and the Village have caused this 

Agreement to be signed in duplicate originals by their duly authorized representatives. 
    

 

 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY, LLC 

                                

By:  _____________________________  By:             

        John P. Steinbrink,                 Name: Matthew K. Phillips   

        Village President             Title: Manager    

  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _____________________________ 

     Jane M. Romanowski, CMC         

     Village Clerk  

 

 

 

STATE OF _____________  ) 

 ) SS: 

________________COUNTY  ) 

 

This Agreement was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______, 2014 by 

Matthew K. Phillips as Manager of SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY, LLC. 

 

____________________________________________ 

Print Name:  ______________________________ 

Notary Public, ___________________ County, State of 

__________ 

My Commission expires: _______________ 

 

  



SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC Development Agreement 
10/__/14 
 
 
  

- 34 - 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

                           ) SS: 

KENOSHA COUNTY   ) 

 

This Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of  _______, 2014 by John 

P. Steinbrink, Village President and Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk. 

 

___________________________________________ 

Print Name:  ______________ 

Notary Public, __________ County, State of _____________ 

My Commission expires: _______________            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This instrument was drafted by: 

Attorney Timothy J. Geraghty 

GODIN GERAGHTY PUNTILLO CAMILLI, SC 

6301 Green Bay Road 

Kenosha, WI  53142 

(262) 657-3500 



COST BREAKDOWN ANLAYSIS 

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - SITES B & C

LETTER OF CREDIT*

DETAILS FOR ESTIMATES PROVIDED ON ATTACHMENT 1

Roadway, Street Lights, Street Trees Storm Sewer Repairs $615,886.33

96TH AVENUE PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS

Roadway, Additional Improvements, Street Lights, Street Trees, Storm Sewer Repairs $156,974.66

81ST STREET & 94TH AVENUE PUBLIC/PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS

Roadway, Additional Improvements, Street Lights, Street Trees, Storm Sewer Repairs $101,171.52

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS

Retention Basin Outlet Repair & Sediment Removal Costs $52,185.00

SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION $32,176.00

SUBTOTAL  OF IMPROVEMENT COSTS $958,393.51

FIELD STAKING, INSPECTION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PAYMENT PROCESSING $62,295.58

GENERAL CONDITIONS $42,000.00

BOND COSTS $9,048.62

SUBTOTAL $1,071,737.71

15% CONTINGENCY (of Subtotal) $160,760.66

TOTAL OF LETTER OF CREDIT $1,232,498.36

CASH PAYMENTS

Finance Department Administrative Fee** (0.005 x total letter of credit) $6,162.49

Erosion Control Permit Fee*** $150.00

Street Sweeping Cash Deposit $2,000.00

Work in the Right-of-way Permit Fee*** $150.00

TOTAL CASH PAYMENTS $8,462.49

*     Based upon estimates to be adjusted with final contract documents.
**   Letter of Credit and Finance Department Fee to be presented at closing. 

*** Erosion Control and Right-of-Way Fees to be submitted one week prior for permitting.

CD/Planner/Dev.Projects/Commercial/Prearieie Ridge/Swenior Lifestyle/Final Docs/CostBreakdown

9/11/2014

97TH COURT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

10/1/2014

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 1

Item Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total
 

1 Base Aggregate Dense 1 LS $31,656.00 $31,656.00
2 Prep Aggregate for Concrete Paving 1 LS $21,744.00 $21,744.00
3 Bull Nose Curb 1 LS $800.00 $800.00
4 30" Type "D" Concrete Curb and Gutter 1 LS $48,611.50 $48,611.50
5 18" Concrete Curb & Gutter 1 LS $2,160.00 $2,160.00
6 Adjust Catch Basin Frames & Grates 1 LS $4,068.00 $4,068.00
7 Adjust WM Valve Boxes 1 LS $3,433.00 $3,433.00
8 Replace WM Valve Box (top sections) 1 LS $4,428.00 $4,428.00
9 6" Concrete Drive & Sidewalk 1 LS $8,749.00 $8,749.00
10 Relocate Catch Basin to proper Location 1 LS $20,510.00 $20,510.00
11 7" Concrete Pavement 1 LS $192,515.00 $192,515.00
12 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (1 3/4" Surface Course) 1 LS $58,831.00 $58,831.00
13 4" Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base 1 LS $83,066.50 $83,066.50
14 Backfill Curb & Gutter 1 LS $9,079.00 $9,079.00
15 Topsoil Right-of-Way Panels 1 LS $14,718.00 $14,718.00
16 Seed, Fertilizer and Mulch (Right-of-Way Panels) 1 LS $2,007.00 $2,007.00
17 Inlet Protection - Type B 1 LS $605.00 $605.00
18 Detectible Warning Fields 1 LS $6,400.00 $6,400.00
19 Adjust Sanitary Manholes 1 LS $1,180.00 $1,180.00
20 Adjust Storm Manholes 1 LS $15,672.00 $15,672.00
21 Neenah R-3290 1 LS $1,237.00 $1,237.00
22 Neenah R-2080 1 LS $537.00 $537.00
23 Neenah R-3067 1 LS $1,331.00 $1,331.00

$533,338.00
Street Lights 

1 Decorative Light Poles & Fixtures 6 Each $4,000.00 $24,000.00
$24,000.00

Street Signs 
1 Miscellaneous Street Signs 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00

$1,000.00

1 Misc. Tree 2" 58 Each $374.29 $21,708.82
$21,708.82

Storm Sewer Repairs 
1 42" Internal Joint Seal 1 LS $3,484.00 $3,484.00
2 Stone in Pipe 1 LS $2,019.67 $2,019.67
3 Debris In Pipe 1 LS $2,019.67 $2,019.67
4 27" Pipe Cracked (Concrete Collar) 1 LS $2,716.50 $2,716.50
5 15" Pipe Cracked (Concrete Collar) 1 LS $4,494.00 $4,494.00
6 12" Sectional Liners 1 LS $7,472.67 $7,472.67
7 18" Sectional Liners 1 LS $13,633.00 $13,633.00

$35,839.51

$615,886.33
$40,032.61

$655,918.94

Roadway Improvements 

Roadway Improvements Subtotal:

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

97th COURT - PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Total Estimate:

Street Sign Subtotal:

Construction Cost Estimate:

Street Light Subtotal:

Street Trees 

Storm Repair Subtotal:

Street Tree Subtotal:

Construction Administration Estimate (6.5%):

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1

pherrick
Typewritten Text



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 2

Item Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total
 

1 30" Type "D" Concrete Curb and Gutter 1 LS $13,680.00 $13,680.00
2 Adjust Storm Sewer Manholes w/ External Seals 1 LS $6,268.00 $6,268.00
3 Adjust Storm Sanitary Manholes w/ External Seals 1 LS $5,898.00 $5,898.00
4 Adjust WM Valve Boxes 1 LS $1,873.00 $1,873.00
5 Replace WM Valve Box (top sections) 1 LS $1,476.00 $1,476.00
6 Crushed Aggregate Base (3" Top Dressing) 1 LS $3,298.00 $3,298.00
7 Prep Aggregate Base Course for Asphalt Paving 1 LS $2,609.00 $2,609.00
8 Asphalt Concrete Pavement - Base Patching 1 LS $19,831.00 $19,831.00
9 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Lower Course) 1 LS $12,831.00 $12,831.00
10 4" Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base 1 LS $26,502.00 $26,502.00
11 Backfill Curb & Gutter 1 LS $1,068.00 $1,068.00
12 Topsoil Right-of-Way Panels 1 LS $2,388.00 $2,388.00
13 Seed, Fertilizer and Mulch (Right-of-Way Panels) 1 LS $326.00 $326.00
14 Adjust Catch Basin Frames & Grates 1 LS $774.00 $774.00
15 Inlet Protection - Type B 1 LS $303.00 $303.00
16 Detectible Warning Fields 1 LS $1,600.00 $1,600.00
17 Curb and Gutter (Remove / Replace) 1 LS $3,053.00 $3,053.00
18 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Upper Course) 1 LS $31,138.00 $31,138.00

$134,916.00
Street Signs 

1 Miscellaneous Street Signs 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
$1,500.00

Street Lights
1 Decorative Light Poles & Fixtures 1 Each $4,000.00 $4,000.00

$4,000.00

1 Misc. Tree 2" 27 Each $374.29 $10,105.83
$10,105.83

Storm Sewer Repairs
1 12" Sectional Liners 1 LS $3,736.33 $3,736.33
2 27" Pipe Cracked/Offset (Concrete Collar) 1 LS $2,716.50 $2,716.50

$6,452.83
$156,974.66
$10,203.35

$167,178.01

96th AVENUE - PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

Street Light Subtotal:

Construction Cost Estimate:

Street Trees 

Street Tree Subtotal:

Street Sign Subtotal:

Roadway Improvements 

Roadway Improvements Subtotal:

Construction Administration Estimate (6.5%):
Total Estimate:

Storm Repair Subtotal:



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 3

Item Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total
 

2 Remove Curb & Gutter 1 LS $816.00 $816.00
2 Detectible Warning Fields 1 LS $320.00 $320.00
3 30" Type "D" Concrete Curb and Gutter 1 LS $13,200.00 $13,200.00
4 4" Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base 1 LS $32,306.00 $32,306.00
5 Topsoil Right-of-Way Panels 1 LS $972.00 $972.00
6 Seed, Fertilizer & Mulch 1 326 $326.00 $326.00

$47,124.00
 

1 Remove & Replace Curb and Gutter 1 LS $1,527.00 $1,527.00
2 Adjust Storm Manholes 1 LS $2,089.00 $2,089.00
3 Asphalt Pavement (Upper Course) 1 LS $16,381.00 $16,381.00
4 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Lower Course) 1 LS $7,142.50 $7,142.50
5 Detectible Warning Fields 1 LS $640.00 $640.00
6 4" Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base 1 LS $10,927.00 $10,927.00
7 Topsoil Right-of-Way Panels 1 LS $3,610.00 $3,610.00
8 Seed, Fertilizer & Mulch 1 LS $492.00 $492.00
89 Adjust Water Boxes 1 LS $2,105.00 $2,105.00

$44,913.50
Street Signs 

1 Miscellaneous Street Signs 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
$1,500.00

1 Misc. Tree 2" 15 Each $374.29 $5,614.35
$5,614.35

Storm Sewer Repairs
1 Heavy Debris in MH 1 LS $2,019.67 $2,019.67

$2,019.67

$101,171.52
$6,576.15

$107,747.67
Construction Administration Estimate (6.5%):

Total Estimate:

Street Sign Subtotal:

Storm Repair Subtotal:

Street Trees

Street Tree Subtotal:

Construction Cost Estimate:

Roadway Improvements Subtotal:

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

81 ST. & 94 AVE. - PUBLIC / PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS

81 Street Roadway Improvements 

94th Avenue Roadway Improvements 

Roadway Improvements Subtotal:



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 4

Item Work Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total
1 48" Sanitary Manholes 1 LS $8,343.00 $8,343.00
2 8" Sanitary Sewer w/ Granular backfill 1 LS $13,036.00 $13,036.00
3 8" Sanitary sewer w/ Slurry Backfill 1 LS $8,343.00 $8,343.00
4 Core & Boot Manhole 1 LS $2,454.00 $2,454.00

$32,176.00
$2,091.44

$34,267.44Total Estimate:
Construction Administration Estimate (6.5%):

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

Estimated Cost:



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 5

Item Work Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total
1 Tree / Brush Removal 1 LS $5,049.00 $5,049.00
2 Retention Basin Dewatering 1 LS $9,008.00 $9,008.00
3 Sediment Deposit Removal 1 LS $7,440.00 $7,440.00
4 Medium Rip Rap 1 LS $1,413.00 $1,413.00
5 Grouted Medium Rip Rap 1 LS $18,006.00 $18,006.00
6 Seeding / Fertilizer / Mulch 1 LS $1,787.00 $1,787.00
7 Erosion Control 1 LS $757.00 $757.00
8 48" Storm Manhole 1 LS $2,862.00 $2,862.00
9 21" RCP w/ Ties 1 LS $4,195.00 $4,195.00
10 21" Endwall 1 LS $1,668.00 $1,668.00

$52,185.00
$3,392.03

$55,577.03

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

RETENTION BASIN OUTLET REPAIR & SEDIMENT REMOVAL COSTS

Estimated Cost:
Construction Administration Estimate (6.5%):

Total Estimate:



THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE - OFF SITE IMPROVEMENT CONSTRCUTION COST ESTIMATE 
(UTILIZING CONTRACT PRICES)

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER   (9-9-2014) 6

Item No. Site / Work Description Cost
1 97th Court $655,918.94
2 96th Avenue $167,178.01
3 94th Avenue / 81st Street $107,747.67
4 Retention Basin Outlet Repair & Sediment Removal $55,577.03
5 Sanitary Sewer Improvements $34,267.44

Sub-total: $1,020,689.09
6 Public Improvement Civil Design / Bidding Services $17,248.00
7 General Conditions $42,000.00
8 Bond Costs $9,048.62

Estimated Total Cost: $1,088,985.71

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

COST TO COMPLETE SUMMARY



COST BREAKDOWN ANLAYSIS 

ARBOR RIDGE - SITES A & D

LETTER OF CREDIT*

DETAILS FOR ESTIMATES PROVIDED ON ATTACHMENT 1

Year 2 Improvements (2015) $209,851.13

Year 3 Improvements (2016) $66,119.80

Street Lights (2015) $12,000.00

 Street Trees (2016) $32,500.00

Street Repairs (20150 $2,750.00

SUBTOTAL  OF IMPROVEMENT COSTS SITE A $323,220.93

SITE D

Year 2 Improvements (2015) $157,942.22

Year 3 Improvements (2016) $75,816.50

Street Lights (2015) $12,000.00

Street Trees (2016) $28,500.00

Site Repairs (2015 $2,000.00

SUBTOTAL  OF IMPROVEMENT COSTS SITE D $276,258.72

SUBTOTAL  OF IMPROVEMENT COSTS SITES A & D $599,479.65

FIELD STAKING, INSPECTION AND ADMINISTRATION $23,979.19

SUBTOTAL $623,458.84

15% CONTINGENCY (of Subtotal) $93,518.83

TOTAL OF LETTER OF CREDIT $716,977.66

CASH PAYMENTS

Finance Department Administrative Fee** (0.005 x total letter of credit) $3,584.89

TOTAL CASH PAYMENTS $3,584.89

*     Based upon estimates to be adjusted with final contract documents.

CD/Planner/Dev.Projects/Commercial/Prearieie Ridge/Swenior Lifestyle/Final Docs/CostBreakdown

SITE A

10/1/2014

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1a



Item Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total

 

1 3" Mountable Concrete Curb and Gutter 2957 LF $25.00 $73,925.00

2 Adjust Storm Sewer Manholes w/ External Seals 5 Each $500.00 $2,500.00

3 Adjust Storm Sanitary Manholes w/ External Seals 13 Each $500.00 $6,500.00

4 Adjust WM Valve Boxes 3 Each $250.00 $750.00

5 Replace WM Valve Box (top sections) 2 Each $450.00 $900.00

6 Crushed Aggregate Base (3" Top Dressing) 1012 Tons $18.00 $18,216.00

7 Prep Aggregate Base Course for Paving 5997 SY $1.29 $7,736.13

8 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Lower Course) 1080 Tons $67.00 $72,360.00

9 Backfill Curbs 2957 SY $2.00 $5,914.00

10 Inlet Protection - Type B 7 Each $125.00 $875.00

11 Remove Temporary Culverts & Outlets 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00

12 42" RCP Storm Sewer (Profile B) 145 LF $115.00 $16,675.00

$209,851.13

1 Curb and Gutter (Removal) (2%) 59 LF $20.00 $1,182.80

2 Adjust Catch Basin Frames & Grates 7 Each $700.00 $4,900.00

3 Asphalt Pavement Base Patching (5%) 300 SY $20.00 $5,997.00

4 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Upper Course) 720 Tons $67.00 $48,240.00

5 Inlet Protection - Type B 7 Each $125.00 $875.00

6 30" Type "D" Concrete Curb and Gutter 197 LF $25.00 $4,925.00

$66,119.80

1 Decorative Light Poles, Fixtures & Babling 3 Each $4,000.00 $12,000.00

$12,000.00

1 Austrian Pine 5' 21 Each $250.00 $5,250.00

2 Scotch Pine 5' 6 Each $250.00 $1,500.00

3 Deborah Norway Maple 2" 26 Each $250.00 $6,500.00

4 Emerald Queen Maple 2" 17 Each $250.00 $4,250.00

5 River Birch 2" 5 Each $250.00 $1,250.00

6 Misc. Tree 2" 11 Each $250.00 $2,750.00

7 Misc. Tree 2" 21 Each $250.00 $5,250.00

8 Swamp White Oak 2" 2 Each $250.00 $500.00

9 Redmond Linden 2" 12 Each $250.00 $3,000.00

10 Donald Wyman Crabapple 2" 9 Each $250.00 $2,250.00

$32,500.00

Site Repairs (2015)
1 Spread Topsoil 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00

2 Seed & Restore Bare Areas 1 LS $750.00 $750.00

$2,750.00

$323,220.93

PRAIRIE RIDGE
ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM

Street Lights (2015)

Year 2 Improvements (2015)

Year 2 Improvements Subtotal:

SITE A - PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

Total Estimate:

Street Light Subtotal:

Street Trees (2016)

Landscaping Subtotal:

Year 3 Improvements (2016)

Year 3 Improvements Subtotal:

Site Repair Subtotal:

ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM - CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER - September 5, 2014
11

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1a

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text



 Item Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total

 
1 3" Mountable Concrete Curb and Gutter 2800 LF $15.00 $42,000.00
2 Adjust Storm Sewer Manholes w/ External Seals 9 Each $500.00 $4,500.00
3 Adjust Storm Sanitary Manholes w/ External Seals 12 Each $500.00 $6,000.00
4 Adjust WM Valve Boxes 9 Each $250.00 $2,250.00
5 Replace WM Valve Box (top sections) 9 Each $450.00 $4,050.00
6 Crushed Aggregate Base (3" Top Dressing) 897 Tons $18.00 $16,146.00

7 Prep Aggregate Base Course for Paving 5318 SY $1.29 $6,860.22

8 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Lower Course) 958 Tons $67.00 $64,186.00

9 6' Concrete Bike Path 100 LF $51.00 $5,100.00

10 Backfill Curbs 2800 LF $2.00 $5,600.00
11 Inlet Protection - Type B 10 Each $125.00 $1,250.00

$157,942.22

1 Curb and Gutter (Removal) (2%) 56 LF $5.00 $280.00
2 Adjust Catch Basin Frames & Grates 10 Each $700.00 $7,000.00
3 Asphalt Pavement Base Patching (5%) 266 SY $20.00 $5,318.00
4 Asphalt Concrete Pavement (Upper Course) 638 Tons $67.00 $42,746.00
5 Inlet Protection - Type B 10 Each $125.00 $1,250.00
6 3" Mountable Concrete Curb and Gutter 210 LF $25.00 $5,250.00
7 5' Wide Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base 345 SY $40.50 $13,972.50

$75,816.50

Street Lights (2015)
1 Decorative Light Poles, Fixtures & Cabling 3 Each $4,000.00 $12,000.00

$12,000.00

1 Austrian Pine 5' 21 Each $250.00 $5,250.00
2 Scotch Pine 5' 6 Each $250.00 $1,500.00
3 Deborah Norway Maple 2" 6 Each $250.00 $1,500.00
4 Emerald Queen Maple 2" 8 Each $250.00 $2,000.00
5 Yellow Buckeye 2" 7 Each $250.00 $1,750.00
6 River Birch 2" 5 Each $250.00 $1,250.00
7 Misc. Tree 2" 19 Each $250.00 $4,750.00
8 Misc. Tree 2" 18 Each $250.00 $4,500.00
9 Redmond Linden 2" 15 Each $250.00 $3,750.00

10 Donald Wyman Crabapple 2" 9 Each $250.00 $2,250.00

$28,500.00

Site Repairs (2015)
1 Spread Topsoil 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
2 Restore Bare Areas 1 LS $500.00 $500.00

$2,000.00

$276,258.72

PRAIRIE RIDGE

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM
SITE D - PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS

Total Estimate:

Year 2 Improvements (2015)

Street Light Subtotal:

Year 2 Improvements Subtotal:

Year 3 Improvements Subtotal:

Street Trees (2016)

Landscaping Subtotal:

Year 3 Improvements (2016)

Site Repair Subtotal:

ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM - CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE
NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER - September 5, 2014

11



 Site Cost
 Site A $323,220.93
 Site D $276,258.72

Estimated Total Cost: $599,479.65

PRAIRIE RIDGE

ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM
TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE SUMMARY

ARBOR RIDGE CONDOMINIUM - CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

NIELSEN MADSEN + BARBER - September 5, 2014
11





VILLAGE BOARD RESOLUTION #14-27 
 

VILLAGE ACCEPTANCE OF A PORTION OF PHASE 1 REQUIRED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
INCLUDING:  PORTIONS OF 97TH COURT PUBLIC STREET IMPROVEMENTS, 97TH COURT 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS,  
97TH COURT PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  
AND 97TH COURT PUBLIC STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS FOR 

A PORTION OF THE PRAIRIE RIDGE SENIOR CAMPUS DEVELOPENT  
IN PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN 

 
Legal Description: 

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map 2458, a re-division of Outlot 9 in the Prairie Ridge Subdivision, 
located in a part of the part of the Northwest One Quarter of U.S. Public Land Survey Section 8, 
Township 1 North, Range 22 East in Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin and 
further identified as Tax Parcel Numbers 91-4-122-082-0412. 

 

WHEREAS, VK Arbor LLC (a/k/a the original Prairie Ridge Senior Campus Developer) and 
the Village executed a Development Agreement dated January 17, 2005 (“Development 
Agreement”) for the Required Public and Private Improvements serving the “The Addison” 
proposed development on the property legally described above and the adjacent Arbor Ridge 
Condominium and Prairie Ridge Senior Campus Development, setting forth the approval 
conditions and the responsibilities and obligations with respect to matters related to the 
construction, inspection, use and maintenance of the Required Public and Private Improvements; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Development Agreement, VK Arbor, LLC as the Owner and the 
then Developer, upon the construction, completion, inspection and acceptance unconditionally 
dedicated, granted and conveyed, to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, the 97th Court affecting the 
referenced property and certain areas included in The Addison, as legally described above, for 
public street; public sanitary sewer system improvements; public water system improvements; 
public storm sewer system improvements; public drainage ways and public drainage system 
improvements and for maintenance and access purposes, which dedications are shown and 
described on the approved and recorded Final Condominium Plat for the VK Arbor Condominium, 
which is incorporated as a part of the referenced Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS,  VK Arbor, LLC constructed, installed, and completed Phase 1 of the Required 
Public Improvements as evidenced by the completion of the Village’s field inspections and 
conditional approvals thereof and by the issuance of the Village’s Letter of Substantial Completion 
for the first phase of public improvements construction; and 

WHEREAS, VK Arbor, LLC irrevocably and unconditionally dedicated, granted and 
conveyed to the Village all Phase 1 of the Public Street Improvements as evidenced by the 
Village’s field inspections, conditional approvals, warranty period expiration and by the issuance 
of the Village’s Letter of Substantial Completion; and 

 WHEREAS, VK Arbor, LLC irrevocably and unconditionally dedicated, granted, and  

granted and conveyed to the Village all Required Phase 1 Public Water System Improvements as 
evidenced by the Village’s field inspections, conditional approvals, warranty period expiration and 
by the issuance of the Village’s Letter of Substantial Completion; and 

  WHEREAS,  VK Arbor, LLC irrevocably and unconditionally dedicated, granted and 
conveyed to the Village all Required Public Sanitary Sewer System Improvements as evidenced by 
the Village’s field inspections, conditional approvals, warranty period expiration and by the 
issuance of the Village’s Letter of Substantial Completion; and 



Village Board Resolution #14-27 

Acceptance of a portion of Phase 1  

Public Improvements for Prairie Ridge Senior Campus 

(97
th

 Court) 

 

 

2 

 

 WHEREAS, VK Arbor, LLC irrevocably and unconditionally dedicated, granted and 
conveyed to the Village all Required Public Storm Sewer and Drainage System Improvements 
evidenced by the Village’s field inspections, conditional approvals, warranty period expiration and 
 by the issuance of the Village’s Letter of Substantial Completion subject to completing repairs of 
any defects as determined from final Village storm sewer televising and modifications for final 
road paving; completing off-site drainage basin grading modifications and completing as-built 
topographic surveys of the storm water basins.; and    

 WHEREAS, VK Arbor, LLC had provided to the Village, the appropriate contractor and 
subcontractor lien waivers with respect to all work or materials supplied in connection with each 
class of Phase 1 Required Public Improvements referenced in this Resolution; and 

  WHEREAS, the Phase 1 Required Public Improvements as referenced for the portion of the 
Prairie Ridge Senior Campus were unconditionally dedicated, granted and conveyed to the Village, 
its successors and assigns forever from VK Arbor, LLC, free of charge to the Village, and free and 
clear of any encumbrances whatsoever.  All dedications to the Village of the Phase 1 Required 
Public Improvements provided for in this Resolution shall include streets, structures, mains, 
conduits, pipes, valves, lines, and other appurtenances which may in any way be a part of or 
pertain to such improvements, together with any and all necessary easements for access thereto.  

NOW THEREFORE, on this 6th day of October, 2014 the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Board of Trustees hereby accepts each such dedication only in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Village’s Land Division and Development Control Ordinance regarding acceptance 
of dedications of the Required Phase 1 Public Improvements and subject to the conditions of 
acceptance as set forth herein.  After the adoption by the Village Board of this Resolution formally 
accepting the dedication of the Required Public Improvements, the Village shall have the duty and 
right to maintain the accepted improvements only to the extent as described herein and shall 
have the right to connect to or to integrate with such improvements or facilities.  

FURTHERMORE, The Developers of The Addison, Senior Lifestyle Development Company, 
LLC, shall have the financial obligation to complete the uncompleted improvements and storm 
sewer maintenance repairs; grading improvements and topographic field surveys; street lights, 
street signs and street tree installation; and street improvements, all subject to the Village 
Engineer’s inspections and subsequent discovery of any remedial repairs as specified in the 
Assignment of Development Agreement between the Village and the Senior Lifestyle Development 
Company LLC. as also approved by the Village Board on September 15, 2014. 

 

       ________________________________ 
       John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski, CMC 
Village Clerk 
27- accepting portion of improv vk arbor - the addison 



CONSENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND SENIOR LIFESTYLE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 

 

 THIS CONSENT is entered into by FWQCM LLC (hereinafter the “Owner”), and the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin municipal corporation.  

 WHEREAS, VK Arbor LLC (a/k/a the original Prairie Ridge Senior Campus Developer) 

and the Village executed a Development Agreement dated January 17, 2005 (the “Original 

Development Agreement”) for the Required Public Improvements and Required Private 

Improvements which would serve proposed development of the Arbor Ridge Condominium and 

the Prairie Ridge Senior Campus Development, setting forth the approval conditions and the 

responsibilities and obligations with respect to matters related to the construction, inspection, use 

and maintenance of the Required Public Improvements and Required Private Improvements; and  

 WHEREAS,  in May 2010 VK Arbor LLC financially defaulted on a loan secured by the  

land and the land ownership was then transferred to FWQCM LLC, with Triumph Community 

Bank f/k/a the National Bank, as the owner representative (referred to herein as the “Bank”). At 

that time, the Village required that the existing amount of the Letter of Credit under the Original 

Development Agreement be renewed by the Owner based upon the Village Engineer’s cost 

estimates in order for the Village to have sufficient funds to complete the outstanding Required 

Public and Private Improvements not previously completed in the Prairie Ridge Senior Ridge 

Campus Development pursuant to the Original Development Agreement; and  

 WHEREAS, the Village Board has adopted Resolution # ________ on October __, 2014 

(a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A), which sets forth a portion of the Phase 1 and 2 

Required Public Improvements as referenced in the Original Development Agreement that have 

been completed, inspected, tested and accepted by the Village and which are not the obligation 

of  the Owner except as set forth below; and  

WHEREAS,  a portion of the VK Arbor LLC Development (Lot 3 of CSM #2458, Tax 

Parcel Number 91-4-122-084-0413; and Tax Parcel #’s 91-4-122-082-0490 and 91-4-122-084-

0501 through 0530), remain the financial obligation of the Owner for the completion of the 

Required Public and Private Improvements as described in Exhibit C – Conceptual Plan for 

VK Arbor  Condominiums and the Associated Off-Site Public and Private Improvements 

Cost Estimate); and  

WHEREAS, the Owner has proposed selling a portion of the property subject to the 

Original Development Agreement to Senior Lifestyle Development Company, LLC, an Illinois 

limited liability company (“Senior Lifestyle”), with the portion being transferred described on 

the Addison Certified Survey Map attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated herein by 

reference (the “Addison Property”); and   



2 
 

WHEREAS, Senior Lifestyle has agreed that in connection with the purchase of the 

Addison Property they will enter into a new Development Agreement in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit H and incorporated herein by reference (the “New Development Agreement”), and 

under which Senior Lifestyle will take over the Developer responsibilities and obligations for the 

completion of certain Required Public and Private Improvements as they pertain to the Addison 

Property and as are described on Exhibits D and F attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference; and  

WHEREAS, the Owner and Bank have requested that the Village enter into the New 

Development Agreement with Senior Lifestyle and the Owner agrees that upon the Village 

entering into the New Development Agreement the Owner shall be released from that portion of 

the Required Public and Private Improvements within the Prairie Ridge Senior Campus 

Development as are described in Exhibits D and E, but that the Owner is not being released 

from any other required Public and Private Improvements that are described in the Original 

Development Agreement.   

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 

herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree 

as follows: 

1.  The Owner and Bank agree that the Village may enter into the New Development 

Agreement with Senior Lifestyle and that the New Development Agreement does not release the 

Owner from its obligations under the Original Development Agreement, except for those 

Required Public and Private Improvements obligations specifically assumed by Senior Lifestyle 

in the New Development Agreement.  

2.  The Village agrees that upon the full execution of the New Development Agreement 

the Owner shall be released from that portion of the Required Public and Private Improvements 

within Prairie Ridge Senior Campus Development which are described in the New Development 

Agreement as the responsibility of Senior Lifestyle, and as are described on Exhibits D and E 

attached hereto.  

3.  As a part of the transaction in which the New Development Agreement is being 

entered into, the Village has agreed to reduce the Letter of Credit to be provided by the Owner 

for the property described in Original Development Agreement, except for the Addison Property 

to the sum of $716,977.66.  Attached hereto as Exhibit F and incorporated herein by reference is 

a cost breakdown analysis for the remaining Public and Private Improvements which remain a 

responsibility of the Owner, together with the computation of the amount of the Letter of Credit 

to be provided by the Owner to the Village, once the New Development Agreement has been 

executed by all parties. The New Letter of Credit shall be in the form required in the Original 

Development Agreement and shall be provided to the Village to guarantee and secure the full 

obligations of the Developer under the Original Development Agreement, including without 

limitation, to construct all Required Public Improvements and Required Private Improvements, 



3 
 

until they are completed, inspected, and as applicable, dedicated to the Village, all in accordance 

with the terms and provisions with the Original Development Agreement.  

4.  The sum of $86,504.32 is currently being held by the Village for completion of the 

Required Public Improvements under the Original Development Agreement. Said amount was 

deposited with the Village by VK Arbor  LLC  and the Owner has represented and warranted to 

the Village that the Owner has been assigned the rights to said deposit amount and has the legal 

right to transfer said deposit amount. The Owner has requested that said deposit amount be 

transferred to Senior Lifestyle as part of the New Development Agreement, which the Village 

has agreed to do; subject, however, to the Owner providing the Village with proof, acceptable to 

the Village, that the Owner is the rightful owner of said deposit amount and has the right to 

assign the deposit amount. The Owner further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Village 

from and against any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, attorneys fees, cost or expense if VK 

Arbor LLC or any third party makes a claim to said deposit amount.  

5.  Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Original 

Development Agreement remain in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and the Village have caused this Consent to be 

signed and dated as of this ___ day of October, 2014.  

FWQCM LLC 

By:  

       

Name:        

Title:        

 

STATE OF ___________ ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 Personally came before me this ____ day of October, 2014, the above-named 

___________________, known to be____________________ of FWQCM LLC and acknowledged that 

he or she executed the foregoing instrument as such officer and on behalf of said 

______________________.  

             

      Print Name:      

      Notary Public, State of __________________ 

      My Commission Expires:     

 



4 
 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

____________________________________ 

By: John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

By: Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 

 

 Personally came before me this _____ day of ___________, 2014, in Pleasant Prairie, 

Wisconsin the above-named John P. Steinbrink, Village President, and Jane M. Romanowski, 

Village Clerk, of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, and to me known to be such President and Clerk 

of said municipal corporation and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as 

such officers in their authority of said municipal corporation. 

       _________________________________  

       Print Name: _______________________ 

       Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

       My Commission Expires: _____________  

 

This instrument was drafted by: 

Attorney Timothy J. Geraghty 

GODIN GERAGHTY PUNTILLO CAMILLI, SC 

6301 Green Bay Road 

Kenosha, WI  53142 

(262) 657-3500 

  



5 
 

CONSENT OF BANK 

 

The Bank, while not a party to the Development Agreement, hereby consents to the terms set 

forth above and agrees this Consent shall not reduce or affect Bank’s obligations under the Letter 

of Credit, except as expressly set forth above.  

 

TRIUMPH COMMUNITY BANK 

 

By:      

Name:      

Title:       

Date:       



6 
 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS TO CONSENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND SENIOR LIFESTYLE 

DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC. 

 

EXHIBIT A  Village Board Resolution # ___________________________ 

 

EXHIBIT B  The Addison Certified Survey Map/Legal Description 

 

EXHIBIT C  Conceptual Plan for VK Arbor Condominiums and the Associated  

   Off-Site Public and Private Improvements Cost Estimate  

 

EXHIBIT D  The Cost Break-Down Analysis for The Addison of Pleasant   

   Prairie 

 

EXHIBIT E  Construction Plans for The Addison of Pleasant Prairie Off-Site   

   Pavement, Prairie and Utility Improvements Plans and    

   Specifications 

 

EXHIBIT F  The Cost Break-Down Analysis for The National Bank  

 

EXHIBIT G  None 

 

EXHIBIT H  New Development Agreement 

 



pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 2

pherrick
Typewritten Text





























pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 3



























pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 4



ORD. # 14-29 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 420-13 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, 

Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the Official Village Zoning Map is hereby amended 
as follows: 
 
The properties are known as Lots 1 and 2 of CSM __________ and generally located at the 
southeast corner of 97th Court and Prairie Ridge Bvld. within U. S. Public Land Survey 
Section 8 Township 1 North, Range 22 East in the Village of Pleasant Prairie are hereby 
rezoned from the R-11, (UHO) Multi-Family Residential District with a UHO, Urban 
Landholding Overlay District into the R-11 (PUD), Multi-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Unit Development Overlay. 

The Village Zoning Administrator is hereby directed to record this Zoning Map Amendment 
on the appropriate sheet of the Official Village Zoning Map and Appendix B in Chapter 420 of 
the Village Municipal Code shall be updated to include said amendments. 

Adopted this 6th day of October 2014. 
 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
ATTEST: 

________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 
Village President 

_________________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk 
 
Posted:____________ 
 
29-Senior Lifestyle Project 



ORDINANCE # 14-30 

ORDINANCE TO CREATE A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  

PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 420-137 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR  

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE,  

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, 

Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the following PUD Ordinance is hereby created for The 

Addison of Pleasant Prairie development pursuant to Chapter 420-137 of the Village Zoning 

Ordinance as follows: 

The Addison of Pleasant Prairie Planned Unit Development 

a. It is the intent that The Addison of Pleasant Prairie, on the properties as legally 

described below, is in conformance with the Village of Pleasant Prairie (Village) 

adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the Village adopted Prairie Ridge 

Neighborhood Plan; that the development would not be contrary to the general 

health, safety, welfare and economic prosperity of the community; and that the 

architectural, building and site design, property management, landscaping, grading 

and drainage, lighting and general site development will result in an attractive and 

harmonious residential environment of sustained desirability and economic stability 

and will not adversely affect the property values of the surrounding neighborhood.   

b. Legal Description:  The properties included are collectively known as Lots 1 and 2 of 

CSM __________ as recorded at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office on 

________________, 2014 as Document # _____________, and located in U.S. 

Public Land Survey Section 8, Township 1 North, Range 22 East in the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie and is hereinafter referred to as the “DEVELOPMENT”. 

c. Requirements within the DEVELOPMENT: 

(i) The DEVELOPMENT shall be in compliance with all Federal, State, County and 

Village Ordinances and regulations except as expressly modified in subsection 

(d) below. 

(ii) The DEVELOPMENT shall be in compliance with the Declaration of Covenants 

and Restrictions for Prairie Ridge Commercial Development, as may be 

amended from time to time, as recorded at the Kenosha County Register of 

Deeds Office.   

(iii) All public/private improvements for this DEVELOPMENT are required to be 

installed pursuant to the Assignment of Development Agreement for a portion 

of the Arbor Ridge Development Agreement.  The Assignment was entered 

into between the Village and Senior LifeStyle Development Company, LLC as 

approved by the Village Board on September 15, 2014. 

(iv) Lot 1 of the DEVELOPMENT, which includes a 96 living units that provides 

supportive care and assisted living services from trained employees to 

residents who require assistance with activities of daily living (ADLs) including 

management of medications, bathing, dressing, toileting, ambulating and 

eating and to residents who have Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of 

dementia.   

(v) Lot 1 of the DEVELOPMENT shall comply with Conditional Use Permit #14-05 

as approved by the Plan Commission on September 8, 2014 and recorded at 

the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office. 



The Addison of Pleasant Prairie  

Planned Unit Development 
 

Page 2 

(vi) Lot 1 of the DEVELOPMENT shall comply with the Architectural and Civil Plans 

as approved by the Village Board on September 15, 2014 and as shown as 

Exhibits 1 and 2, respectively. 

(vii) This PUD shall be amended when detailed Development Plans are submitted 

for Lot 2 of the DEVELOPMENT.  As shown on the Conceptual Plan, 

conditionally approved by the Village on December 9, 2013, Lot 2 is proposed 

to be developed as phase 2 with a 66 unit senior living units with 50 

underground parking spaces. 

(viii) The DEVELOPMENT, including but not limited to, the building(s), accessory 

structure garbage enclosures, sign(s), fence(s), landscaping, parking lots, 

exterior site lighting, etc., and the DEVELOPMENT as a whole, shall be 

maintained both inside and outside in a neat, presentable, aesthetically 

pleasing, structurally sound and non-hazardous condition. Maintenance shall 

be conducted on a regular basis both inside and outside of the buildings and 

site.  

(ix) The owner of the DEVELOPMENT shall be in compliance with the Digital 

Security Imaging System Agreement (DSIS) and Access Easement as 

approved by the Village on September 8, 2014. 

(x) All buildings within the DEVELOPMENT shall comply with the fire suppression 

requirements of Chapter 180 of the Village Municipal Code. 

(xi) All buildings and site modifications (excluding general building and site 

maintenance) within the DEVELOPMENT shall be made in accordance with the 

applicable Village Ordinance and Codes at the time the modification is 

proposed. 

(xii) All buildings/structures and all exterior additions, remodeling or alterations to 

the any buildings/structures within the DEVELOPMENT shall be constructed of 

the same or complimentary exterior materials, colors and architectural style 

to ensure a unified commercial development, including signage, lighting, 

outdoor furniture, etc. with the Prairie Ridge entire commercial area included 

within the Prairie Ridge Subdivision.  

(xiii) All exterior site building and landscaping maintenance shall be performed 

regularly by the owners or managers of the DEVELOPMENT. 

(xiv) No trucks [e.g. semi cab, semi-trailer, construction vehicles (except when 

permitted construction activities are taking place), step vans, delivery vans 

(except when goods and merchandise are being delivered), business-related 

vehicles with advertising displayed on the vehicles, catering vehicles, other 

commercial vehicles, etc.] parking allowed within the DEVELOPMENT. 

(xv) Temporary or permanent storage containers (some having brand names such 

as P.O.D.S, S.A.M.S., etc.) are not allowed within the DEVELOPMENT. 

(xvi) No flags, pennants, streamers, inflatable signage, spot lights, walking signs, 

shall be affixed to any building, landscaping vehicle, roof-top, or the ground 

shall be allowed unless expressly permitted by the Zoning Ordinance. 

(xvii) The DEVELOPMENT shall be maintained in a neat, presentable, aesthetically 

pleasing, structurally sound and nonhazardous condition. All litter and debris 

shall be promptly removed.  



The Addison of Pleasant Prairie  

Planned Unit Development 
 

Page 3 

(xviii) The DEVELOPMENT shall not be used for any outside parking (neither 

overnight nor during the day) of junked, inoperable, dismantled or unlicensed 

vehicles.  All junked, inoperable, dismantled or unlicensed vehicles that are 

parked outside will be issued citations. 

(xix) In the event that public transportation to service the DEVELOPMENT is 

requested, it shall be the responsibility of the property owner to fund the cost 

of providing such public transportation to and from the DEVELOPMENT. 

(xx) The DEVELOPMENT shall comply with all applicable performance standards set 

forth in Section 420-38 of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  

(xxi) The DEVELOPMENT shall be operated and maintained in a uniform manner, 

and shall continue to comply with this PUD, which may be amended from time 

to time regardless of property ownership.  If the DEVELOPMENT, or any 

portion of the DEVELOPMENT, is sold to another entity(s), the DEVELOPMENT 

shall continue to operate and be maintained as a unified residential 

development.   

(xxii) No additional land divisions shall be allowed within the DEVELOPMENT unless 

approved by the Village. 

d. Specific Modifications to the Village Ordinance and Regulations and Specific 

Requirements for the DEVELOPMENT: 

(i) Section 420-116 B (a) related to the number of dwelling units per structure is 

being modified to read as follows: 

(a) The building on Lot 1 within the DEVELOPMENT shall not 

exceed 96 units and the building on Lot 2 within the 

Development shall not exceed 66 senior units. 

(ii) Section 420-116 F (1) related to maximum building height on Lot 1 within the 

DEVELOPMENT is being modified to read as follows: 

(1) No building or parts of the building shall exceed 45 feet 

in height. 

(iii) Section 420-116 F (2) related to unit sizes in the building on Lot 1 within the 

DEVELOPMENT is being modified to read as follows: 

(2) The units shall be a minimum of 300 square feet. 

(iv) Section 420-47 D related to the width of the driveway is proposed to be 

modified to read as follows: 

D. Width. The maximum width of a driveway shall not 

exceed 35 feet at the property line with the exception to 

the northern most service entrance to Lot 1 within the 

DEVELOPMENT which shall not exceed 38 feet at the 

property line. 



The Addison of Pleasant Prairie  

Planned Unit Development 
 

Page 4 

(v) Section 420-48 L related to parking areas (including parking spaces, 

maneuvering lanes and fire lanes) shall be modified to read as follows: 

(1) Twenty feet setback from all adjoining street rights-of-

ways, except for the rear service drive off of 97th Court 

on Lot 1 to provide cross access to Lot 2 within the 

DEVELOPMENT. 

(2) A zero setback between the common lot line of Lots 1 

and 2 of the DEVELOPMENT. 

e. Amendments 

(i) The PUD regulations for said DEVELOPMENT may be amended pursuant to 

Section 420-13 of the Village Zoning Ordinance. 

(ii) The Zoning Administrator has the discretion to approve minor changes, 

adjustments and additions to this PUD ordinance document without the need 

for Village Plan Commission and Village Board review and approval. 

Adopted this 6th day of October 2014. 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

ATTEST: _____________________________ 

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

_________________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted: ______________ 

 
30-Senior Lifestyle Development PUD 







1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.00

T
I
T

L
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

Developer

PROJECT
LOCATION

Plan Sheet Index

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND
ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR
IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION
OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED
UTILITY CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR
SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

GAS METER

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

UNDERGROUND VAULT

SECTION CORNER

SIGN

MAIL BOX

HVAC UNIT

GUARD POST

SOIL BORING

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

LIGHT POLE (EXISTING)

WATER MAIN REDUCER (EXISTING)

STORM MANHOLE (PROPOSED)

SANITARY MANHOLE (PROPOSED)

SANITARY MANHOLE (EXISTING)

WATER MAIN REDUCER (PROPOSED)

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

NO VEHICULAR ACCESS

SEPTIC VENT

FENCE

EROSION BALES

RAILROAD TRACKS

UNDERGROUND, GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND CABLE, TV

SILT FENCE

UTILITY POLE

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

TELEPHONE BOX

CULVERT (PROPOSED)

CULVERT (EXISTING)

ENDWALL (PROPOSED)

CATCH BASIN (EXISTING)

CATCH BASIN (PROPOSED)

UNDERGROUND CABLE, ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND CABLE, TELEPHONE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

CONIFEROUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE REMOVAL

BUSH

SANITARY CLEAN OUT (PROPOSED)

STORM MANHOLE (EXISTING)

SANITARY CLEAN OUT (EXISTING)

HYDRANT (PROPOSED)

HYDRANT (EXISTING)

WATER SHUT OFF (PROPOSED)

WATER MAIN VALVE (EXISTING)

WATER MAIN VALVE (PROPOSED)

AIR RELIEF VALVE (PROPOSED)

RIP RAP (PROPOSED)

DECIDUOUS TREE REMOVAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

EDGE OF WOODS

CHECK VALVE (PROPOSED)

WATER SHUT OFF (EXISTING)

Symbols Legend

KENOSHA

LIGHT POLE (PROPOSED)

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (PROPOSED)

WATER MANHOLE

AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY
BRIAN MCGEE
OFFICE: 262-506-68955
EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341

WISCONSIN D.O.T.
SOUTHEAST REGION
OFFICE: (414) 266-1167

AT&T
MIKE TOYEK
OFFICE: 262-636-0549
EMAIL: mt1734@att.com

TDS TELECOM
SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
OFFICE: 877-483-7142

TIME WARNER CABLE
STEVE CRAMER
   - UTILITY COORDINATOR
OFFICE: 414-277-4045
EMAIL: steve.cramer@twcable.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 627-2288

WE-ENERGIES
LINDA SCHREIER
KENOSHA SOUTH
OFFICE: 262-552-3228
EMAIL: linda.schreier@we-energies.com

NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325
ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY: (800) 662-4797

Public Utility Contacts

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE HALL
9915 39TH STREET
PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158
OFFICE: (262) 694-1400

  - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
JEAN WERBIE-HARRIS, DIRECTOR
     - PLANNER, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6718
EMAIL: jwerbie-harris@plprairiewi.com

PEGGY HERRICK
     - ASSISTANT PLANNER & ZONING 

ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6716
EMAIL: pherrick@plprairiewi.com

  - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
MICHAEL SPENCE
     - VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 948-8931
EMAIL: mspence@plprairiewi.com

MATT FINEOUR
     - ASSISTANT VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 925-6778
EMAIL: mfineour@plprairiewi.com

STEVE WLAHOVICH
     - ENGINEERING TECHNITIAN
OFFICE: (262) 925-6767
EMAIL: swlahovich@plprairie.com

  - BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT
SANDRO PEREZ
     -BUILDING INSPECTION SUPERINTENDENT
OFFICE: (262) 694-9304
DIRECT: (262) 925-6722
EMAIL: sperez@plprairie.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE FIRE DEPARTMENT
DOUG Mc ELMURY,
    - CHIEF OF FIRE & RESUCE
8044 88TH AVENUE
OFFICE: (262) 694-8027
EMAIL: fireandrescue@plprairie.com

THOMAS CLARK
    - LIEUTENANT FIRE & RESCUE

DEPARTMENT
DIRECT: (262) 948-8982
EMAIL: tclark@plprairiewi.com

CRAIG ROEPKE
    - DEPUTY CHIEF OF FIRE & RESCUE
DIRECT: (262) 948-8981
EMAIL: croepke@plprairiewi.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE PUBLIC WORKS
JOHN STEINBRINK, JR.,
    - SUPERINTENDENT
ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
8600 GREEN BAY ROAD
OFFICE: (262) 925-6768
EMAIL: jsteinbrink@plprairie.com

WI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
ELAINE JOHNSON
   - WATER RESOURCE SPECIALIST
OFFICE: 262-884-2136
EMAIL: elaine.johnson@wisconsin.gov

PETER WOOD
   - WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER
OFFICE: 262-884-2360
EMAIL: peter.wood@wisconsin.gov

Governing Agency Contacts

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
for

THE ADDISON OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
AN ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY

Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin

Underground Utility Note:

Pre-construction Meeting Note:
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING (OWNER'S
ARCHITECT / REPRESENTATIVE, OWNER'S ENGINEER, GENERAL CONTRACTOR,
VILLAGE ENGINEER, VILLAGE BUILDING INSPECTOR, FIRE & RESCUE
INSPECTOR, IT/DSIS INSPECTOR AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR) MUST BE HELD
AT THE VILLAGE HALL. THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING SHALL BE
COORDINATED AND MODERATED BY THE DESIGN ENGINEER OF RECORD .

Construction Access Note:
ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL ACCESS THE SITE VIA STH 50 (75TH STREET)
TO 104TH AVENUE TO 97TH COURT.  NO CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL BE
ALLOWED ON CTH C OR OTHER ADJACENT VILLAGE STREETS.  ANY AND ALL
PAVEMENTS, CURBS AND GUTTERS, SIDEWALKS OR PARKWAY TREES DAMAGED
DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND PER VILLAGE OF
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SPECIFICATIONS.

Survey Bench Marks
1.    TOP NUT OF HYDRANT ON
      W. SIDE OF 96th AVE. 325' S.
      OF PRAIRIE RIDGE BLVD.
      ELEVATION: 722.34

2.   TOP NUT OF HYDRANT AT
     NE CORNER OF 96th AVE.

AND 97th CT.
     ELEVATION: 719.50

SENIOR LIFESTYLE CORPORATION
MATT PHILLIPS, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
111 EAST WACKER DRIVE, STE 2200
CHICAGO, IL  60601
OFFICE: (312) 673-4374
FAX:     (312) 673-4306
EMAIL: mphillips@seniorlifestyle.com

Developer

TITLE SHEET

EXISTING CONDITIONS SURVEY

DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

MASTER GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

SITE PAVEMENT & SIDEWALK GRADING PLAN

TRAFFIC SIGNAGE & MARKING PLAN

SITE UTILITY PLAN

STORM SEWER UTILITY PLAN

TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-1.00

C-1.01

C-1.02

C-1.03

C-1.04

C-1.05

C-1.06

C-1.07

C-1.08 THRU C-1.10

3.    TOP NUT OF HYDRANT ON
      E. SIDE OF 97th CT. 600' S.
      OF PRAIRIE RIDGE BLVD.
      ELEVATION: 719.00

95% CD REVIEW
4

07/31/14

Legal Description:
LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2458 A RECORDED MAP, BEING PART OF THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH,
RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.

TAX ID No. 91-4-122-082-0412



60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

C-1.01

Existing Ground Cover - Meadow

Existing Site Soils
 Varna Silt Loam (VaB) - 5.24 Acres
 Elliott Silty Clay Loam (EtB) - 1.27 Acres
 Markham Silt Loam (MeB) - 0.01 Acres
 Markham Silt Loam (MeB2) - 2.69 Acres

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NATIONAL

LEGEND:

GEODETIC DATUM OF 1929.

LIGHT POLE

SANITARY SEWERCATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC METER

PAD MOUNT

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

GAS VALVE

POWER POLE

GUY WIRE

MON. WELL

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

SIGN

GAS MAIN

TELEPHONE LINE

OVER HEAD ELECTRIC

SOIL CLASSIFICATIONTRANSFORMER

(PRIVATE STREET)

(D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(P
R

IV
A

TE
 S

TR
E

E
T)

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

EXISTING CONDITION SURVEY

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

(PR
IVATE STR

EET)

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

4
07/31/1495% CD REVIEW



P
H

A
S

E
 II

P
H

A
S

E
 I

3-STORY / 96 UNIT
ASSISTED LIVING CENTER

F/F/F = 721.00

3-STORY / 66 UNIT
SENIOR LIVING CENTER

(51 BELOW GRADE PARKING STALLS)
F/F/F = 720.50-F/B/F = 709.50

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

PROPOSED
CONCRETE
PAVEMENT
(BY OTHERS)

PROPOSED
ASPHALT
PAVEMENT
(BY OTHERS)

PROPOSED
MOMUMENT
SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED
PUBLIC
SIDEWALK
(BY OTHERS)

EXISTING END OF
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE
BERM

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE
BERM

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE
BERM

PROPOSED
PATIO

NOTE:
1. SEE ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN FOR

ADDITIONAL DETAILS.

PATIO

PROPOSED PUBLIC SIDEWALK
(BY OTHERS)

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.02

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

Utility Note

D
I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
E

D
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

PROPOSED
MOMUMENT
SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED
MOMUMENT
SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED
MOMUMENT
SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

LOT 1

LOT 2
(P

R
IV

A
TE

 S
TR

E
E

T)

(PRIVATE STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(PR
IVATE STR

EET)

(PR
IVATE STR

EET)

(PRIVATE STREET)

(D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T)

SEE SHEET C-1.05 FOR
ADA STALL DIMENSIONS

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

EXISTING
PUBLIC

SIDEWALK

4
07/31/14

PROPOSED
CONCRETE
PAVEMENT
(BY OTHERS)

95% CD REVIEW



3-STORY / 96 UNIT
ASSISTED LIVING CENTER

F/F/F = 721.00

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

PROPOSED EARTHEN BERM

PROPOSED
DUMPSTER

LOCATION

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.03

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

Utility Note

M
A

S
T

E
R

 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
&

 
E

R
O

S
I
O

N
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 
P

L
A

N

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

MASTER GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T)

(PRIVATE STREET)

(P
R

IV
A

TE
 S

TR
E

E
T)

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 Y
A

R
D

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

/ M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

S
TO

R
A

G
E

4
07/31/1495% CD REVIEW

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER AND SIDEWALK
TO BE REMOVED AS NECESSARY TO
INSTALLED PROPOSED DRIVEWAY
ENTRANCE PER SHEET C-1.01



60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.05

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

Utility Note

ACCESSIBLE ROUTES GENERAL NOTES
ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ICC/ANSI
A117.1-2009 "AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARD - ACCESSIBLE AND USABLE BUILDINGS
AND FACILITIES", HEREIN REFERRED TO AS THE "ICC/ANSI A117.1".

WALKING SURFACES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH "ICC/ANSI
A117.1-2009" SECTION 403.  WALKING SURFACE RUNNING SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED
1:20 (5.00%).  CROSS SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 1:48 (2.08%).

RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH "ICC/ANSI A117.1-2009"
SECTION 405.  RAMP RUNNING SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 1:20 (5.00%).  CROSS
SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 1:48 (2.08%).  

HANDRAILS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON ALL RAMPS (EXCLUDING CURB RAMPS) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH "ICC/ANSI A117.1-2009" SECTION 505.  LANDINGS SHALL  NOT
EXCEED A 1:48 (2.08%) SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION.

CURB RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH "ICC/ANSI A117.1-2009"
SECTION 406 AND THE DETAIL(S) ON THE "TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET.

PAVEMENT MARKING NOTE:
FINAL PLACEMENT OF PAINTED WORDS, SYMBOLS, AND
ARROWS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE OWNER.

4/2
C-1.09

6
C-1.09

9
C-1.09

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

TRAFFIC SIGNAGE & MARKING PLAN

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T)
(PRIVATE STREET)

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

T
R

A
F

F
I
C

 
S

I
G

N
A

G
E

 
&

 
M

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

5/2
C-1.10

5/2
C-1.09

10
C-1.09

9
C-1.099

C-1.09

4/2
C-1.09

10
C-1.09

6
C-1.09

3
C-1.10

4
07/31/1495% CD REVIEW



20'

SCALE 1"=10'

10' 0' 10' 20'

3-STORY / 96 UNIT
ASSISTED LIVING CENTER

F/F/F = 721.00

PUBLIC UTILITY NOTES
TELEPHONE SERVICE INSTALLATION TO BE COORDINATED WITH THE ELECTRICAL
SERVICE.

ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO BE COORDINATED WITH WE ENERGIES. EXACT LOCATION
OF THE SERVICE ENTRANCE / METER TO BE COORDINATED WITH WE ENERGIES,
THE MECHANICAL DESIGNER AND THE ARCHITECT.

SIX (6) INCH CONCRETE FILLED STEEL PIPE BOLLARDS SHALL BE INSTALLED TWO
(2) FEET OUTWARD OF THE ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER PAD AT FOUR (4) FOOT
MAXIMUM SPACING MAKING SURE THAT THE BOLLARDS DO NOT INTERFERE WITH
THE TRANSFORMER DOOR.

SIZING AND PERMITTING FOR THE FIRE PROTECTION MAIN SHALL BE
COMPLETED BY A LICENSED WISCONSIN FIRE PROTECTION DESIGNER.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THAT THE 6" WATER SERVICE
PROPOSED MEETS THE REQUIRED FIRE PROTECTION DEMAND.

FIRE PROTECTION NOTES

THE EXACT LOCATION OF THE SANITARY SEWER LATERAL, DOMESTIC
WATER LINE, FIRE PROTECTION LEAD, NATURAL GAS SERVICE,

ELECTRIC, AND PHONE LINES (AS THEY ENTER THE BUILDING) SHALL
BE PER THE ARCHITECTURAL OR MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

TELEPHONE CABLE, ELECTRIC SERVICE, ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER,
NATURAL GAS MAIN AND GAS METER TO BE INSTALLED BY

WE-ENERGIES. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY
COORDINATION.

UTILITY COORDINATION

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.06

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

Utility Note

W-1

WSC 1.0

BEND 1.1

TEE 1.2

BEND 1.3

W
S
 
1
.4

W-2

FDC 2.0

CV 2.3

F
S
 
2
.4

F-1

S-2

S-3

S-8

S-6

SSL 3.0

MH 3.1

BEND 3.2

S
S
 
3
.4

GT 3.5

CO 3.6

HYD #2

HYD #1

S-1:   33' -  8" SAN @  1.01% (EX)
S-2:   50' -  8" SAN @  1.01%
S-3:   49' -  8" SAN @  1.01%
S-4:   54' -  8" SAN @  1.01%
S-5:   30' -  8" SAN @  4.16%
S-6:    8' -  4" SAN @ 25.00%
S-7:   19' -  4" SAN @ 20.79%
S-8:    4' -  4" SAN @  4.16%

SAN. SEWER LAT. 3.0
IE.  8" (W/E) 708.33

SANITARY SEWER DESIGN

W-1:  138' -  8" WM @ 2.70%
W-2:   74' -  8" WM @ 2.70%

WATERMAIN DESIGN

WATER SER. LAT. 1.0
IE.  8" (E) 708.0±

BEND 1.1 (45°)
IE.  8" (W/SE) 708.44

TEE 1.2
IE.  8" (NW/SE) 711.72
IE.  6" (SW) 711.80

BEND 1.3 (45°)
IE.  8" (NW/E) 712.00

BUILDING SERVICE 1.4
IE.  8" (W) 713.72

F-1:   82' -  4" FDC @ 2.05%

REMOTE FIRE DEPARTMENT

FDC CONNECTOR 2.0
CNTR OF CPL 720.10

BEND 2.1 (45°)
IE.  4" (W/NE) 712.99

CHECK VALVE MH 2.3

IE.  4" (W/E) 712.55

BUILDING SERVICE 2.4
IE.  4" (E) 713.72

IE.  4" (E) 712.04

BEND 2.2 (45°)
IE.  4" (SW/E) 713.12

RIM 718.95 

RIM 715.80
SAN SAMPLING MH 3.1

IE.  8" (E) 708.84
IE.  8" (W) 708.84

BUILDING SERVICE 3.4
IE.  8" (W) 711.13

RIM (S) 719.95
GREASE TRAP MH 3.5

IE.  4" (SW) 712.05
IE.  4" (NE) 712.22

RIM (N) 720.10

RIM 720.40
SAN CLEANOUT 3.6

IE.  8" (W/NE) 716.17

BEND 3.2 (45°)
IE.  8" (W/NE) 709.33

BUILDING SERVICE 3.7
IE.  4" (W) 716.29

STORM WATER MAINTENANCE PLAN
THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE / WATER QUALITY SYSTEM BEING INSTALLED AS PART OF THIS
DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE INSPECTED ON A SEMIANNUAL BASIS.

AS PART OF THE INSPECTION, ANY SILT, SEDIMENT OR DEBRIS BUILT UP IN THE BOTTOM OF THE
STRUCTURE SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF.

IF EXCESSIVE AMOUNTS OF SEDIMENT ARE PRESENT, THE MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE SHALL BE ADJUSTED
ACCORDINGLY OR A PAVEMENT SWEEPING PROGRAM ESTABLISHED TO MINIMIZE THE SEDIMENT LOADING
ENTERING THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE/WATER QUALITY SYSTEM.

THE PROPERTY OWNER IS ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT THE STORM WATER LEAVING
THE SITE IS AS CLEAN AS PRACTICABLE.

SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN
SPECIFICATIONS
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE 7 DAYS NOTICE TO THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE UTILITY DEPARTMENT
BEFORE COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION ON ANY SEWER OR WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE OWNER 24 HOURS PRIOR TO PROPOSED WATER MAIN SHUTDOWNS OR
ANY WORK THAT MAY INTERFERE WITH EXISTING WATER SERVICE.  ALL EXISTING VALVES, HYDRANTS, AND OTHER
WATER INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE MAINTAINED AND OPERATED BY OR IN THE PRESENCE OF THE OWNER.

SANITARY SEWER SAMPLING MANHOLES SHALL BE FORTY EIGHT INCH (48") DIAMETER PRECAST STRUCTURES, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS".  SEE CONSTRUCTION DETAIL FOR FURTHER INFORMATION..

WATER MAIN AND LATERAL PIPE MATERIAL SHALL BE FOUR INCH (4") AND SIX INCH (6") PVC PIPE CLASS 150, DR 18
(AS SHOWN) MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF AWWA STANDARD C-900, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "VILLAGE
SPECIFICATIONS". HYDRANT LEADS SHALL BE SIX INCH (6") POLY-ENCASED DUCTILE IRON PIPE CLASS 53 (AS
SHOWN) MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF AWWA STANDARD C-151 / ANSI 21.51 IN ACCORDANCE WITH "VILLAGE
SPECIFICATIONS".

RESILIENT WEDGE SEATED GATE VALVES CONFORMING TO AWWA C-509 SHALL BE USED FOR FOUR-INCH (4") TO
EIGHT-INCH (8") APPLICATIONS. GATE VALVES SHALL BE WATEROUS "SERIES 500" AS MANUFACTURED BY
AMERICAN FLOW CONTROL, CLOW F-6100 OR MUELLER A-2370-22 WITH A MINIMUM PRESSURE RATING OF 200 PSI.
ALL VALVES SHALL BE MADE WITH STAINLESS STEEL NUTS AND BOLTS AND SHALL CLOSE CLOCKWISE WITH
NON-RISING STEMS (GATE VALVE ONLY) AND A TWO-INCH (2") SQUARE TAPERED OPERATING NUT.

VALVE BOXES SHALL BE THREE-PIECE CAST-IRON SHAFT SCREW TYPE WITH A CAST IRON VALVE BOX COVER
CLEARLY MARKED "WATER" AND SHALL BE NORTH AMERICAN, SIGMA OR STAR MADE ONLY PER THE "VILLAGE
SPECIFICATIONS".  VALVE BOX ADAPTERS SHALL BE MANUFACTURED BY ADAPTOR, INC., OR APPROVED EQUAL.

HYDRANTS SHALL CONFORM TO AWWA C-502 FOR DRY BARREL FIRE HYDRANTS AND SHALL BE RED IN COLOR
WITH SILVER NOZZLE CAPS AND OPERATING NUT.  HYDRANTS SHALL BE  MUELLER CENTURION A-423
MATCHING THE VILLAGE'S STANDARD DETAIL.

THE FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (FDC) SHALL CONFORM TO THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS". THE FDC SHALL
HAVE ONE (1) FIVE INCH (5") STORZ CONNECTION WHICH SHALL BE LABELED "AUTO SPRK". THE BOTTOM OF THE
STORZ CONNECTION SHALL BE TWENTY FOUR INCHES (24") ABOVE FINISHED GRADE. THE FDC SHALL BE LOCATED
A MAXIMUM OF FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE ADJACENT HYDRANT AND A MAXIMUM OF FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE
PAVEMENT. THE FDC SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A CHECK VALVE WITH BALL DRIP. THIS CHECK VALVE SHALL BE
CONTAINED WITHIN A VAULT CONSISTING OF A MINIMUM FORTY-TWO INCH (42") DIAMETER MANHOLE. THE VAULT
SHALL BE SET ON A MINIMUM OF FOUR INCHES (4") OF #2 STONE AND SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A NEENAH
R-1755-F2 FROST/WATER-TIGHT FRAME AND SOLID LID.

REFERENCES
ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REFERENCE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE APPLICABLE TO THE PROPOSED
ITEMS OF WORK ARE INCLUDED IN THIS CONTRACT:

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN, SIXTH EDITION,
DECEMBER 22, 2003 WITH ADDENDA NO. 1 AND NO. 2, HEREIN REFERRED TO AS "STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS."

STATE OF WISCONSIN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION, 2012
EDITION, HEREIN REFERRED TO AS "STATE SPECIFICATIONS."  THE CURRENT VERSION OF THE "STATE
SPECIFICATIONS" IS AVAILABLE ON THE WisDOT WEBSITE AT
http://roadwaystandards.dot.wi.gov/standards/stndspec/index.htm

LAND DIVISION ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN,
CHAPTER 395, VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES.

CHAPTER 405 OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE MUNICIPAL CODE "PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS",
DATED DECEMBER 20, 2004, INCLUDED HEREIN AND REFERRED TO AS THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS."

ALL SANITARY SEWER AND WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS" AND THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS".

* WHENEVER THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS" AND THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS" DIFFER, THE
"VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS" SHALL GOVERN.

* WHENEVER THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS", THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS" OR CONSTRUCTION
PLANS DIFFER, THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS" SHALL GOVERN.

GENERAL NOTES
ALL APPLICATIONS AND CONNECTION FEES FOR SANITARY SEWER AND WATER SERVICES MUST BE
SUBMITTED AND PAID PRIOR TO CONNECTION TO THE EXISTING SYSTEMS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL ELEVATIONS, LOCATIONS AND SIZES OF EXISTING SANITARY AND STORM
SEWERS, WATER MAINS, GAS & ELECTRIC LINES OR OTHER UTILITIES PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.
AS-BUILT (FIELD) DATA SHALL BE USED TO CHECK ALL PROPOSED UTILITY CROSSINGS FOR CONFLICTS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT DIGGER'S HOTLINE A MINIMUM OF 72 HOURS BEFORE THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION TO IDENTIFY ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRESENT AT THE SITE.  THE LOCATION OF
EXISTING PRIVATE UTILITIES MAY NOT BE SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND SHOULD BE LOCATED BY THE OWNER
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

ANY AND ALL EXISTING SIDEWALKS, CURBS OR PAVEMENTS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
SAWCUT AT THE NEAREST JOINT AND REPLACED IN KIND PER THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS".

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL ABANDONED,
EXCESS, WASTE, STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE
SPECIFICATIONS". THIS WORK SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

MATERIAL FOR SANITARY SEWERS AND WATER MAINS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (SPS) AND THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS".

ALL SANITARY SEWER, STORM SEWER, WATER MAIN AND FIRE PROTECTION LATERALS INSTALLED IN
EXISTING OR PROPOSED PAVED AREAS SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH COMPACTED GRANULAR MATERIAL IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 37, CHAPTER 8.43.4 OF THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS".  BACKFILL MATERIAL
SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF FIVE FEET (5') OUTSIDE OF THE PAVEMENT LIMITS.  TRENCHES RUNNING
PARALLEL TO AND LESS THAN FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT SHALL ALSO REQUIRE
COMPACTED GRANULAR BACKFILL.

PROVIDE FIVE FEET (5') OF COVER OVER ALL SANITARY SEWERS AND SIX AND ONE HALF FEET (6-1/2') OF
COVER OVER ALL WATER MAINS.  MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF UTILITY MAINS IS EIGHT FEET (8').
PROVIDE VERTICAL SEPARATION OF UTILITIES PER CODE.

STORM SEWER SPECIFICATIONS

THE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (PIPES P-1 - P-5) WAS SIZED ACCORDING TO SPS TABLE 382.36-4 "MAXIMUM
CAPACITY OF STORM WATER HORIZONTAL CONVEYANCE PIPING FOR CONCRETE, ASTM C76 AND ASTM C14".
ANY MATERIAL APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF
SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  MAY BE USED AT THE SLOPES AND SIZES DESIGNED.

STORM SEWER MANHOLES (MH) SHALL BE FORTY-TWO INCH (42") DIAMETER REINFORCED CONCRETE
STRUCTURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS".   MANHOLES SHALL BE FURNISHED
WITH A NEENAH R-1580 FRAME & GRATE.

STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS (CB) INSTALLED WITHIN CURB & GUTTER SECTIONS SHALL BE TWENTY-FOUR
INCH BY THIRTY-SIX INCH (24" X 36") RECTANGULAR REINFORCED CONCRETE STRUCTURES FURNISHED WITH
A NEENAH R-3067, TYPE "DL" FRAME & GRATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAIL SHOWN ON THE "TYPICAL
SECTIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET.

STORM SEWER INLETS (INL) SHALL BE EIGHTEEN INCH (18") NDS 1800 CATCH BASINS, OR APPROVED EQUAL,
WITH A SIX INCH (6") EXTENSION RISER, AS NEEDED, TO REACH THE RIM ELEVATION AS SHOWN ON THE
PLANS. EACH INLET STRUCTURE SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH AN NDS 1891 DOME GRATE (GREEN), INSTALLED
UPSIDE DOWN AND COVERED WITH THREE INCHES (3") TO FOUR INCHES (4") RIVER ROCK AS SHOWN ON THE
DETAIL ON THE "TYPICAL SECTIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET.

S
I
T

E
 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

SITE UTILITY PLAN

PRIVATE MAIN (PREVIOUSLY
INSTALLED BY OTHERS)

PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER MAIN
(PREVIOUSLY INSTALLED BY OTHERS)

S-4

S-1

MEALS SERVED PER DAY (M): 300 

HOURS PER DAY (H): 12
GALLONS PER DAY (G): 3 

MxGxH
    2xP

USE 2000 GALLON TANK

MEAL PERIODS PER DAY (P): 3 

    2x3

C =

300x3x9C =

C = 1,350 GALLONS (REQUIRED)

CONNECTION DESIGN

EXTERIOR GREASE
INTERCEPTOR SIZING

SALVAGE AND REINSTALL
HYDRANT AT NEW

LOCATION
(2)45° BENDS

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

BEND
2.2

BEND
2.1

S-7

S-5

JCT 3.3

JUNCTION 3.3
IE.  8" (SW) 709.88
IE.  4" (NE)  710.05

SS 3.7

4
07/31/1495% CD REVIEW



P-14

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17

2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS

18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

9
6

5
1

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

T
H

E
 
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
O

F
 
P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

,
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

630 DUNDEE ROAD

NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062

847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

A
N

 
A

S
S

I
S

T
E

D
 
L

I
V

I
N

G
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

SIGNATURE

03/24/14
80% REVIEW



1

C-1.07

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE
ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION,
SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS
THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO,
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL “DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

Utility Note

FLANGE 718.62
STM CB 1.5

IE. 12" (SE) 715.27

FLANGE 720.34
STM CB 1.4

IE. 12" (NW) 714.80
IE. 12" (S) 714.80

IE.  6" (W) 715.20

FLANGE 718.24
STM CB 1.3

IE. 12" (N) 714.47
IE. 15" (S) 714.47

FLANGE 718.18
STM CB 1.0

IE. 15" (N) 714.45
IE. 15" (SE) 714.45

IE.  6" (SW) 715.05

FLANGE 717.27
STM CB 3.2

IE.  8" (NW) 712.05

FLANGE 714.69
STM CB 3.1

IE.  8" (NE) 706.89
IE. 21" (SW) 706.02

IE. 10" (SE) 706.75

P-1:    8' - 15" RCP @ 1.38% (EX)
P-2:   48' - 15" RCP @ 0.52%
P-3:   43' -  6" STM @ 1.04%
P-4:    8' - 15" STM @ 0.26%
P-5:  125' - 12" STM @ 0.26%
P-6:  181' - 12" STM @ 0.26%
P-7:   90' -  6" STM @ 0.26%
P-8:  105' -  6" STM @ 1.04%
P-9:   14' -  6" STM @ 4.08%
P-10:  52' -  6" STM @ 0.26%
P-11:  54' -  6" STM @ 0.26%
P-12:  14' -  6" STM @ 0.26%
P-13:  15' -  6" STM @ 4.16%
P-14:  46' - 15" RCP @ 0.26%

RIM 720.00 
STM DB 1.11

IE. 6" (E) 716.90

RIM 720.00 
STM DB 1.10

IE. 6" (SW) 717.00  

P-17

P-5

P-6

P-8

CB 1.4CB 1.3CB 1.0

BS 1.2 P-3

P-2

BS 2.4

CB 2.0

STUB 2.1

P-1

JCT 1.7
RD 1.8

P-10

P-9
CB 1.5

P-16

P-15

CB 2.2

P-4

BEND 1.1

(PHASE 2)

P-15:   8' -  6" STM @ 4.16%
P-16:  97' - 15" STM @ 0.26%
P-17:  60' - 10" STM @ 4.16%
P-18:  43' - 21" RCP @ 0.59% (EX)
P-19:  13' - 21" RCP @ 4.16%
P-20: 124' -  8" STM @ 4.16%
P-21:  61' - 10" STM @ 4.16%
P-22: 175' - 10" STM @ 4.16%
P-23:  15' - 12" RCP @ 0.42% (EX)
P-24:  16' -  8" STM @ 2.08%
P-25:  48' -  8" STM @ 1.04%
P-26:  44' -  8" STM @ 1.04%

STORM SEWER DESIGN

FLANGE 714.05
STM CB 4.1

IE.  8" (W) 709.87
IE.  8" (N) 709.87

FLANGE 714.83
STM CB 4.2

IE.  8" (S)  710.35
IE.  8" (NE) 710.35

IE. 6" (E) 717.52 
BUILDING STUB 1.12

IE. 6" (NE/SW) 715.44
BEND 1.1

IE. 10" (NW/S) 715.32
BEND 2.3

RIM 714.50 
STM DB 4.3

IE.  8" (SW) 710.78

IE. 6" (W/E) 716.86 
JUNCTION 1.9

RIM 717.00 
STM CB 2.2

IE. 10" (N)  713.36
IE. 15" (SE) 713.03

BEND 3.4
IE. 10" (SW/E) 715.99

IE. 12" (W) 709.31± (EX)
STM LATERAL STUB 4.0

IE.  6" (W/E) 716.29 
JUNCTION 1.7

IE. 6" (W) 716.74
ROOF DRAIN 1.8

IE.  6" (N) 716.29

RIM 721.06 
EX STM MH 43

IE. 30" (S) 711.96 (EX)
IE. 30" (N) 712.06 (EX)

IE. 21" (E) 712.96 (EX) 

IE. 21" (E/W) 705.23± (EX) 
LATERAL STUB 3.0

RIM 718.80
EX STM MH 47

IE. 15" (E) 714.20 (EX)
IE. 12" (S) 714.60 (EX)

IE. 15" (NW) 714.20  

DB 1.6

P-7 RIM 718.50 
STM DB 1.6

IE.  6" (E) 715.50

IE.  6" (W) 715.27

IE. 6" (S) 716.86 

DB 1.10

BS 1.12

JCT 1.9

DB 1.11

P-11

P-12

P-13

P-24

P-25

P-26

P-21

CB 3.2

CB 3.1

MH 3.3

DB 4.3

CB 4.2

CB 4.1

BS 3.5

P-20

P-19

P-18

LS 3.0

LS 4.0

P-23

P-22

BEND 3.4

RIM 715.30 
STM MH 3.3

IE. 10" (NE) 709.29
IE. 10" (S) 709.29

IE. 6" (W) 716.90

RIM 717.00 
STM CB 2.0

IE. 15" (N) 712.78
IE. 15" (E) 712.78

IE.  6" (SE) 713.38

IE. 12" (W) 716.06 (EX)(BULKHEAD)
IE. 15" (W) 712.66 (PROPOSED) 

S
T

O
R

M
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

VILLAGE PROGRESS
2

REVIEW 03/26/14

STORM SEWER UTILITY PLAN

ISSUE FOR APPROVAL
3

07/11/14

IE. 8"  (E) 709.58

BUILDING STUB 3.5
IE. 10" (W) 716.49

IE.  6" (NE) 713.71
STUB 2.1 (PHASE 2)

BEND 2.3

IE. 6" (NE) 715.50
BUILDING STUB 1.2

STM 43

4
07/31/1495% CD REVIEW

IE. 10" (SW) 715.86
BUILDING STUB 2.4

ALL ROOF DRAINS SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE
PROPOSED STORM SEWER SYSTEM AS SHOWN.

Roof Drain Note

EXISTING STM 46 & STM 47 CASTING
AND GRATES TO BE REMOVED AND
REPLACED WITH NEENAH R-3290-A

CASTING WITH TYPE C GRATES



9  7
  T

  H
  

Seeded Lawn

6' Bench

9  7  T

SEEDED LAWN

PARKWAY TREE; 
CONTINUOUSLY PLANTED 50' ON CENTER

NOTES:

SEE CIVIL PLANS FOR EARTH MOUNDING

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY PARKWAY TREES ARE SHOWN FOR 
REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY.

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE BID AS SEPARATE CONTRACT.  
SEE OFF-SITE IMPROVMENT PLANS BY NIELSEN, MADSEN & BARBER 
FOR OVERALL STREET TREE PLANTING

(6)
Autumn Blaze Maple

(5)
Kentucky Coffee Tree

(5)
Miyabei Maple

(5)
Kentucky Coffee Tree

(4)
Miyabei Maple

C    O
    U

    R
    T

S

Ginkgo (3)

Skyline Honey
Locust (1)

Emerald Green
Arborvitae (5)

Norway Sp

Norway
Spruce (3)

Gro-Low
Sumac (13)

Skyline Honey
Locust

Gro-Low
Sumac (14)

Annabelle
Hydrangea (6)

Kentucky Coffee

Red Twig
Dogwood (6)

Dense Yew (6)

Rugosa Rose (26)

Kelseyi Dogwood (3)

Annabelle
Hydrangea (5)

Japanese Tree
Lilac (3)

Annabelle 
Hydrangea (5)

Birchleaf Spirea (6)

Kelseyi Dogwood (5)

Dwarf Arrowwood
Viburnum (5)

(2)
Ginkgo

Skyline Honey
Locust

Norway Spruce
(3)

Perennial (51)
Mountbatten Junip

Japanese Tree
Lilac (3)

Mountbatten Ju
Gro-Low Sumac

SOD LA

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDE
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

SOD

SEED

Seeded Lawn

Seeded Law

Seeded Law

Community Planning   Development Economics
Site Design   Landscape Architecture

Evanston, Illinois  60201
Tel 847.869.2015
Fax 847.869.2059

627 Grove Street

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17 2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

630 DUNDEE ROAD
NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062
847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

SIGNATURE

L - 1

SO
U

TH
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N

07-31-14

05-09-14

96
51

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 R

ID
G

E 
B

LV
D

.

A
N

 A
SS

IS
TE

D
 L

IV
IN

G
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
TH

E 
A

D
D

IS
O

N
 O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
A

IR
IE

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

A
IR

IE
, W

I 5
31

58



C    O    U    R    T

P  R
  A

  I  R
  I  E        R

  I  D
  G

  E        B
  O

  U
  L  E  V  A

  R
  D

Concrete
Entry
Walk

Building
Entry

Canopy

9  7  T  H  

COBBLESTONE EDGE;
SEE SHEET L-3 FOR DETAIL

(3)
Colorado Green Spruce

Limber Pine (5)

London Plane Tree (5)

Colorado Green
Spruce (3)

tree (8)
Existing canopy 

Norway Spruce (5)

(6)
European Alder

Norway Spruce
(3)

(4)
Accolade Elm

(4)
Broadmoor Juniper

(24)
Perennial

Norway Spruce (5)

(2)
Chanticleer Pear

(5)
Red Twig Dogwood

Pear (2)
Chanticleer

Dogwood (3)
Red Twig

Shadblow Serviceberry

Limber
Pine (7)

European Alder
(3)

Norway Spruce (4)

London Plane Tree (4)

Limber
Pine (7)

Accolade Elm (6)

Hydrangea (5)
Tardiva

Skyline Honey Locust  (4)

(10)
Arrowwood Viburnum

Tardiva
Hydrangea (5)

Skyline Honey Locust
(3)

Broadmoor
Juniper (6) (44)

Perennial
Black Hills Spruce (3)

Arrowwood
Viburnum (7)

Perennial (58)

Black Hills Spruce (3)

(59)
Perennial

Skyline Honey Locust 

Ginkgo (3)

Locust (5)
Skyline Honey 

Skyline Honey
Locust (1)

Emerald Green
Arborvitae (5)

(4)
Kentucky Coffee Tree

Norway Spruce (3)

Greenspire Littleleaf Linden
(4)

Princeton Sentry Ginkgo
(2)

Gro-Low Sumac
(40)

Locust (1)
Skyline Honey

Eastern Redbud (1)
Hicks Yew (3)

Eastern Redbud

Hicks Yew (3)

Alpine Currant (6)

Rugosa Rose (5)
Locust 
Skyline Honey 

(35)
PerennialDwarf Korean Lilac (5)

Colorado Green Spruce (3)

(274)
Pachysandra

Norway Spruce (3)

Shadblow
Serviceberry (2)

Birchleaf
Spirea (5)

Pachysandra (84)
Shadblow Serviceberry (2)

Spruce (3)
Colorado Green 

Eastern Redbud

Pachysandra
(40)

Compact Burning Bush (3)
Dense Yew (15)

Gro-Low Sumac (42)

Compact  Burning Bush (3)

Cornelian Cherry Dogwood (2)

(31)
Pachysandra

Annabelle Hydrangea (3)
Eastern Redbud

Annabelle Hydrangea (3)

(67)
Perennial

Cornelian Cherry
Dogwood (1)

Sumac (18)
Gro-Low 

Gro-Low Sumac (20)
Redbud
Eastern 

Miss Kim Lilac (5)

Lilac (5)
Dwarf Korean 

Perennial (96)

Norway
Spruce (3)

Gro-Low
Sumac (13)

Skyline Honey
Locust

Gro-Low
Sumac (14)

Annabelle
Hydrangea (6)

Kentucky Coffee Tree (3)

Dwarf Arrowwood Viburnum (5)

Dwarf Korean Lilac (5)

Pachysandra (24)

Red Twig
Dogwood (6)

Dense Yew (6)

Rugosa Rose (26)

Hameln Dwarf 
Fountain Grass (54)

Kelseyi Dogwood (3)

Kelseyi Dogwood (5)
Dwarf Arrowwood

Viburnum (6)
Annabelle

Hydrangea (5)

Japanese Tree
Lilac (3)

Gro-Low Sumac (16)

Dwarf Fothergilla (8)

Alpine Currant (3)
Dwarf Fothergilla (3)

Dense
Yew (6)

Dogwood (6)
Kelseyi

Annabelle 
Hydrangea (5)

Dwarf Fothergilla (5)
Dwarf Fothergilla (5)

Birchleaf Spirea (6)

Kelseyi Dogwood (5)

Dwarf Arrowwood
Viburnum (5)

Gro-Low Sumac (42)
Compact Burning Bush (5)

Summersweet (5)
Skyline Honey Locust

(19)
Perennial

Perennial (16)
Red Twig Dogwood (5)
Annabelle Hydrangea (11)

(2)
Ginkgo

Skyline Honey
Locust

Norway Spruce
(3)

Gro-Low Sumac (15)

Gro-Low Sumac (16)
Mountbatten Juniper (5)
Dwarf Korean Lilac (5)

Perennial (51)
Mountbatten Juniper

(6)

Gro-Low
Sumac (28)

Annabelle Hydrangea (3)

Redbud (2)
Eastern

Hicks Yew (5)

Compact Burning Bush (12)
Hicks Yew (7)

Pachysandra
(96)

Japanese Tree
Lilac (3)

Annabelle
Hydrangea (3)

Skyline Honey Locust

Skyline Honey Locust

Green Mound Alpine Currant (5)

Green Mound Alpine Currant (3)

Annual  Mix / Seasonal Color (14)

Seasonal Color (14)
Annual  Mix / 

Green Mound
Alpine Currant (3)

Green Mound Alpine Currant (5)

Green Mound Alpine Currant (12)
Annual  Mix / Seasonal Color (11)

Mountbatten Juniper (11)
Gro-Low Sumac (17)

Birchleaf Spirea (5)
Hicks Yew (5)

Hicks Yew (5)

Arrowwood Viburnum (9)

Redtwig
Dogwood (5)

Eastern
Redbud (3)

Annabelle
Hydrangea (7)

4'-6" HT.
CURVED
WALL;
SEE NOTE 
ON SHEET
L-3

SOD LAWN

SOD LAWN

SOD 
LAWNSOD 

LAWN

SOD 
LAWN

SOD 
LAWN

 SOD 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

 SEEDED 
LAWN

SOD LAWN

Eastern Redbud (3)

SOD SEED

SOD

SEED

SHADE TREES: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE:

                                           3           Cornelian Cherry Dogwood / Cornus mas                                                 8' ht.

                                           5           Ginkgo / Ginkgo biloba                                                                              2" cal.

                                           21         Skyline Honey Locust / Gleditsia triacanthos `Skyline`                             2" cal.

                                           3           Kentucky Coffee Tree / Gymnocladus dioica                                            2" cal.

                                           9           London Plane Tree / Platanus x acerifolia                                                2" cal.

                                           5           Emerald Green Arborvitae / Thuja occidentalis `Smaragd`                        6` ht.

                                           4           Greenspire Littleleaf Linden / Tilia cordata `Greenspire`                          2" cal.

EVERGREEN TREES: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE:

                                           22         Mountbatten Juniper / Juniperus chinensis `Mountbatten`                       6` ht.

                                           36         Norway Spruce / Picea abies                                                                    6` ht.

                                           6           Black Hills Spruce / Picea glauca `Densata`                                             6` ht.

                                           12         Colorado Green Spruce / Picea pungens `Colorado Green`                     6' ht.

                                           19         Limber Pine / Pinus flexilis                                                                         6` ht.

ORNAMENTAL TREES: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE:

                                           9           European Alder / Alnus glutinosa                                                              8` ht.

                                           5           Shadblow Serviceberry / Amelanchier canadensis                                   8` ht

                                           13         Eastern Redbud / Cercis canadensis                                                        8` ht

                                           4           Chanticleer Pear / Pyrus calleryana `Chanticleer`                                     8' ht.

                                           6           Japanese Tree Lilac / Syringa reticulata                                                    8` ht

SHRUBS: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE:

GROUND COVER: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE & SPACING:

                                           39         Annual  Mix / Seasonal Color / Annuals Mix  / Seasonal Color                 2.25" pot @ 24" o.c.

                                           549       Pachysandra / Pachysandra terminalis `Green Carpet`                            2.25" pot @ 18" o.c.

                                           469       Perennial / Perennial                                                                                  #1 cont.@ 18" o.c.

                                           295       Gro-Low Sumac / Rhus aromatica `Gro-Low`                                            #3 cont. @ 30" o.c.

ORNAMENTAL GRASS: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE & SPACING:

                                           54         Hameln Dwarf Fountain Grass / Pennisetum alopecuroides `Hameln`     #1 cont. @ 18" o.c.

PROPERTY_PLANT_SCHEDULE::

                                           6           Summersweet / Clethra alnifolia `Hummingbird`                                       24" ht.

                                           24         Red Twig Dogwood / Cornus sericea                                                       36" ht.

                                           19         Kelseyi Dogwood / Cornus sericea `Kelseyi`                                            24 "ht.

                                           23         Compact Burning Bush / Euonymus alatus `Compactus`                         36" ht.

                                           21         Dwarf Fothergilla / Fothergilla gardenii                                                     36" ht.

                                           46         Annabelle Hydrangea / Hydrangea arborescens `Annabelle`                   5 gal.

                                           16         Tardiva Hydrangea / Hydrangea paniculata `Tardiva`                              36" ht.

                                           10         Broadmoor Juniper / Juniperus sabina `Broadmoor`                                24" ht.

                                           9           Alpine Currant / Ribes alpinum                                                                 24" ht.

                                           28         Green Mound Alpine Currant / Ribes alpinum `Green Mound`                18" ht.

                                           31         Rugosa Rose / Rosa rugosa                                                                    24" ht.

                                           16         Birchleaf Spirea / Spiraea betulifolia `Tor`                                                24" ht.

                                           18         Dwarf Korean Lilac / Syringa meyeri `Palibin`                                          24" ht.

                                           8           Miss Kim Lilac / Syringa patula `Miss Kim`                                               36" ht.

                                           27         Dense Yew / Taxus x media                                                                     24" ht.

                                           28         Hicks Yew / Taxus x media `Hicksii`                                                         36" ht.

                                           26         Arrowwood Viburnum / Viburnum dentatum `Arrowwood`                        36" ht.

Community Planning   Development Economics
Site Design   Landscape Architecture

Evanston, Illinois  60201
Tel 847.869.2015
Fax 847.869.2059

627 Grove Street

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17 2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

630 DUNDEE ROAD
NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062
847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

SIGNATURE

L - 2

SHADE TREES: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE:

                                           6           Autumn Blaze Maple / Acer freemanii `Autumn Blaze`                             2" cal.

                                           9           Miyabei Maple / Acer miyabei `State Street`                                             2" cal.

                                           15         Existing canopy tree                                                                                  2" cal.

                                           2           Princeton Sentry Ginkgo / Ginkgo biloba `Princeton Sentry`                    2" cal.

                                           14         Kentucky Coffee Tree / Gymnocladus dioica                                            2" cal.

                                           10         Accolade Elm / Ulmus x `Morton Accolade`                                              2" cal.

                                           40         Gro-Low Sumac / Rhus aromatica `Gro-Low`                                            #3 cont. @ 30" o.c.

PUBLIC R.O.W._PLANT_SCHEDULE:

GROUND COVER: QTY: COMMON NAME / BOTANICAL NAME: SIZE & SPACING:

                                     20,982 sf     Sod Lawn

N
O

R
TH

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 P

LA
N

07-31-14

07-31-14

05-09-14

96
51

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 R

ID
G

E 
B

LV
D

.

A
N

 A
SS

IS
TE

D
 L

IV
IN

G
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
TH

E 
A

D
D

IS
O

N
 O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
A

IR
IE

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

A
IR

IE
, W

I 5
31

58



Wood Planter   Model: Estate
By: Country Casual

Garden Bench and Chair Example Images:Garden Trellis Example Images:
Wood Bench and Chair
Model: Carlisle
By: Country Casual

Wood Planter Example Images:

Seeded Lawn

Front Gathering 
Patio 

Front Gathering Patio 

6' Bench

Seeded 
Lawn

Seeded 
Lawn

Seeded 
Lawn

Seeded Lawn

Seeded Lawn

Seeded Lawn

Seeded Lawn

Seeded 
Lawn

Seeded 
Lawn

Seeded 
Lawn

6' Bench

Seeded Lawn

Seeded Lawn

8' x 14' Cedar 
Trellis 

6' Wide Broom Finish 
Scored Concrete

6' Wide Broom Finish 
Scored Concrete

Wood Planters
(Typ.)

Wood Planters
(Typ.)

8' x 14' Cedar
Trellis

6'

6'

Community Planning   Development Economics
Site Design   Landscape Architecture

Evanston, Illinois  60201
Tel 847.869.2015
Fax 847.869.2059

627 Grove Street

BROOM FINISHED
SCORED CONCRETE PATIO

SCORED CONCRETE
EDGE BAND;18" WIDE

1021

R
Q

3 4 65 7 8 9 11 12 1413 15 16 17 2014 SAS ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

APPROVED BY

L
P

O
N

M
K

J
I

H

KEY PLAN

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

10

G
F

E
D

C
B

A

21 3 4 65 7 8 9

630 DUNDEE ROAD
NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062
847-564-8333 FAX 847-564-9989

11 12 1413 15 16 17 18 2019 21

2119 20

SIGNATURE

L - 3

12-18" DIAMETER ROUNDED GRANITE RIVER STONE
SET IN DECOMPOSED GRANITE QUARRY FINES

PROVIDE RELATIVELY LEVEL FINISH COBBLE
SURFACE (WITH 2% PITCH TO DRAIN)

COMPACTED NATIVE SOIL

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
&

 E
N

LA
R

G
EM

EN
TS

4’-6” HIGH STUCCO WALL (TO MATCH ARCHITECTURE) 
WITH PRECAST CONCRETE CAP.  COLUMNS TO BE 
BRICK MASONRY WITH PRECAST CAP (TO MATCH 

ARCHITECTURE).  SIGN LETTERS "THE ADDISON OF 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE" SHALL BE 12” HIGH, PIN MOUNTED 

LETTERS TO MATCH SITE SIGNAGE STYLE. 
 LIGHTING SHALL CONSIST OF THREE KIM LIGHTING 

4300 WALL LIGHTER FIXTURES; 37” LENGTH 

EQ
.

EQ
.

50'-0"

3
5
'

EQ
.

EQ
,

3'-4"

SETBACK
LINE

07-31-14

07-31-14

05-09-14

96
51

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 R

ID
G

E 
B

LV
D

.

A
N

 A
SS

IS
TE

D
 L

IV
IN

G
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
TH

E 
A

D
D

IS
O

N
 O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
A

IR
IE

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

A
IR

IE
, W

I 5
31

58

GARDEN / COURTYARD FURNISHINGS TO BE 
COORDINATED AND SELECTED BY OWNER



























1 
 

ORD. # 14-31 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN 

2035 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 390 OF THE 

VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, Kenosha County, 
Wisconsin, that the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 2035 Comprehensive Plan is 
hereby amended as follows: 

1. To amend the Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 to remove the urban reserve land 
use designation from the vacant property located at the southwest corner of Prairie 
Ridge Blvd. and 97th Ct. (Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-082-0412) to ensure that 
both the Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Plan are consistent; and  

2. To update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 
Comprehensive Plan to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan 
Map 9.9. 

The Village Community Development Director is hereby directed to record these 
Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan on the appropriate pages of said Plan and to 
update Appendix A in Chapter 390 of the Village Municipal Code to include said 
amendments. 

 
Adopted this 6th day of October 2014. 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 

 
 
  
John P. Steinbrink, 
Village President 

  
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk 
 
Ayes: ___ Nayes:  ___    Absent: ____ 

 
Posted:    
 
Ord #14-31 Addison LU Plan Amend 

 



Resolution #14-31 
Resolution Requesting the Support of the Office of the  

Wisconsin Rail Commissioner for the Installation of  
Warning Devices at the EMCO Rail Spur and CTH H  

On the Soo Line Tracks and support for the Kenosha County Bike 
Path Crossing 

 
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing concerning the proposed Kenosha County Bike Path project 

railroad crossing and a Determination of Adequacy of warning devices at the private spur for 
EMCO, Inc. was conducted on August 20, 2014, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie appeared in support of the proposed Kenosha 

County Bike Path Improvements and a reconsideration of a previous Rail Commissioner’s 
finding that warning signals and gates on the EMCO private spur were not required, and; 

 
WHEREAS, in the hearing examiner’s analysis of testimony and existing rules and 

regulations the examiner acknowledged that the crashes at the spur crossing were caused by 
an inability of drivers to see the stopped train, and further indicated that this is a long 
recognized phenomenon that could be resolved by improved reflective materials on the rail 
cars, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the hearing examiner requested that the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 

Kenosha County consider installing yield signs with continuous LED blinking lights, and 
furthermore that the Village and Kenosha County pay for the purchase, installation, and 
maintenance of these lights, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed order from the hearing examiner recommends that the Soo 

Line Railroad Co. maintain the existing reflective crossbucks with reflective yield signs on the 
same posts with 2” wide reflective strips on the front and back, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie supports the proposed 

order by the hearing examiner concerning the Kenosha County Bike Path crossing and the 
proposed warning devices recommended for those crossings, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie respectfully objects to the 

proposed order by the hearing examiner concerning the EMCO spur crossing on CTH H and 
recommends that the Office of the Commissioner of Railroads orders that warning lights and 
alarms be placed at the EMCO rail spur crossing for the following reasons: 

1. Two of the automobile train crashes were significant in the amount of damage 
sustained by the automobiles. 
 



2. The June 26, 2014 crash just missed hitting the valve on the bottom of the tank 
car. Whatever raw material that was contained in the car could have been 
released into the environment. This risk continues to exist because a majority of 
the railcars are black tank cars and the crossing is immediately adjacent to 
waterways and environmentally sensitive areas.  

 
3. The span of time between the 2006 crash and the 2014 crashes doesn’t mean 

that the crossing is suddenly more dangerous. The facility EMCO now occupies 
was vacant and non-operating from 2007 through 2012. 

 
4. The logic of permitting this condition to exist because it is “not unusual for 

motor vehicles to run into trains doesn’t acknowledge the risk associated with 
the user of the materials and its proximity to active waterways.  

Now Therefor Be It Resolved by the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie that the 
Village concur with the recommendations for the Kenosha County petition for public crossings 
on CTH H, and that Village does not concur with the hearing examiners recommendation for the 
EMCO private spur, and that this Resolution be forwarded to the Commissioner of Railroads for 
his consideration. 

 

Considered and adopted this 6th day of October, 2014. 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 

 
 
______________________________ 

_____________________________   John P. Steinbrink 
Jane M. Romanowski     President 
Village Clerk 
 
 
Posted:  ___________________ 
 

 

 





























































Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Office of the Village Administrator 
 
October 2, 2014 
 
TO:  Village Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Michael R. Pollocoff 
 Village Administrator 
 
RE: Selection of a Financial Advisor 
 
In September, the Securities and Exchange Commission gave final approval for definitions of 
“Municipal Advisors” as regulated under the Dodd-Frank Act. Under the new rules, 
underwriters and other professionals that do not have a fiduciary duty to issuers will not be 
able to provide financial advice to governments unless certain exemptions are met. Under the 
Act and subsequent rules, all local governments, employees, board members, committee 
members and others are exempt from the rule while acting in their official capacity. 
 
As the Village staff evaluated how to proceed under these new rules, the staff sought out what 
the current best practices are for securing this service. As a member of the Government 
Finance Officers Organization (GFOA), we were able to take advantage of their research of 
available alternatives. GFOA strongly recommends that local governments hire a “Municipal 
Advisor” for bond transactions rather than utilizing the current arrangement where the 
underwriter and financial advisor could be the same individual or firm. 
 
The Village of Pleasant Prairie has had a long and productive relationship with Piper/Jaffray & 
Co. to provide both underwriting and financial advisory services to the Village. Under the new 
rules, I am recommending that the Village Board consider entering into an agreement with 
Sterne, Agee, & Leach for financial advisory services. Sterne, Agee proposes providing 
“Municipal Advisory” services for $1.00 per $1000.00 in bonds issued. Staff is recommending 
the Sterne, Agee group based in part on high recommendations from our current underwriting 
consultant Gene Schulz at Piper/Jaffray & Co. and our previous experience with Mr. James 
Towne, the Managing Director in his previous employment. Sterne Agee is a national firm with 
extensive experience in financial services. I am also recommending that the Village continue 
their relationship with Piper/Jaffray & Co. for underwriting services. 
 
 
 
 
  



   
 

1 

 AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 

 By and Between 

THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN 

 

A Municipal Corporation 

And 

 STERNE, AGEE & LEACH, INC. 

 

A Delaware Corporation 

 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES, (“AGREEMENT') effective as of the 
last date of execution is entered into between the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin, 
a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “ISSUER”, and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation with principal offices located at 800 Shades Creek Parkway, Suite 
700, Birmingham, Alabama 35209, hereinafter referred to as “STERNE AGEE”; collectively 
referred to as the Parties. 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will have under consideration from time to time the authorization 
and issuance of indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot be determined and that 
in connection with the authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness of 
the Issuer, Sterne Agee will provide professional services to the Issuer in the capacity of 
municipal financial advisor (“Financial Advisor”).   

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings, understandings and 
agreements hereinafter set forth, the Issuer and Sterne Agee agree as follows: 

I. 

This Agreement shall apply to any and all general obligation evidences of indebtedness or 
debt obligations that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or assumed by 
the Issuer (hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Debt Instruments") from time to 
time during the period that this Agreement shall be effective. This Agreement shall not 
include revenue bond issues or bond issues where the Issuer serves as a conduit Issuer.   

II. 

Sterne Agee agrees to provide its professional services and its facilities as Financial 
Advisor and agrees to direct and coordinate all general obligation programs of financing 
as may be considered and authorized by Issuer during the period in which this Agreement 
shall be effective and to assume and pay those expenses set out in Appendix A, provided, 
however, that its obligations to pay expenses shall not include any costs incident to 
litigation, mandamus action, test case or other similar legal actions. 



   
 

2 

III. 

Sterne Agee agrees to perform the following duties normally performed by financial 
advisors and all other duties as, in its judgment, may be necessary or advisable: 

1. Sterne Agee will periodically review the financial resources of the Issuer to 
determine the extent of its capacity to authorize, issue and service debt.  This review 
will include an analysis of existing debt structure as compared with the existing and 
projected sources of revenues which may be pledged to secure payment of debt service 
and, where appropriate, will include a study of the trend of the assessed valuation, 
taxing power and present and future taxing requirements of the Issuer.  Sterne Agee will 
also take into account future financing needs and operations as projected by the Issuer's 
staff or other experts, if any, employed by the Issuer. 

2. On the basis of the information developed in the review described above, and other 
information available to us, Sterne Agee will submit to the Issuer its recommendations on 
the Debt Instruments under consideration including such elements as the date of issue, 
interest payment dates, schedule of principal maturities, portions of prior payment, 
security provisions, and any other additional provisions designed to make the issue 
attractive to investors. All recommendations will be based upon the professional 
judgment of Sterne Agee with the goal of issuing Debt Instruments, which can be sold 
under terms most advantageous to the Issuer and at the lowest interest cost consistent 
with all other considerations. 

3. Sterne Agee will advise the Issuer of current bond market conditions, forthcoming 
bond issues and other general information and economic data which might normally be 
expected to influence interest rates or bidding conditions so that the date of sale of Debt 
Instruments may be set at a time which, in our opinion, will be favorable. 

4. Sterne Agee understands the Issuer has retained or will retain a firm of municipal 
bond attorneys (“Bond Counsel”) whose fee will be paid by the Issuer.  In the event it is 
necessary to hold an election to authorize the Debt Instruments then under 
consideration, Sterne Agee will assist in coordinating the assembly and transmittal to 
Bond Counsel of such data as may be required for the preparation of necessary petitions, 
orders, resolutions, ordinances, notices and certificates in connection with the election. 

5. Sterne Agee will recommend the method of sale of the Debt Instruments that, in its 
opinion, is in the best interest of the Issuer and will proceed, as directed by the Issuer, 
with one of the following methods and the Issuer agrees to pay Sterne Agee the fees set 
forth in Appendix A attached hereto: 

a. Advertised Sale: Sterne Agee will supervise the sale of the Debt Instruments at 
a public sale in accordance with procedures set out herein.   

b. Negotiated Sale: Sterne Agee will recommend one or more investment banking 
firms as managers of an underwriting syndicate for the purpose of negotiating the 
purchase of Debt Instruments and in no event will Sterne Agee participate either directly 
or indirectly in the underwriting of the Debt Instruments.  Sterne Agee will review on the 
Issuer’s behalf the preparation of the Official Statement or Offering Memorandum by the 



   
 

3 

senior managing underwriter selected and Counsel to the underwriters, if any.  Sterne 
Agee will cooperate with the underwriters in obtaining any Blue Sky Memorandum and 
Legal Investment Survey, preparing Bond Purchase Contract, Underwriters Agreement and 
any other related documents.  The costs thereof, including the printing of the 
documents, will be paid by the underwriters or from costs of issuance account balances, 
if available. 

6. When appropriate, Sterne Agee will assist Bond Counsel in any publications of the 
forthcoming sale of Debt Instruments and provide them with all pertinent information. 

7. Sterne Agee will assist in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement, 
Official Statement, Limited Offering Memorandum and/or such other documents as may 
be required by the financing.  The Issuer agrees to provide information that is true and 
correct in all material respects and does not omit to state a material fact necessary to be 
stated in the offering documents associated with any transaction contemplated within. 
Sterne Agee will submit to the Issuer all such documents for examinations, approval and 
certification.   

8. Sterne Agee will, after consulting with the Issuer, arrange for such reports and 
opinions of recognized independent consultants deemed necessary by rating agencies or 
the Issuer and required for the successful marketing of the Debt Instruments. 

9. Subject to the approval of the Issuer, Sterne Agee will organize and make 
arrangements for such information meetings with institutional investors or rating 
agencies as, in the judgment of Sterne Agee, may be necessary. 

10. Sterne Agee will make recommendations to the Issuer as to advisability of obtaining 
a credit rating, or ratings, for the Debt Instruments as, in the opinion of Sterne Agee, is 
required for submission to the appropriate company, institution or institutions. Subject 
to the approval of the Issuer, in those cases where the advisability of personal 
presentation of information to the rating agency, or agencies, may be indicated, Sterne 
Agee will arrange for such personal presentations.   

11. Sterne Agee will make recommendations to the Issuer as to the advisability of 
obtaining municipal bond insurance or other credit enhancement, or qualifications for 
same, for the Debt Instruments and, when directed by the Issuer, Sterne Agee will 
coordinate the preparation of such information as, in the opinion of Sterne Agee, is 
required for submission to the appropriate company, institution or institutions. Subject 
to the approval of the Issuer, in those cases where the advisability of personal 
presentation of information to the appropriate company, institution or institutions, may 
be indicated, Sterne Agee will arrange for such personal presentations.   

12. Sterne Agee will communicate with Bond Counsel in the preparation of all legal 
documents pertaining to the authorization, sale and issuance of the Debt Instruments.  
Bond Counsel will provide an unqualified legal opinion as to the legality of the issuance 
of the Debt Instruments at the time of delivery. 

13. If requested, Sterne Agee will consult with the Issuer in the selection of a Paying 
Agent/Registrar for the Debt Instruments, and will assist in the preparation of 



   
 

4 

agreements pertinent to these services and the fees incident thereto. 

14. In the event formal verification by an independent auditor of any calculations 
incident to the Debt Instruments is required, Sterne Agee, subject to the approval of the 
Issuer, will make arrangements on the Issuer’s behalf for such services. 

15. Sterne Agee agrees to do, or cause to be done, all work incidental to the Debt 
Instruments, pertaining to obtaining approval. 

16. At the Issuer’s request, Sterne Agee will attend any meetings of the governing body 
of the Issuer, its staff, representatives or committees, at all times when Sterne Agee may 
be of assistance or service and the subject of financing is to be discussed.   

17. Sterne Agee will advise the Issuer and its staff of changes, proposed or enacted, in 
Federal and State laws and regulations that would affect the municipal bond market. 

18. Sterne Agee will work with the Issuer, its staff and any consultants employed by the 
Issuer in developing financial feasibility studies and analyzing alternative financing plans.  

IV. 

In addition to the services set out above, Sterne Agee agrees to provide the following 
services when so requested by the Issuer: 

1. Sterne Agee or one of its subsidiaries will provide its advice as to the investment of 
certain funds of the Issuer.  Sterne Agee or one of its subsidiaries will, when so directed, 
purchase those investments authorized to be purchased and Sterne Agee will charge a 
normal and customary commission for each such transaction. 

2. Sterne Agee will provide its advice and assistance with regard to exercising any call 
and/or refunding of any outstanding Debt Instruments. 

3. Sterne Agee will provide its advice and assistance in the development of, and 
financing for, any capital improvement programs for the Issuer. 

4. Sterne Agee will provide its advice and assistance in the development of the long-
range financing plan of the Issuer. 

5. Sterne Agee will provide any other financial planning services as may be requested 
by the Issuer. 

V. 

The fees due to Sterne Agee shall be calculated in accordance with Appendix A, which is 
attached hereto, and any other fees as may be mutually agreed and all expenses for 
which Sterne Agee is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due and payable 
concurrently with the delivery of the Debt Instruments to the purchaser.   

VI. 

This Agreement shall become effective on the last date of execution set out herein below 
and remain in effect until terminated by Issuer. This Agreement may be terminated by 
Issuer with or without cause at any time upon written notice of termination by Issuer to 



   
 

5 

Sterne Agee. In the event of such termination, it is understood and agreed that only the 
amount due to Sterne Agee for services provided and expenses incurred to the date of 
termination will be due and payable. No penalty will be assessed for termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
When executed by the Issuer, this Agreement, together with Appendix A attached hereto, 
will constitute the entire Agreement between the Issuer and Sterne Agee for the 
purposes and the considerations herein specified.  Acceptance will be indicated by the 
signature of authorized officials of the Issuer together with the date of execution on 
three (3) copies and the return of two (2) executed copies to Sterne Agee. 

VII. 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of 
Wisconsin. The Issuer and Sterne Agee agree that any matter which may be brought or 
pursued in Court shall be brought and maintained only in the Circuit Court for Kenosha 
County, Wisconsin and the Issuer and Sterne Agee each consent to said venue and the 
court's personal jurisdiction over them. 

VIII. 

Sterne Agee represents to Issuer that Sterne Agee is a Delaware corporation, in good 
standing in Delaware and Wisconsin, that all acts which are a condition precedent to 
entering into this Agreement have thereby taken place, and that the individual executing 
this Agreement on behalf of Sterne Agee has the authority to do so and to bind Sterne 
Agee to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 

Signature pages follow 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have herein executed this Agreement on the 

dates below given. 

                        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN, 
         A Wisconsin Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
     BY: ________________________________ 
          John P. Steinbrink, Village President 
          
     Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
     BY: ________________________________ 

           Kathleen Goessl, Treasurer/Finance 
       Director 

      
     Date: ___________________________ 

 
   
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

     : SS. 
COUNTY OF KENOSHA ) 
 

Personally came before me this _____ day of _________________, 2014, 
_____________________ and ___________________________ VILLAGE OF PLEASANT 
PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN, a municipal corporation, to me known to be such Village President 
and Finance Director/Treasurer of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged to me 
that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as the agreement of said 
City, by its authority. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public, Kenosha County, WI. 
My Commission expires/is:_____________ 



   
 

7 

     STERNE, AGEE & LEACH, INC., 
         A Delaware Corporation 
 
 
 
     BY:________________________________ 
           JAMES TOWNE, Managing Director 
 
          Date:____________________________ 
 
 
 
       
   
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

     : SS. 
HENNEPIN COUNTY) 
 

Personally came before me this _____ day of _________________, 2014, 
JAMES TOWNE, Managing Director, of STERNE, AGEE & LEACH, INC., a Delaware 
corporation, to me known to be such Managing Director of said corporation, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the foregoing instrument as such officer as the 
agreement of said corporation, by its authority. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public, Hennepin County, MN. 
My Commission expires/is:_____________ 

 



   
 

8 

APPENDIX A 

 

Financial Advisory Services 

In consideration for the services rendered by Sterne Agee to the Issuer with respect to the 
issuance of Debt Instruments under the terms and conditions of the Agreement to which this is 
attached, it is understood and agreed that the fee payable to Sterne Agee for each issue of Debt 
Instruments will be as follows: 

 

 

$1.00 per $1,000 of Bonds Issued.  A $10,000,000 bond issue would result in a fee of $10,000. 

 

 

For any issue of Advanced Refunding Bonds and/or other Debt Instruments involving Escrow 
Agreements, it is understood and agreed that the fee due by the Issuer will be the fee schedule 
set out above, plus 25%.  

The payment of charges for financial advisory services shall be contingent upon the delivery of 
Debt Instruments and shall be due at the time that Debt Instruments are delivered. 

The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, whether they are charged directly to 
the Issuer as transaction-related expenses or charged to Sterne Agee on behalf of the Issuer as 
reimbursable expenses: 

Bond counsel fees 

Bond rating fees 

Credit enhancement fees 

Verification fees associated with refunding transactions 

Official Statement preparation, printing and distribution  

Bond pricing or rating travel expenses for city employees and officers 





















 
RESOLUTION #14-28 

 
PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE  
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS IN CONNECTION WITH  

THE CONSTRUCTION OF 360 LINEAR FEET OF WATER MAIN ON 63RD AVENUE 
BETWEEN 83RD AND 84TH STREETS 

 
 RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 
Wisconsin: 
 
 1. The Governing Body hereby declares its intention to levy special assessments 

pursuant to Section 66.0703, Wis. Stats., upon property described in Schedule A 
hereto for special benefits conferred upon such property for the construction of 360 
linear feet of water main on 63rd Avenue between 83rd and 84th Streets. 
 

 2. The Governing Body hereby determines that the construction of such improvements 
are in the best interest of and for the health and welfare of the Municipality and the 
property affected by the improvement and constitutes an exercise of the police power. 
 

 3. The assessment against any parcel may be paid in cash or in ten equal, annual 
installments. 

  
4. The Clerk shall cause to be prepared a report which shall consist of: 

 
A. Preliminary plans and specifications for the improvements. 

 
B. An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed improvements. 

 
C. A schedule of proposed assessments. 

 
 5. When the report is completed, the Clerk shall make a copy of the report available for 

public inspection 
 

 6. Upon completion of the report, the Clerk shall cause notice to be given stating the 
nature of the proposed improvement, the general boundary lines of the proposed 
assessment district, the time and place at which the report may be inspected, and the 
time and place of the public hearing on the matters contained in the preliminary 
resolution and report.  This notice shall be published as a Class 1 Notice and a copy 
shall be mailed, at least ten days before the hearing, to every interested party. 



 
7. The hearing shall be held at the regular meeting place of the Governing Body at a 

time set by the Clerk in accordance with Section 66.0703(7(a)), Wis. Stats. 
 
 Passed and adopted this 6th day of October, 2014.  
 
       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
 
 

_________________________________          
John P. Steinbrink, President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 

 
 

Posted: 
 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION #14-29 

 

RESOLUTION RESCINDING FINAL RESOLUTION #07-72 AUTHORIZING SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENTS FOR THE EXTENSION OF WATER ON 63
RD

 AVENUE FROM STH 165 (104
TH

 

STREET) TO 100
TH

 STREET 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie approved a preliminary plat for the subdivision identified as 

the Court of Kensington in 2007, and; 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie required the developer of the subdivision to extend 

municipal water on 63
rd

 Avenue from STH 165 (104
th

 Street) to 100
th

 Street at their expense, and ; 

WHEREAS, the developer was required to hold the cost of the water main for a period of 10 years and 

allow properties that were not part of the development to connect to the water main at the same cost as the new 

development was receiving, and; 

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2007 the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie adopted 

Resolution #07-72 which authorized a special assessment to be levied upon properties located on the west side 

of 63
rd

 Avenue for connection to municipal water, and; 

WHEREAS, the special assessment was deferred until connection was made by the properties affected 

by the improvement for a period of 10 years dating from the accepted installation of the water main, and; 

WHEREAS, the Courts of Kensington development did not proceed and the preliminary plat extension 

was denied in 2014, and; 

WHEREAS, the assessment levied on November 5, 2007 now represents an unnecessary potential lien 

on real estate on 63
rd

 Avenue.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie 

that effective with the adoption of this resolution that Resolution #07-72 be rescinded and that the affected 

property owners identified on Schedule A attached to this resolution be notified and that the Finance Director of 

the Village remove the anticipated special assessment from the records of the Village. 

 

Considered and adopted this 6
th

 day of October, 2014. 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

_____________________________   John P. Steinbrink 

Jane M. Romanowski     President 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted:  ___________________ 



Schedule A

The Courts of Kensington $44.62

Cost /

Property Owner Name and Address Parcel Number Front Foot Front Foot Damages Assessment

1 Janina & Lawrence Stec

6324  100th Street 92-4-122-224-0370 383.78 $44.62 $0.00 $17,124.26

Pleasant Prairie, WI

2 Hugo A. Trejo

6307  100th Street 92-4-122-224-0365 187.35 $44.62 $0.00 $8,359.56

Pleasant Prairie, WI

3 David & Barbara Neitzel

6307  100th St. 92-4-122-224-0362 120.08 $44.62 $0.00 $5,357.97

Pleasant Prairie, WI

4 Karen Skowronski

10026  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0361 120.08 $44.62 $0.00 $5,357.97

Pleasant Prairie, WI

5 Donald & Gloria Andersen, Jr.

4317  114th St. 92-4-122-224-0355 110.02 $44.62 $0.00 $4,909.09

Pleasant Prairie, WI

6 Jeffrey & Anne Tabbert

10118  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0350 110.08 $44.62 $0.00 $4,911.77

Pleasant Prairie, WI

7 Donald & Gloria Andersen, Jr.

4317  114th St. 92-4-122-224-0345 110.08 $44.62 $0.00 $4,911.77

Pleasant Prairie, WI

8 Andy & Kerry Hamelink

10210  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0340 110.08 $44.62 $0.00 $4,911.77



Pleasant Prairie, WI

9 Newton & Tisha Tench

10220  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0335 110.08 $44.62 $0.00 $4,911.77

Pleasant Prairie, WI

10 David & Traci Kluver

10232  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0330 110.8 $44.62 $0.00 $4,943.90

Pleasant Prairie, WI

11 Gary & Joy Fisher

10302  63rd Ave. 92-4-122-224-0325 220.16 $44.62 $0.00 $9,823.54

Pleasant Prairie, WI

1692.59

Total $75,523.37



1

Vesna Savic

From: John Stiles <johnstiles.wi@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 18, 2014 9:53 PM
To: Village Admin
Subject: Damage to Vehicle on Cooper Rd.

Hello, my name is John Stiles and I am writing ad requested per our phone conversation on Tues, 17 June. 

In the early morning of Saturday, 14 June I was travelling southbound on Cooper Rd around 01:00 to bring my 
friend and to his home at 5527 89th St in Pleasant Prairie. 

My vehicle struck a pothole around 8160 Cooper Rd, immediately causing an audible hissing sound indicating that 
the tires were leaking air heavily. 

Upon arriving at my destination on 89
th

 Street, it was discovered that the rear, passenger-side tire was completely 
flat and the front tire was rapidly losing pressure. 

Further inspection of the wheels the following day revealed that both rims are significantly bent around the inside 
bead, the front showing some signs of buckling and the rear tire is completely destroyed with tears and perforations.

 

As I am a Racine resident, I was unable to revisit the scene in daylight hours until Mon, 16 June at which time I saw 
that the hole had already been filled with gravel and marked with a cone. 

 

As of yet the damage has not been repaired, but was quoted at $90 per wheel to repair the damage to the rims, or 
$150-200 each to replace if repair is not successful.  Both tires will need to be replaced (plus mounting, balancing, 
etc), but this has not been looked into yet since I have nothing to mount them to until the rims are replaced/repaired.

  

Damaged items: 

2x tires, size 215/55R16 

2 16” alloy wheels, Factory style 2002 SAAB 9-5 Linear Wagon 

  

Also in the vehicle with me were: 

Peter Ishmael 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 

262-308-1978 

  



2

Christopher Peterson 

Kenosha, WI 

262-818-1024 

 

Sincerely, 

John Stiles 

954-701-8263 



 
 

 

June 24, 2014 

 

 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 

Attn: John Steinbrink 

9915 39
th

 Ave 

 Pleasant Prairie WI 53158 

 

 

Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 

Our Insured: Village of Pleasant Prairie 

Date of loss: 6/14/2014 

Our Claim # WM000301740095 

Claimant: John Stiles 

  Po Box 85223 

  Racine WI 53408 

 

Dear Mr. Steinbrink, 

 

Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 

Mutual Insurance which insures the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  We are in receipt of the claim 

submitted by Mr. Stiles for damage to his vehicle due to driving over a pothole. 

 

We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the Village of Pleasant Prairie deny 

this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The 

disallowance will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  

 

Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed no negligence on behalf of 

the Village. The Village did not have prior actual or constructive notice of the condition 

which allegedly caused this incident. 

 

Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 

disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 

claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 

disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 

 

 

 

 

 



Sincerely, 

 

Sarah Dorr 

PO Box 5555 

Madison, WI. 53705-0555 

800-545-2190 Phone 

800-854-1537 Fax 

sdorr@statewidesvcs.com 

 

CC:  Rick Kalscheuer 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION #14-30 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF  

NATIONAL CYBER SECURITY AWARENESS MONTH 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie recognizes that it has a vital role in identifying, 

protecting, and responding to cyber threats that may have significant impact to our individual 

and collective security and privacy; 

WHEREAS, critical infrastructure sectors are increasingly reliant on information systems to 

support financial services, energy, telecommunications, transportation, utilities, health care, and 

emergency response systems; and 

WHEREAS, the Stop.Think.Connect.™ Campaign (www.dhs.gov/stopthinkconnect or 

www.stopthinkconnect.org) has been designated as the National Public Awareness Campaign, 

implemented through a coalition of private companies, nonprofit and government organizations, 

and academic institutions aimed at increasing the understanding of cyber threats and empowering 

the American public to be safer and more secure online; and 

WHEREAS, the National Institute for Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework and 

DHS’s Critical Infrastructure Cyber Community (C3) Voluntary Program have been developed 

as free resources to help organizations (large and small, both public and private) implement the 

Cybersecurity Framework and improve their cyber practices through a practical approach to 

addressing evolving threats and challenges; 

WHEREAS, in support of the Cybersecurity Framework and to better assist business and 

government entities in addressing cyber threats, the Center for Internet Security/Multi-State 

ISAC, the Council on CyberSecurity, the Governors Homeland Security Advisors Council, and 

public and private sector entities have developed an effort to promote good cyber hygiene 

through actionable guidance for government and businesses, and to promote innovation, 

strengthen cybersecurity investment and enhance resilience across all sectors. 

WHEREAS, maintaining the security of cyberspace is a shared responsibility in which each of 

us has a critical role to play, and awareness of computer security essentials will improve the 

security of the Village of Pleasant Prairie information infrastructure and economy; and   

WHEREAS, the President of the United States of America, the U.S. Department of Homeland 

Security (www.dhs.gov/cyber), the CIS/Multi-State Information Sharing and Analysis Center 

(www.msisac.org), the National Association of State Chief Information Officers 

(www.nascio.org), the Council on CyberSecurity (www.counciloncybersecurity.org/) and the 

National Cyber Security Alliance (www.staysafeonline.org) have declared October as National 

http://www.dhs.gov/stopthinkconnect
http://www.dhs.gov/cyber
http://www.msisac.org/
http://www.nascio.org/
http://www.staysafeonline.org/


 

 

Cyber Security Awareness Month; and all citizens are encouraged to visit these sites, along with 

the Village of Pleasant Prairie (www.pleasantprairieonline.com) and the 

Stop.Think.Connect.Campaign website (www.dhs.gov/stopthinkconnect and 

www.stopthinkconnect.org) to learn about cyber security; and put that knowledge into practice in 

their homes, schools, workplaces, and businesses.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Village Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie, officially supports National Cyber Security Awareness Month and the National 

Public Awareness Campaign, Stop.Think.Connect. 

Passed and adopted this 6
th

 day of October, 2014. 

  

      __________________________________________

      John P. Steinbrink, Village President 

Attest: 

 

______________________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk 

 

Posted:_____________ 

 

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/
http://www.dhs.gov/stopthinkconnect
http://www.stopthinkconnect.org/


 
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.694.1400    Fax 262.694.4734    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Village Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Michael R. Pollocoff 
   Village Administrator 
 
Date:  September 29, 2014 
 
Re:  Community Development Authority Appointments 
 
 
I recommend the following appointments to the Community Development Authority for 
the terms listed below:   

 
 

Community Development Authority 
 
Kate Jerome     Term – October 7, 2016 
Tom Reiherzer    Term – October 7, 2016 
Jill Sikorski     Term – October 7, 2015 

 
 

* * * * * 
 

 
 
 



 
CLERK'S CERTIFICATION OF 

 BARTENDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 
    Period Ending: September 30, 2014 
 
 
I, Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 
Wisconsin, do hereby certify the following persons have applied for bartender licenses and each 
applicant is in compliance with the guidelines set forth in Chapter 194 of the Municipal 
Code.  I recommend approval of the applications for each person as follows:  
 
 
NAME OF APPLICANT    LICENSE TERM 
 

1. Stacy A. Archibald    thru June 30, 2016 
2. Shakeel Sarosh    thru June 30, 2016 

 
 
 

  
RECOMMEND DENIAL 

 
Police Chief Dave Smetana recommends denial of the following applicant as there is an 
outstanding warrant on record due to a traffic offense.  Chief Smetana called the applicant and 
left a message indicating if the warrant was satisfied, the application could be processed but no 
action has been taken. 
 
NAME OF APPLICANT 
 
          Datara J. Booker 
 
 
 
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk     
 
 
 


	Agenda - October 6 2014
	4. Minutes - September 15 2014
	7A.-F. The Addison - Arbor Ridge
	Fire Comments Revised 9-9-14
	Building Inspection Review-8-26-14
	Exhibit 1-Development Agreement V-2
	Exhibit 1- Cost Breakdown
	Exhibit 1a- Cost Breakdown
	Exhibit 1a- Arbor Ridge Cost Estimates
	Exhibit 1b Res #14-27
	Exhibit 1c-Consent to Development Agreement V-2
	Exhibit 2-Correction Instrument
	Exhibit 3-CSM Application
	Exhibit 3-CSM
	Exhibit 4-Application-Zoning Text and Map Amend
	Exhibit 4-Ord #14-29
	Exhibit 4-Ord #14-30
	Exhibit 4-Development Plans
	Exhibit 5-Ord #14-31

	7G. Resolution 14-31 Requesting Rail Commissioner Support CTH H Emco Rail Spur Crossing
	2011-2012 Previous  RR EMCO CP rail spur document and decision
	2014 RR Decision CHT H and EMCO spur

	7H. Financial Advisory Services Agreement Memo
	Stern Agee Financial Advisor Agreement
	Stern Agee Statement of Qualifictions

	7I. Prelim Res 14-28 Water main 63rd Ave
	7J. Resolution 14-29 Rescind Final Res 07-72 wtr Court of Kensington
	Schedule A - rescind - Courts of Kensington

	7K. Disallowance of Stiles pothole claim
	Disallow ltr 6-14-14

	7L. Resolution 14-30 Supporting National Cyber Security Awareness Month
	7M. CDA Reappointments
	7N. Operator License Applications VB Memo 10-6-14



